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issuance of an Ex Parte Warrant to Take Physical Custody of the Minor Child.
In support of this request, Gabino states the following:

1. The most recent custody determination was contained in the ORDER
FOR IMMEDIATE PICK UP AND RETURN OF THE MINOR CHILD
entered on January 26, 2021.

2. This Court’s Order and the Record on File confirms that Plaintiff ANA
M. SALAS has concealed the minor child, YASLINE GUARDADO-
SALAS, since at least December of 2019 and refused Gabino any contact
with the child. Further, Ana is not communicating with Gabino
whatsoever.

3. This Court’s Order and the Record on File confirm that it 1s likely Ana
will continue to withhold the minor child and continue to keep her
location concealed.

4. This Court has determined that it is in the best interest of the child that she
be returned to Gabino pursuant to the Court order issued following the
August 6, 2020, hearing.

5. This Court ordered Ana to immediately turn over physical custody of the
minor child together with her belongings, clothing and personal effects to
the care, custody and control of Gabino.

6. This Court further ordered that any and all law enforcement personnel, of
Nevada or any other jurisdiction, including METRO (Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police), be authorized and directed to assist Gabino in
obtaining physical custody of the minor child.

7. ANA M. SALAS is violating that Order, and the other orders of this
Court, as she continues to flee state after state and not return the minor
child to Gabino.

8. The Court has determined that it has exclusive continuing jurisdiction

over child custody matters under NRS Chapter 125A.

240




9. Gabino requests the Court issues a Warrant to take Physical Custody of
the Minor Child prier to a hearing on this matter. ANA M. SALAS
refuses to follow this Court’s Orders and continues to flee state after state
with the minor child.

10. Gabino also requests Nevada Law Enforcement or any other jurisdiction

to help, if necessary, to enforce this Court’s Order.

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L
INTRODUCTION

For the purpose of a factual background, the parties to this action are
Plaintiff, Ana Salas, (“Plantiff”), and Defendant, Gabino Guardado,
(“Defendant”). The Plaintiff 1s the maternal Aunt of the minor child’s natural
mother, who has fled the country and her whereabouts are unknown. The minor
in question 1s Yasline Guardado-Salas, born February 9, 2014, now age seven
(7). Defendant 1s on the birth certificate as father of the minor child.

As this Court knows, Gabino was awarded SOLE LEGAL AND SOLE
PHYSICAL CUSTODY of the minor child, Yasline Guardado-Salas, born
February 9, 2014, on or about August 6, 2020, with the filed Order reflecting the
same being issued on December 21, 2020. On or about January 26, 2021, this
Court Ordered for the Immediate Pick Up and Return of the Minor Child.
However, as of June 29, 2021, Ana still has not returned the minor child and is
fleeing Court Orders by continually moving the child from state to state without
any reasoning and in the effort simply to frustrate Defendant’s custody.
Accordingly, this Petition follows.
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IL
STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant was living in North Carolina with the minor child’s natural
mother. It was during this time that Defendant was afforded an amazing
opportunity to move to Oklahoma to work in the oil fields, this opportunity was
one that would provide him with substantial income and an ability to better
provide for his family.

Once Defendant left North Carolina in 2015, he believed that the mother
of his child would continue to provide for her care and comfort while he was
away for at least thirty-six months (36). Unfortunately, this was not what
happened.

At some point, the exact date is unknown to the Defendant, the natural
mother decided to “sign” custody of the minor child over to Plaintiff. The
execution of this occurred on October 9, 2015.

Following this, it 1s believed that the natural mother had legal trouble,
once Defendant left the state and natural mother fled to her birth country of
Mexico and/or was deported. Following this on March 2, 2017, in North
Carolina a Court in Craven County issued a Custodial Order which formalized
Plaintiff’s custody over Defendant’s child.

Following this, Plaintiff and her then husband divorced, and it is believed
the husband is currently homeless, addicted to substances and living in a car.
Plaintiff herself has, on multiple occasions, left the minor child unattended for
extended periods or in the care of others while she engages in a pattern of
prostitution or escorting.

While Defendant knows and has a relationship with his daughter, he can
no longer not have her in his care as he is living in Las Vegas, employed and

able to care for her. There have never been any concerns regarding his ability to
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parent, in fact he did not even know of the proceedings in North Carolina, until
December 15, 2019.

Defendant, was informed his child was left in the care of a relative and
Plaintiff had “took off.”” Defendant went, retrieved the child, and lived normally,
several days later, Plaintiff arrived with the police and the attached custody
order and took the child from Defendant.

Defendant has been misled and taken advantage of by Plaintiff, due to
Defendant’s limited ability to understand and speak English, and limited
education, Plaintiff has always informed him of what must happen. Once
Defendant was informed by his family and friends of Plaintiff conduct and
misrepresentation’s he engaged the services of an attorney to fight for his child
as that is all he cares about in this matter.

As such On January 24, 2020, Defendant filed to domesticate the North
Carolina Order in Nevada and filed his motion to modify child custody on
January 27, 2021. Following extensive services attempts Defendant has his first
hearing on March 9, 2020 and being unable to locate Ana Salas was for to
request the authority to service by publication. On August 6, 2020, the parties
had their final hearing and the Court found as follows:

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendant has persuaded the
Court that here has been a substantial change in circumstances under Ellis v.
Carucci and that it is in the best interest of the subject minor that Defendant
have his custody restored. Video Cite 10:53:21-10:54:23.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the material change in
circumstance in this instant matter 1s, Ana Salas’s abandonment of the subject
minor, which resulted in the child being returned to Defendant’s care by child
protective services, only to be subsequently removed again by Ana Salas. Video
cite 10:54:23-10:54:54.

243




THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Ana Salas is not properly caring
for the subject minor. Video cite 10:54:55-10:55:05.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendant has provided
convincing evidence that the circumstance, under which the North Carolina
Order was 1ssued, to include homelessness, and drug abuse, did not and do not
apply to him and that they only ever applied to the subject minor’s Natural
Mother. Video cite 10:55:06-10:55:42.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendant did not know and was
not informed of the North Carolina proceedings or subsequent Order until
December of 2019. Video cite 10:55:42-10:56:47.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendant has lived in the State
of Nevada, County of Clark, City of Las Vegas, since at least March of 2016.
Video cite 10:55:42-10:56:47.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendant currently earns
approximately $1,350.00 per week or $5,850.00 per month which is adequate to
provide for the child’s needs. Video cite 10:55:42-10:56:47.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendants’ significant other
currently earns $3,900.00 per month. Video cite 10:55:42-10:56:47.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendant currently rents a
three-bedroom, three-bathroom residence, which is only inhabited by Defendant
and his significant other. Moreover, Defendant’s residence allows for the subject
minor to have a room of her own. Video cite 10:55:42-10:56:47.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that it is concerned that the neglect of
the subject minor by Ana Salas. This further provides for a change in
circumstance in this matter, due to her failure to properly care for the subject
minor. Video Cite 10:56:47-10:57:46
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the child custody determination
issued by North Carolina was entered by Default, against Defendant. Video cite
10:57:40-10:57:44.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendant has health insurance
for himself and the Court is persuaded that he will obtain health insurance for
the subject minor, once returned to his care. Video cite 10:57:46-10:58:11.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the evidence 1s clear that Ana
Salas has not properly cared for the subject minor by disciplining the child for
simply being sick and failing to provide proper medical treatment as needed.
Video cite 10:58:12-10:58:49.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Ana Salas has failed to have the
subject minor registered for schooling. Video cite 10:58:12-10:58:49.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Ana Salas regularly abandons the
child with third party, non-custodial relatives, to engage in her career as an
escort. Video cite 10:58:12-10:58:49.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Defendant, upon child protective
services placing the child in his care, took the subject minor for medical
treatment related to the ongoing infestation of lice the subject minor presented
with in December 2019. Video cite 10:58:53-10:59:02.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the wishes of the child do not
carry any weight in this matter. Video cite 10:59:03-11:00:09.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Natural Mother nominated Ana
Salas by consenting to a guardianship prior to the 1ssuance of the North Carolina
Orders. It appears while Natural mother may have been experiencing difticulties
in her own life, Defendant was not and Natural Mother gave the child over to
Ana Salas, instead of Defendant and without Defendant’s consent. Video cite
10:59:03-11:00:09.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Ana Salas is not likely to allow
frequent association between the subject minor and Defendant, nor is she likely
to facilitate contact between the subject minor and Defendant, as evidenced by
her abandoning the subject minor with her relatives rather than Defendant,
despite him being fit and proper to care for the child. Video cite 11:00:09-
11:00:41.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Ana Salas and Defendant are not
able to cooperate to meet the needs of the child, as Ana Salas, refuses to allow
Defendant to participate in the subject minor’s life. Video cite 11:01:15-
11:01:45

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the level of conflict is currently
low, as Ana Salas refuses to communicate or interact with Defendant. Video cite
11:00:41-11:01:15.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that no evidence was presented to
indicate that any party in this action is mentally or physically unable to care for
the subject minor. Video cite 11:01:45-11:01:54.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the evidence and testimony
presented indicated that Ana Salas was not properly caring for the subject
minor’s medical needs, as the child had an untreated lice infection in December
of 2019. Video cite 11:01:54-11:02:11.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the subject minor was unhappy
in the care of Ana Salas as evidenced by the subject minor’s resistance to her
removal from Defendant in December 2019. Defendant further testified that he
has a loving relationship with the subject minor. Video cite 11:02:11-11:02:38.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that no evidence was presented to
indicate the subject minor having any siblings. Video cite 11:02:38-11:02:40.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Ana Salas, based on the evidence

present and testimony heard, has neglected the minor child by way of
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continuously abandoning her with third parties who are also not caring for her
needs. Video cite 11:02:40-11:03:11.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that there has been no evidence of
Domestic Violence presented to the court for consideration. Video cite
11:03:11-11:03:55.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that due to the North Carolina child
custody determination, granting Ana Salas Sole Legal and Sole Physical
Custody of the subject minor there has been no act of abduction. Video cite
11:03:11-11:03:55.

Following these findings, the Court order the following:

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERS that based on the findings above
and the analysis of the best interest factors therein, it is in the subject minor’s
best interest to return to the care of Defendant.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Defendant shall be awarded
Sole Legal Custody of the subject minor.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Defendant shall be granted
Sole Physical custody of the subject minor.

The Order from the August 6, 2020, hearing was signed and filed on
December 22, 2020.

Following this order and still not being able to get Ana Salas to comply
with the court order Defendant request a Pickup Order on January 25, 2021, and
the Order was filed on January 26, 2021. Since that Order was issued Ana Salas
has actively fled and continually runs every time Defendant i1s able to track

down her location.
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III.
LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. AN EX PARTE WARRANT IS NEEDED TO ASSISST THE
RETURN OF THE MINOR CHILD
Pursuant to NRS 125C.0055, priority is given to proceedings involving an

order for production of children:

NRS 125C.0035 Order for production of child before court;, determinations
concerning physical custody of child.

1.

If, during any action for determining the custody of a minor child, either before or
after the entry of a final order concerning the custody of a minor child, it appears
to the court that any minor child of either party has been, or 1s likely to be, taken or
removed out of this State or concealed within this State, the court shall forthwith
order such child to be produced before it and make such disposition of the child’s
custody as appears most advantageous to and in the best interest of the child and
most likely to secure to him or her the benefit of the final order or the modification
or termination of the final order to be made in his or her behalf.

If, during any action for determining the custody of a minor child, either before or
after the entry of a final order concerning the custody of a minor child, the court
finds that 1t would be in the best interest of the minor child, the court may enter an
order providing that a party may, with the assistance of the appropriate law
enforcement agency, obtain physical custody of the child from the party having
physical custody of the child. The order must provide that if the party obtains
physical custody of the child, the child must be produced before the court as soon
as practicable to allow the court to make such disposition of the child’s custedy as
appears most advantageous to and in the best interest of the child and most likely
to secure to him or her the benefit of the final order or the modification or
termination of the final order to be made in his or her behalf.

If the court enters and order pursuant to subsection 2 providing that a party may
obtain physical custody of a child, the court shall order that party to give the party
having physical custody of the child notice at least 24 hours before the time at
which he or she mtends to obtain physical custody of the child, unless the court
deems that requiring notice would likely defeat the purpose of the order.

All orders for a party to appear with a child issues pursuant to this section may be
enforced by issuing a warrant of arrest against that party to secure his or her
appearance with the child.

A proceeding under this section must be given priority on the court calendar.
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Moreover, pursuant to NRS 200.359, it is a category D felony as provided
in NRS 193.130, for a party who willfully detains, conceals, or removes the

child from a parent:

NRS 200.359 Detention, concealment or removal of child from person having
lawtul custody or from jurisdiction of court: Penalties; limitation on issuance of arrest
warrant; restitution; exceptions.

1. A person having a limited right of custody te a child by operation of law or
pursuant to an order, judgment or decree of any court, including a judgment or
decree which grants another person rights to custody or visitation of the child, or
any parent having no right of custody to the child, who:

(a) In vielation of an order, judgment or decree of any court willfully detains,
conceals or removes the child from a parent, guardian or other person
having lawful custody or a right of visitation of the child; or

(b} In the case of an order, judgment or decree of any court that does not
specify when the right to physical custody or visitation is to be exercised,
removes the child from the jurisdiction of the court without the consent of
either the court or all persons who have the right to custody or visitation, is
guilty of a category D felony and shall be punished as provided in NRS
193.130.

2. A parent who has joint legal custody of a child pursuant to NRS 125.465 shall not
willfully conceal or remove the child from the custody of the other parent with the
specific intent to deprive the other parent of the parent and child relationship. A
person whe violates this subsection shall be punished as provided in subsection 1.

3. If the mother of a child has primary physical custody pursuant to subsection 2 of
NRS 126.031, the father of the child shall not willfully conceal or remove the child
from the physical custody of the mother. If the father of a child has primary
physical custody pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 126.031, the mother of the child
shall not willfully conceal or remove the child from the physical custody of the
father. A person who violates this subsection shall be punished as provided in
subsection 1.

4. Before an arrest warrant may be issued for a vielation of this section, the court
must find that:

(a) This is the home state of the child, as defined in NRS 125A.085; and

(b} There is cause to believe that the entry of a court order in a civil
proceeding brought pursuant to chapter 125, 125A or 125C of NRS will
not be effective to enforce the rights of the parties and would not be in the
best interests of the child.

5. Upon conviction for a violation of this section, the court shall order the defendant
to pay restitution for any expenses incurred in locating or recovering the child.

6. The prosecuting attomey may recommend to the judge that the defendant be
sentenced as for a misdemeanor and the judge may impose such a sentence if the
judge finds that;
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(a) The defendant has no prior conviction for this offense and the child has
suftfered no substantial harm as a result of the offense; or

(b} The interests of justice require that the defendant be punished as for a
misdemeanaor.

7. A person who aids or abets any other person to violate this section shall be
punished as provided in subsection 1.

8. This section does not apply to a person who detains, conceals or removes a child to
protect the child from the imminent danger of abuse or neglect or to protect
himseltf or herself from imminent physical harm, and reported the detention,
concealment or removal to a law enforcement agency or an agency which provides
child welfare services within 24 hours after detaining, concealing or removing the
child, or as scon as the circumstances allowed. As used in this subsection:

(a) "Abuse or neglect” has the meaning ascribed to 1t in paragraph (a) of
subsection 4 of NRS 200.508.

(b} "Agency which provides child welfare services” has the meaning ascribed
to it in NRS 432B.030.

Ana has withheld the minor child from Gabino, without his consent, since
December 2019. Further, Ana has withheld the minor child from Gabino 1n
direct violation of this Court’s Orders and refuses to return the minor child to
Gabino. Ana is willfully concealing the minor child from Gabino, which is a
direct violation of NRS 200.359.

Ana continues to flee with the minor child to several states. As such,
Gabino requests an £Ex Parte Warrant for the custody and return of the minor
child. Further, pursuant to NRS 125C.0055(2), this Court has authority to enter
an Order allowing Gabino, with the assistance of the appropriate law
enforcement or state agency, to obtain physical custody of the Minor Child from
Ana,

Moreover, pursuant to NRS 125D.200, this Court has the express
authority to issue an £x Parte Warrant directing law enforcement officers or
state authority to take physical custody of the Minor Child and to place them in
the care, custody and control of Gabino and/or his authorized agent and/or
representative.

In this case, Ana has engaged in wrongful, unlawful conduct that is

detrimental to the minor child’s safety, security, well-being, and best interest.
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Ana is preventing the minor child from returning to her father; and based upon
her erratic behavior and brazen defiance and disrespect of this Court’s Orders,
the child is in imminent risk of harm.

Continuing, to effectuate the transfer of the minor child to Gabino,
Gabino requests that law enforcement officers or state authority take physical
custody of the minor child and place her in the care, custody and control of
Gabino.

IV.
CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, Gabino reasonably requests an order that

Gabino be issued an Ex Parte Warrant to Take Physical Custody of the Minor
Child and an Order directing and authorizing any and all appropriate law
enforcement agencies to assist Gabino to locate and take custody of the minor

child and return her to Gabino’s care and custody.

Dated this Fridav, Julv 02, 2021

Submitted by:
ROSENBLUM LAW OFFICES

\ AVV\WW—/

MOLLY ROQSENBLUM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 08242

376 E Warm Springs Rd., Ste 140
Las Vegas, NV 89119

(702) 433-2889—Phone

Email: staffi@rosenblumlawlv.com
Attorney for Defendant
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Electronically Fil
07/02/2021 4:12 B

PN

CLERK QF THE COURT

WARR

ROSENBLUM LAW OFFICES
MOLLY ROSENBLUM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 08242

KYLE KING, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 14557

376 E Warm Springs Rd., Ste 140
Las Vegas, NV 89119

(702) 433-2889—Phone

(702) 425-9642—Fax

Email: staffi@rosenblumlawlv.com
Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT—FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND TYLER
EDENFIELD, gg;?.l}l\]odf: §-20-602873-F
Plaintiff’s,
Vs.
GABINO GUARDADO,
Defendant.

WARRANT TO TAKE PHYSICAL CUSTODY OF A CHILD
PURSUANT TO NRS 125D.200

TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA; and
TO: All Law Enforcement Agencies and Officers, including, without limitation,
any Sherriff, Constable, Marshal, Policemen, or Peace Officer within the

State:
THIS COURT FINDS that based upon the £x Parte Petition for Expedited

Enforcement of this Court’s Prior Orders, including the Order for Immediate Pick

Up and Return of the Minor Child and Application for Warrant to Take Physical
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Custody of the Minor Child, the child identified herein is immediately likely to
suffer serious physical harm or be removed from this State because Defendant 1s
likely engaging in unlawful conduct and has refused to comply with the Order of
this Court and is a danger to the emotional and physical well-being of the child.

YOU ARE THEREFORE COMMANDED to take physical custody of
the following minor child:

Y asline Guardado-Salas, born February 9, 2014.

The minor child is being held at an unknown location as Ana M. Salas is
actively concealing the child location.

YOU ARE THEREFORE COMMANDED that once the minor child is
in your physical custody, that she is to be delivered to:

Gabino Guardado or an employee of ROSENBLUM LAW OFFICES,
acting on behalf of Mr. Guardado.

YOU ARE FURTHER COMMANDED that you must immediately serve
ANA M. SALAS with a copy of this Warrant, the Petition for Expedited
Enforcement / Application for a Warrant to Take Physical Custody of the Minor
Child, and the Order to Appear.

SPECTAL INSTRUCTIONS:

This warrant may be executed by entering private property based on the
Court’s finding that a less intrusive remedy is not effective.

This warrant may be executed by forcible entry with great care and only as
a last resort at any hour based on the Court’s finding of exigent circumstances.

THIS WARRANT MAY BE SERVED AT ANY HOUR OF THE
DAY OR NIGHT.
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IT IS SO ORDERED.
No additional orders on this page (HA).

Dated this Fridav, Julv 02, 2021

Submitted by:
ROSENBLUM LAW OFFICES

LA

MOULLY ROSENBLUM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 08242

376 E Warm Springs Rd., Ste 140
Las Vegas, NV 89119

(702) 433-2889—Phone

Email: staff@rosenblumlawlv.com
Attorney for Defendant

254

Dated this 2nd day of July, 2021

e

208 EAE 0877 4440
Heidi Almase
District Court Judge
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle CASE NO: D-20-602873-F

Edenfield, Plaintiff.
DEPT. NO. Department X

VS,

Gabino Guardado, Defendant.

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Warrant was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:
Service Date: 7/2/2021

Rosenblum Law Offices staffi@rosenblumlawly.com

Gabino Guardado sugueryriyahoo.com
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Electronically Filed
11/23/2021 11:42 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COUEE
L [INOA C&wf

» ||PETER ISSO, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 14721
Peter@lIssoLawFirmLV.com

4 |[JOHN B. LANNING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 15585
JLanning@IssoLawFirmLV.com
6 |[Isso & Associates, PLLC

275 S. Eastern Ave., Unit 200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

8 ||Phone: (702) 756-1582

g ||Attorneys for Plaintiff Ana Salas

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
FAMILY DIVISION
12 COUNTY OF CLARK, STATE OF NEVADA

14 [|ANA M. SALAS AND TYLER

s ||EDENFIELD, Case No.: D-20-602873-F
y PLAINTIFF’S

17 ||vs. DEPARTMENT NO.: C

"* || GABINO GUARDADO,

19
DEFENDANT
20

21

22

23 NOTICE OF APPEARANCE AS COUNSEL OF RECORD
24

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that PETER ISSO, ESQ. and JOHN B.
25

26 ||LANNING, ESQ. of the law firm of ISSO & ASSOCIATES, PLLC hereby appear

27 || before this Court as counsel of record for the Plaintiff, Ana M. Salas.
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Dated this 23" day of November, 2021.
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/S/ John B. Lanning

JOHN B. LANNING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 15585
JLanning@lIssoLawFirmLV.com
Isso & Associates, PLLC

275 S. Eastern Ave., Unit 200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123
Phone: (702) 756-1582
Attorneys for Plaintiff Ana Salas
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Electronically Filed
11/24/2021 8:20 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COUEE
L |MOT C&wf

» ||PETER ISSO, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 14721
Peter@lIssoLawFirmLV.com

4 |[JOHN B. LANNING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 15585
JLanning@IssoLawFirmLV.com
6 |[Isso & Associates, PLLC

275 S. Eastern Ave., Unit 200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

8 ||Phone: (757) 903-5424

g ||Attorneys for Plaintiff Ana Salas

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

FAMILY DIVISION
12 COUNTY OF CLARK, STATE OF NEVADA
13
ANA M. SALAS AND TYLER Case No.: D-20-602873-F
14 lEDENFIELD, Department No.: C
: Hearing R ted.
15 Plaintiff earing Requested
16
17 || V5 ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED:
s YES
GABINO GUARDADO,
9 Defendant

20

21
MOTION AND NOTICE OF MOTION TO SET ASIDE ORDER AND

22
23 DEFAULT AND TO RECALL WARRANT

*1|TO: DEFENDANT GABINO GUARDADO

25
YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS MOTION
WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE

27 ||UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN 14 DAYS OF
»g || YOUR RECIEPT OF THIS MOTION. FAILURE TO FILE A WRITTEN
RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THIS COURT WITHIN 14 DAYS OF

26
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YOUR RECIEPT OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE REQUESTED
RELIEF BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT A HEARING PRIOR
TO THE SCHEDULED HEARING DATE.

COMES NOW the Plaintiff ANA SALAS, by and through her counsel of record,
PETER ISSO, ESQ. and JOHN B. LANNING, ESQ. of the law firm ISSO &
ASSOCIATES, PLLC and hereby files this MOTION AND NOTICE OF
MOTION TO SET ASIDE AN ORDER AND RECALL WARRANT (“Motion”)
against the Defendant GABINO GUARDADO.

This Motion is based on the pleadings and papers on file, the Memorandum
of Points and Authorities herein, Declarations filed concurrently herewith, and any
exhibits attached thereto, and any oral argument that the Court may entertain at the
time of the hearing.

DATED this 24" day of November, 2021.
Respectfully submitted by:
ISSO & ASSOCIATES, PLLC
/s/ John Lanning, Esq.
JOHN B. LANNING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 15585
JLanning@lIssoLawFirmLV.com
Isso & Associates, PLLC
275 S. Eastern Ave., Unit 200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Phone: (757) 903-5424
Attorneys for Plaintiff
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NOTICE OF MOTION

TO: DEFENDANT GABINO GUARDADO

YOU AND EACH OF YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the
undersigned will bring the MOTION TO SET ASIDE AN ORDER AND TO
RECALL WARRANT and Related Relief for hearing before the Eighth Judicial
District Court, in the Family Division Courthouse, in Department C, located at 601
N. Pecos Rd., Las Vegas, Nevada 893101, against the Plaintift ANA SALAS on the

day of , 2021 at a.m./p.m.

DATED this 24" day of November, 2021.
Respectfully submitted by:
ISSO & ASSOCIATES, PLLC

/5/ John Lanning, Esq.

JOHN B. LANNING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 15585
JLanning(@lIssoLawFirmLV.com
Isso & Associates, PLLC

275 S. Eastern Ave., Unit 200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123
Phone: (757) 903-5424
Attorneys for Plaintiff
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MEMORANDUM AND POINTS OF AUTHORITIES

L. PROCEDURAL HISTORY AND STATEMENT OF FACTS
The Plaintiff, ANA SALAS, was granted sole legal and physical
custody of the minor child YASLINE ALEJANDRA GUARDADO-SALAS by
a Court in the State of North Carolina subject to a valid exercise of jurisdiction
by that Court.

Since the time that Custody order was entered, the minor child has resided
with Plaintiff and continues to do so through the present. She has never been
served with any paperwork in the present action until last Friday, November 19,
2021. Since that time she has immediately retained counsel in order to respond
as quickly as possible.

It appears that Defendant, GABINO GUARDADO, never made any real
attempt to Notify Plaintiff of the present action or make any attempt at valid
service of process. For example, the Affidavit of Attempted Service dated April
16, 2020 references an attempt at service on Plaintiff’s sister, and the natural
mother of the minor child at issue, Ms. Paola Salas. At this time however, Ms.
Paola Salas was no longer living at the listed address in Las Vegas as she had
been deported to Mexico for some time by 2020 and this information was

known by the Defendant.
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L Only recently has Plaintiff been made aware of the present action as
she was never served prior to Friday, November 19, 2021. Therefore, she
4 respectfully requests that this Court vacate any and all judgement’s, orders, or

other decisions in the present matter and asks that she be allowed to participate

6
. through counsel in all future disputes that may arise in this matter.
8 II. LEGAL ANALYSIS

9

The court may set aside a final order or judgment pursuant to Nevada Rule of

11 || Civil Procedure 60(b) for the following reasons:

2 (1) mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable neglect;

13

4 (2) newly discovered evidence which by due diligence could not have been

IS discovered in time to move for a new trial under Rule 59(b);

: (3) fraud, misrepresentation or other misconduct of an adverse party;

18 (4) the judgment 1s void; or

v (5) the judgment has been satisfied, released, or discharged, or a prior judgment
20

. upon which it is based has been reversed or otherwise vacated, or it is no longer
22 equitable that an injunction should have prospective application.

z The motion shall be made within a reasonable time, and for reasons (1), (2),
25 and (3) not more than 6 months after the proceeding was taken or the date that
%6 written notice of entry of the judgment or order was served.

27

28
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When a default order is entered against a party who was never
personally served with the summons and complaint, the court may set
aside the order pursuant to Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 60(c) so the
party can answer the merits of the original action. A defaulted party must
file a motion within 6 months of the date of service of written notice of entry of
the order. In addition, a default may be set aside for good cause. NRCP 55(c).

A. THE COURT HAS GOOD CAUSE TO SET ASIDE ALL

JUDGEMENTS AND ORDERS IN THE PRESENT CASE

Plaintift in this matter was not personally served with the petition to register the
foreign judgement or any motion filed into the above listed Nevada Case. Plaintiff
did not have any notice whatsoever of this action until Friday, November 19, 2021.
Clearly under NRCP 55(¢), all orders should be set aside so that Plaintiff can
answer the merits of the original action and be properly heard. Such action is in the
best interests of the minor child.

B. THIS COURT SHOULD AWARD PLAINTIFF ATTORNEY’S FEES.

Plaintiff is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees under NRS 22.100 and all
factors for such an award have been met. See Brunzell v. Golden Gate National
Bank, 85 Nev. 345,455 P. 2d 31 (1969). An award of attorney’s fees is even
further warranted and appropriate given that Defendant did not give Plaintiff any

notice of the present action through valid service or process.
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III. CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiff hereby requests that the Court
grant Orders for the following:
1. Set aside of all orders and judgements in the matter and the
opportunity to respond to the original action on the merits;
2. That any and all warrants issued in the case be recalled;
3. An award of attorney’s fees and related costs, and
4. Any and all other related reliet that this Court deems just and
proper.
DATED this 24" day of November, 2021.
Respectfully submitted by:
ISSO & ASSOCIATES, PLLC
/s/ John Lanning, Fsq.
JOHN B. LANNING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 15585
JLanning(@lIssoLawFirmLV.com
Isso & Associates, PLLC
275 S. Eastern Ave., Unit 200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Phone: (757) 903-5424
Attorneys for Plaintiff
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! AFFIDAVIT OF ANA SALAS

I, ANA SALAS (“Affiant™), being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

4
> 1. T am the Plaintiff in the above-entitled action and I have personal

: knowledge of the maters and am competent to testify to the matters

8 contained therein.

1: 2. That I have read the MOTION AND NOTICE OF MOTION TO SET
1 ASIDE DEFAULT AND RECALL WARRANT (“Motion™) and can

2 certity and attest that the facts contained therein are true of my own

li knowledge, except for those matters stated upon information and belief,
15 and as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

16

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that
17

13 ||the foregoing is true and correct.

v DATED this 24" Day of November 2021.

20

DocuSigned by:
21 ‘_5'4 :\' !
_L/\x i ]—\
BRI

nnnnnnnnn

22 ANA SALAS
23

24
25
26

27
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Electronically Filed
11/2712021 7:45 AM
Steven D. Grierson
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COU
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA w ’3,.

E

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Case No.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff.
V8. Department X

Gabino Guardade, Defendant.

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Motion and Notice of Motion to Set Aside Default and to
Recall Warrant in the above-entitled matter is set for hearing as follows:
Date: January 24, 2022
Time: 10:00 AM
Location: RIC Courtroom 05C

Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the

Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Cecilia Dixon
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b} of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ Cecilia Dixon
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

E

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Case No.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff.

V8. Department X

Gabino Guardado, Defendant.

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Motion and Notice of Motion to Set Aside Default and to
Recall Warrant in the above-entitled matter is set for hearing as follows:
Date: January 24, 2022
Time: 10:00 AM
Location: RJC Courtroom 05C

Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the

Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Cecilia Dixon

Deputy Clerk of the Court
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b} of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion

Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ Cecilia Dixon
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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Electronically Filed
12/16/2021 2:28 PM

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Ncvada Bar #6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8 Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
attorncys@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT.NO.: X
)
VS. ) HEARING DATE: 1/24/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m.
GABINO GUARDADO, )
) ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED
Defendant. ) YES X NO
)

OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO SET ASIDE ORDER AND
DEFAULT AND TO RECALL WARRANT
- AND
COUNTERMOTION FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES

COMES NOW the Defendant, GABINO GUARDADO, by and through his
attorncy, BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ., of the law firm of MILLS & ANDERSON and
pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes and Eighth Judicial District Court Rules
cited hereinbelow, hereby respectfully requests the following:

1. An Order of the Court denying Plaintiff”s request to set aside any and all
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judgement’s, orders, or other decisions in the present matter;

2. An Order awarding Defendant with fees and costs in the amount of $2,500;
3. For any and other such further relief as this Court deems appropriate in the
premises.

This Opposition 1s made and based upon the papers and pleadings on file
herein, Points and Authorities cited below, the Affidavit of Plaintiff, GABINO
GUARDADO, attached hereto, other supporting documentation set forth herein
below, and any argument entertained at the time of hearing.

DATED this |/ day of December, 2021.

MILLS & ANDERSON

T Yy
%ﬁzﬁﬂ L. MILLS, ESQ.
."Nevada Bar No. 6745

703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101
Attorney for Defendant

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
1.
STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant, GABINO GUARDADO (“Gabino”) and Plaintiff, ANA
MARIA SALAS (“Ana Maria”) are former in-laws, Gabino is the biological father
of the child at issue, to wit: YASLINE ALEJANDRA GUARDADO-SALAS, born
on February 9, 2014 (“the child” or “Yasline”). Ana Maria is the sister of the child’s
biological mother, PAOLA LETICIA SALAS (“Paola” or “child’s mother”). The
Plaintiff, TYLER EDENFIELD (“Mr. Edenfield”) is Ana Maria’s ex-husband.
Upon information and belief, Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield divorced in 2017,

/1

'
[
¥
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A. History between the parties.

Yasline was born on February 9, 2014, in Las Vegas, NV. In 2015, Gabino,
Paola, and their daughter Yasline were residing in Las Vegas at 1294 E Hacienda
Ave. During this time, Gabino was afforded a phenomenal job opportunity in
Oklahoma working in the oil fields. This opportunity would allow Gabino to
substantially increase his income, but it would require him to move to Oklahoma
for at least 36 months. Gabino accepted the opportunity and he believed that Paola
would continue to provide care for Yasline while he was away. Unfortunately,
Paola had other plans.

At some point in 2015, Paola decided to enter into a handwritten agreement
giving temporary custody of Yasline to Ana Maria. The only signatures on the
agreement are those of Ana Maria and Paola. The execution of the agreement
occurred on October 9, 2015, and 1t was notarized in Oklahoma. Ana Maria then
took Yasline with her to North Carolina, which is where Ana Maria and Mr.
Edenfield resided.

1. Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield filed for custody in North Carolina.

On March 8, 2016, Ana Maria and Mr, Edenfield filed a complaint in North
Carolina seeking temporary and permanent custody of Yasline.! 2 On March 2,
2017, Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield obtained a custodial order (“NC Order”) which

awarded them exclusive physical and legal custody over Yasline. Notably, the NC
Order contains several findings of fact that give insight into the disturbing degree
of fraud Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield committed in obtaining the order. Below are
the findings:

(a) “The plaintiffs are citizens and residents of Craven County, North

Carolina and have been for at least six months next precedent the

! In the General Court of Justice District Court Division of Craven County, North Carolina under
casc number 16 CVD 310.
2 The Plaintiffs werc Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield. The Defendants were Gabino and Paola.

'
LN ]
1

270




23

24

25

20

27

23

institution of this action.”

(b)“The defendant, Paola Leticia Salas, hereinafter referred to as
‘defendant Salas,” was last known to be the resident of the State of
Nevada. Her current whereabouts are unknown. She is the sister of
the plaintiff, Ana M. Salas.”

(¢)“The defendant, Gabino Guardado, hereinafter referred to as
‘defendant Guaradado,’ was last known to be a resident of the State
of Nevada. His current whereabouts are unknown.”

(d)“Plaintiffs have been the primary caretakers for the child since
October 13, 2015 when defendant Salas requested plaintiffs to come
get the child from Nevada. At that time, defendant Salas was
homeless, had a substance abuse problem and was wanted by the
courts.”

(e) “Defendants have had little to no contact with the plaintiffs or the
minor child since October 13, 2015. Subsequently, defendant
Guardado did, on several occasions, send the plaintiffs small
amounts of money for the benefit of the minor child, but nothing has
been sent in over a year.”

(f) “The defendants, by their actions and inaction, have surrendered ali
parenting responsibilities of this child to the plaintiffs. They have
failed to adequately financially or emotionally support the child and
have not seen the child since October, 2015 thereby abandoning the
child.”

Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield indicated to the NC Court that they had been
Yasline’s caretakers since October 13, 2015, when Paola “asked them” to pick up
the child from Nevada. This was untrue as Ana Maria and Paola had entered into
their temporary custody agreement on October 9, 2015, and the agreement was

notarized in Oklahoma, not in Nevada.
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Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield indicated that Gabino’s whereabouts were
unknown but that he had sent them money several times since October 13, 2015.
Notably, they also claimed that he had not sent them anything in “over one year.”
Given that they had received money from Gabino since October 13, 2015, it is quite
absurd for them to not know his whereabouts. Furthermore, as stated above, the
agreement between Ana Maria and Paola was notarized in Oklahoma, the state
where Gabino was working and residing at the time. This 1s a curious coincidence
given that Ana Maria was purportedly a resident of North Carolina and represented
that Paola was a resident of Nevada.

Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield received money from Gabino multiple times
after October 13, 2015. As such, they clearly had the ability to communicate with
Gabino regarding Paola’s problems and of the fact that they were planning to file
for custody in North Carolina. However, there is no evidence that they ever did so.
Given that Ana Maria entered into the temporary custody agreement only signed by
herself and Paola, it is obvious that the sisters were hiding their plans from Gabino.

2. Ana Maria does not care for the child for extended periods of time.

Upon information and belief, Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield separated in 2017
after the NC Order was entered. Since then, Ana Maria left the child unattended or
in the care of others for extended periods of time. Upon information and belief, Ana
Maria left the child several times because she became a prostitute and/or escort.

On November 30, 2019, Ana Maria had a text conversation with one of her
“clients” who lives in Los Angeles. In the text conversation, the client asks if she
can go to him, to which Ana Maria responds that she can and asks for a date on
which she should go to Los Angeles.

There is another text conversation between Ana Maria and another “client”
where the client asks if Ana Maria is in the Los Angeles area or in Las Vegas. Ana
Maria responds by stating that she is in Los Angeles. This conversation took place
on December 9, 2019,
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Ana Maria had been residing in Nevada through most of 2019 and Gabino
had personally witnessed that the child was residing in Nevada in March 2019, April
2019, and in December 2019. Ana Maria abandoned the child with a relative and
left Nevada, obviously to go prostitute herself and/or to provide escort services in
Los Angeles.

The family relative contacted Gabino and informed him that Ana Maria had
taken off and left the child with them. Gabino subsequently retrieved his child and
found that she had lice and was wearing clothes that were far too small. On
December 15, 2019, Ana Maria arrived at Gabino’s home accompanied by police
and took the child. This was the first time Gabino had been made aware of the
custody case in North Carolina and of the NC Order. Shortly thereafter, Gabino
engaged the serviced of an attorney 1n Nevada.

B. Procedural History of this case in Nevada.

On January 24, 2020, Gabino filed his Petition for Registration of Out of
State Child Custody Determination seeking to register the NC Order. On January
27, 2021, Gabino filed a Motion to Modify Child Custody requesting sole legal
custody, sole physical custody, child support, and attorney’s fees and costs.?

On January 31, 2020, Gabino filed a certificate of service (“COS”’) showing
that he served a copy of his Motion, his Exhibit Appendix in Support, and Notice
of Hearing. The COS includes proof that Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield were served
by certified mail at their residence tocated at 1216 Silver Lake Dr, Las Vegas, NV
89108.

On February 6, 2020, an Affidavit of Service (“AOS”) was filed stating that,
on February 5, 2020, Ana was served with a copy of the Petition for Registration,
Notice of the Petition, the Motion to Modify, Exhibits in Support, and Notice of
Hearing. The affiant stated that he personally delivered and left a copy of the above

? The hearing on Gabino’s Motion was set for March 3, 2020,
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with ETHEL ADALTO, cousin of Mr. Edenfield and co-occupant of 1216 Silver
Lake Dr, Las Vegas, NV 89108. Another AOS was filed on February 6, 2020,
stating the same for service of Mr. Edenfield.

On February 19, 2020, a Re-Notice of Hearing was filed by Gabino. On
February 20, 2020, Gabino filed a COS indicating that the Re-Notice of Hearing
was made by certified mail on February 19, 2020. The Re-Notice was delivered to
both Ana and Mr. Edenfield via certified mail at 1216 Silver Laker Dr, Las Vegas,
NV §9108.

On March 5, 2020, Gabino filed a Notice of Filing of Certified Order. Service
including a copy of the NC custody order was delivered via certified mail to both
Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield via cerfified mail at 1216 Silver Laker Dr, Las Vegas,
NV 89108.

On March 9, 2020, the matter of Gabino’s Motion came before the Court. At
the hearing, there was discussion regarding service on Paola and on Paola’s last
known address in North Carolina or whether Paola was served by publication.
Gabino’s former counsel (“Attorney Rosenblum™) represented that Paola had
signed a unilateral guardianship to Ana Maria before Paola was deported to
Mexico. Attorney Rosenblum further represented that to the best of his knowledge,
Paola had been deported to Mexico long ago, and that Ana Maria, Mr. Edenfield,
the child, and Gabino all resided in Las Vegas, Nevada.

Court noted that unless the due diligence showed that Paola was in North
Carolina, this Court was going to have subject matter jurisdiction. However, the
Court also found that Paola was required to have notice.

The Court Ordered that, upon Gabino completing a due diligence search on
Paola and making an Ex-Parte request for Publication, publication shall be allowed.

The Court further ordered that, upon service on Paola and twenty (20) days had
lapsed, Attorney Rosenblum shall submit an Order, so that this Court could confirm

it had jurisdiction. The Court continued the matter to April 23, 2020.
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On April 13,2020, Gabino filed an Affidavit of Attempted Service (“AFAS”)
indicating that, after due search, careful inquiry, and diligent attempts, service of
process on Paola was not successtul. Service of process was attempted by trying
one of Paola’s last known addresses, 561 N Majove Rd, Apt 116, Las Vegas, NV
89101.

On April 15, 2020, Gabino filed an Ex-Parte Motion for an Order for Service
by Alternate Means and Order to Extend Time to Serve.

On April 16, 2020, Gabino filed another AFAS stating service was
unsuccessful at another of Paola’s last known addresses, 1294 E Hacienda Ave, Apt
C, Las Vegas, NV 8§9119.

On April 20, 2020, the Court granted Gabino’s Ex-Parte Motion for an Order
for Service by Alternate Means and Order to Extend Time to Serve. The Order
ordered Gabino to effect service by publication and extended the time to serve by
90 days. The Court further ordered that the hearing previously scheduled for April
23, 2020 be continued to July 27, 2020.

On August 22, 2020, Notice of Hearing was filed notifying Paola, Ana Maria,
and Mr. Edenfield that the hearing on Gabino’s Motion was rescheduled from April
23, 2020 to July 27, 2020.

On May 15, 2020, Gabino filed an Affidavit of Due Diligence (“AFDD”)
stating that all attempts to serve Paola were to no avail.

On May 21, 2020, Gabino filed an Affidavit of Publication (*AFFP”) in
which Paola, Ana Maria, and Mr. Edenfield were given notice of the hearing set for
July 27, 2020. The AFFP included a statement from the publisher of Nevada Legal
News confirming that a copy of Gabino’s Motion and Notice of Hearing were
published on the dates of April 23, 2020, April 30, 2020, May 7, 2020, May 14,
2020, and May 21, 2020.

On July 27, 2020, the matter of Gabino’s Motion came before the court for

hearing. Only Gabino and his former counsel (“Attorney King”) were present at the
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hearing. Court noted service to all the parties has been satisfied.? The Court inquired
on whether Gabino had the child and Attorney King stated that they were going to
request a pick-up order as they believed Ana Maria had now fled to Florida and they
might have to get the Attorney General involved in this matter to pick up the minor
child from a different state.

The Court found that it had subject matter jurisdiction over this case, personal
jurisdiction over the parties, and child custody subject matter jurisdiction over the
child. The Court ordered that Gabino shall have the North Carolina Order registered
with this court and continued the matter to August 6, 2020, to allow Gabino time to
obtain a court-certified Spanish interpreter.’

On July 29, 2020, the Order Regarding Registration of Out of State Child
Custody Determination was filed. On July 30, 2020, Notice of Entry of Order was
filed.

On August 6, 2020, the matter came before the Court. This time, Gabino had
a court-certified Spanish interpreter and Gabino was canvassed regarding his
request for sole legal and sole physical custody.® The Court found that it had subject
matter jurisdiction over this case, personal jurisdiction over the parties, and child
custody subject matter jurisdiction over the child.” ® The Court further found that
Gabino personally witnessed the child, Yasline, in March of 2019, April of 2019,
and in December 2019, after Ana Maria abandoned the child with a relative and left
the state. As such, the Court was persuaded that Yasline had lived in the state of
Nevada for at least 6 months prior to the filing of Gabino’s Motion in January 2020.°

4 See Court Minutes from the hearing held on July 27, 2020.
5
Id.
6 See Court Minutes from the hearing held on July 27, 2020.
7 See Court Order from the hearing held on July 27, 2020, filed on December 21, 2020.
#1d. at Page 2, Lines 1-26.
% 1d. at Page 2, Lines 20-26.
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Ultimately, the Court ordered, in pertinent part, that Gabino shall have sole legal
and sole physical custody of the child.'®

On August 12, 2020, a COS regarding the Noticc of Entry was filed stating
that a copy of the Notice of Entry was mailed to Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield at
1216 Silver Lake Dr, Las Vegas, NV 89108 via certified mail.

On December 22, 2020, Notice of Entry of Order regarding the Order from
the August 6, 2020 hearing was filed. A COS was sent to both Ana Maria and Mr.
Edenfield via certified mail to 1216 Silver Lake Dr, Las Vegas, NV 89108,

C. Ana Maria left the state of Nevada in late 2020.

To Gabino’s knowledge,'' Ana Maria fled the state of Nevada sometime in
mid-2020. Unfortunately, Gabino was not able to obtain a copy of the order from
the August 6, 2020 hearing until December 22, 2020. On January 25, 2021, Gabino
filed an Ex Parte Request for a Pick Up Order. That the request for the emergency
pick-up order was based on the fact that Ana Maria had been refusing to remain in
contact with Gabino since December 2019 and was in violation of the Court Order
from the August 6, 2020 hearing. The pick up order was granted on January 25,
2021.

Through Ana Maria’s family members, Gabino discovered that she had
indeed fled to Florida with the child. However, by the time Gabino hired a private
investigator to locate her and the child, Ana Maria had fled from Florida as well.
On May 7, 2021, Gabino’s private investigator found Ana Maria had speeding
tickets in Seattle, Washington. Gabino only had the pickup order at the time, and
Washington police refused to enforce it until Gabino localized the order.

On July 2, 2021, Gabino filed for and obtained a Warrant to Take Physical
Custody of the child, which he served on Ana Maria in the state of Washington.

10 [d. at Page 6, Lines 25-28.
I Acquired through conversations with family members of Ana Maria.
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D. Ana Maria’s constant movement and lack of communication.

Ana Maria has not allowed Gabino to have contact with his child since 2019,
presumably because Gabino had taken the child when Ana Marna left the child with
her relatives in order to go be with her “clients” in Los Angeles.

Since leaving Nevada in the middle of 2020, Ana Maria had actively fled and
continually ran to a different state every time Gabino was able to track down her
location. The only reason Ana Maria finally decided to respond in this Court is
because she was tracked down and not given the opportunity to flee again before
being served in Washington.

E. Ana Maria’s Motion to Set Aside.

On November 23, 2021, Ana Maria’s current counsel filed a Notice of
Appearance and Ana Maria filed her Motion to Set Aside on November 24, 2021.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Ana Maria filed a motion to set aside *“‘all orders”
issued in this case. Noticeably absent from Ana Maria’s motion is any proof of any
kind, other than her self-serving affidavit, that she was never served.

In her Motion, Ana Maria claims that the child, Yasline, has resided with her
since the NC Order was entered'? and that Yasline continues to reside with her. This
is patenily false as Ana Maria had left Yasline in order to meet with her “clients”
and she left Yasline either unattended or with relatives.

Ana Maria also claims that she was rever served with any paperwork in the
present action until November 19, 2021. Ana Maria further claims that Gabino
“never made any real attempt” to notify her of the present action and that Gabino
“made no attempt” at a valid service of process. As an example, Ana Maria

mentions the AOS from April 16, 2020, referencing Paola. Ana Maria states that

12 The NC Order was filed on March 2, 2017,
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Paola was no longer residing at the address listed in that AOS as Paola had been
deported to Mexico prior to 2020.

Again, these claims by Ana Maria range from mislcading to outright being
false. While attempts to serve Paola were made, they were specifically directed by
this Court. A thorough reading of the procedural history of this case would have
revealed the same. Furthermore, Ana Maria had been residing in Nevada in 2019
and she did not move out of Nevada until she absconded with the child in mid-2020.
Gabino served her by certified mail at her residence located at 1216 Silver Lake Dr,
Las Vegas, NV 89108 on January 31, 2020, and he had served Ana Marta with
notice several times throughout 2020,

As stated above, on May 21, 2020, Gabino filed an AFFP in which Paola,
Ana Maria, and Mr. Edenfield were given notice of the hearing set for July 27, 2020.
The AFFP included a statement from the publisher of Nevada Legal News
confirming that a copy of Gabino’s Motion and Notice of Hearing were published
on the dates of April 23, 2020, April 30, 2020, May 7, 2020, May 14, 2020, and
May 21, 2020.

Ana Maria has presented no evidence that she was never served or that she
was not residing at 1216 Silver Laker Dr, Las Vegas, NV 89108 at the onset of this
case. If Ana Mana was not residing there, she has not presented any evidence of
where she was residing. Ana Maria absolutely cannot claim that “no atiempt” at a
valid service of process was made when there clearly were many attempts and she
actively avoided Gabino until she was found in the state of Washington.

F. Ana Maria has not provided any basis to grant her Motion.

Ana Maria has failed to make a prima facie case out in even the slightest
degree for 60(b) relief. Ana Maria’s highly suspicious conduct from late 2019
onward contradict her claim that she was unaware of this case. This is especially

true given that Ana Maria was living in Nevada from 2019 through 2020 and her
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known address was 1216 Silver Lake Dr, Las Vegas, NV §9108."% Furthermore,
there is no fraud, misrepresentation or misconduct by Gabino. In fact, the opposite
is true. As stated above, Ana Maria was not caring for the child, she left the state to
conduct her work as an escort, she immediately cut oft communications with
Gabino, she fled to Florida, and then she fled again and was finally found in
Washington.

Based on the foregoing facts, the Court should summarily deny Ana Maria’s
motion in its entirety without argument. The Court should also award Gabino the
sum of $2,500 in attorney’s fees for being forced to defend against a motion brought
without legal grounds and so clearly without merit.

11
ARGUMENT

A.  The Court Should Deny Ana Maria’s Motion for 60(b) Relief.

NRCP 60B states the following:

(b) Mistakes; Inadvertence; Excusable Neglect; Newly Discovered
Evidence; Fraud, Etc. On motion and upon such terms as are just, the
court may relieve a party or a party’s legal representative from a final
judgment, order, or proceeding for the following reasons: (1) mistake,
inadvertence, surprise, or excusable neglect; (2) newly discovered
evidence which by due diligence could not have been discovered in
time to move for a new trial under Rule 59(b); (3) fraud (whether
heretofore denominated intrinsic or extrinsic), misrepresentation or
other misconduct of an adverse party; (4) the judgment is void; or, (5)
the judgment has been satisfied, released, or discharged, or a prior
judgment upon which it i1s based has been reversed or otherwise
vacated, or it is no longer equitable that an injunction should have
prospective application. The motion shall be made within a
reasonable time, and for reasons (1), (2), and (3) not more than 6
months after the proceeding was taken or the date that written
notice of entry of the judgment or order was served. A motion under

> This is the address where Ana Maria was served multiple times.
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this subdivision (b) does not attect the tinality of a judgment or suspend
its operation. This rule does not limit the power of a court to entertain
an independent action to relieve a party from a judgment, order, or
proceeding, or to set aside a judgment for fraud upon the court. Writs
of coram nobis, coram vobis, audita querela, and bills of review and
bills in the nature of a bill of review, are abolished, and the procedure
for obtaining any relief from a judgment shall be by motion as
prescribed in these rules or by an independent action.

Ana Maria has not demonstrated that the order should be set aside under
NRCP 60(b). As the Court is aware, NRCP 60(b) authorizes the Court to set aside
an order “upon such terms as are just” if the movant can demonstrate mistake,
inadvertence, surprise or excusable neglect and that justice requires the Court Lo set
aside the order. While the Court has broad discretion in granting or denying a 60(b)
motion, justice certainly does not, in this case, require the Court to set aside all
orders. Ana Maria has failed to demonstrate a single basis under NRCP 60(b) in
support of her motion.

Ana Maria has failed to demonstrate mistake, excusable neglect, fraud or any
other basis upon which the Court could grant 60(b) relief. The only allegation that
Ana Maria makes in support of her claim is that she was never served and that
Gabino made no attempts to serve her. Both of her allegations are without basis.

The fact Ana Maria left the state of Nevada within several months after
Gabino initiated the instant case is telling. Ana Maria absconding with the child
does not excuse Ana Maria’s responsibility to participate in the proceedings of this
case. While Ana Maria claims that she was never served and that no attempts were
made to serve her, she certainly seemed to move around the country conveniently
enough after successful service was made in January 2020 at her known residence
and several times by publication in April and May 2020.

Additionally, Ana Maria failed to produce a single shred of collateral proof
of any kind that she was not residing in Nevada in 2019 or 2020. Specifically, not
at the residence located at 1216 Silver Lake Dr, Las Vegas, NV §9108.
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There simply is no evidence that Ana Maria was not given notice of the
instant case. Gabino therefore submits that Ana Maria has failed to make a prima
facie case for 60(b) relief, and the Court should therefore deny her motion.

B. The Court Should Award Gabino with Attorney’s I'ees and Costs in
the Amount of $2,500.

Gabino is requesting fees pursuant to EDCR 7.60, which allows the Court to
sanction a party for unreasonably and vexatiously multiplying proceedings and/or
presenting to the court a motion or an opposition to a motion which 1s obviously
frivolous, unnecessary or unwarranted. Ana Maria’s motion has unreasonably
increased Gabino’s costs by forcing him to file a response, and Ana Maria’s motion
is unquestionably without merit and she has failed to show a shred of proof that she
was not residing at 1216 Silver Lake Dr, Las Vegas, NV 89108 when multiple
notices were delivered there via certified mail. Furthermore, she has presented no
evidence to suggest she was not residing in Nevada when service was made by
publication multiple times in April and May of 2020.

In support of Gabino’s request for attorney’s fees, the following is an analysis
of the Brunzell factors for the Court’s consideration:

(1) the advocate’s qualities, including ability, training, education,
experience, professional standing, and skill,

All the attorneys at Mills & Anderson regularly practice in family taw and
regularly participate in CLE to stay current with the most recent changes in the law.
Mills & Anderson collectively has over 50 years of family law practice experience
and all three attorneys at the firm will likely be utilized at various stages in the case.
No disciplinary action of any kind has been taken against any of the firm’s lawyers
during that time.

(2)  the character of the work to be done; and (3) the work actually
performed by the lawyer;

15
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(abino’s attorneys have prepared all the substantive pleadings in this matter,
researched and cited all appropriate law, with correct analysis and application of the
law to the facts. They have met with Gabino in consultation and will be present at
all hearings in this matter. The firm’s actions have been in accordance to the highest
cthical practices and consistent with the Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct.

(4)  the result, whether the attorney was successful and what benefits were
derived.

Gabino anticipates a favorable decision by the Court as his requests are
consistent with and supported by Nevada law. Gabino therefore requests an award
of fees in the amount of $2,500.00.

1L
CONCLUSION

Based upon the above and foregoing, Defendant respectfully requests that
this Court enter the following Orders:

1. An Order of the Court denying Plaintift’s request to set aside any and all
judgement’s, orders, or other decisions in the present matter;
2. An Order of the Court denying Plaintiff’s request for attorney’s fees and

COSts;

3. An Order awarding Defendant with fees and costs in the amount of $2,500;
4. For any and other such further relief as this Court deems appropriate in the
premises. .
DATED this (5' " day of December 2021.

MILLS & ANDERSON

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6745

703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101
Altorney for Defendant
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AFFIDAVIT OF GABINO GUARDADO IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK )

GABINO GUARDADQO, being first duly sworn according to law, deposes
and says:

1. I have provided all the information, datcs and incidents for use in this
opposition and state under oath that the information contained therein and
which I have read, corrected and approved, is true and correct to the best of
my knowledge.

2. Based on my knowledge, belief and information and as though repeated
herein by my affidavit, I incorporate the facts and incidents of the opposition
as though fully reprinted in this affidavit.

WHEREFORE, I respectfully request that this Court grant the relief requested.
FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

(ebine Ginideds A

GABINO GUARDADO

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me

this )¢ day of Deesber 2021
—

/
NGTARY PUBLIC in and for Said
County of Clark, State of Nevada

h

/@ SLOARDO FAQIAY FINEGD ALVARGDD
{ B hotary Public-State of Hevacs

&

! APPT.NO, 20-3338-01
My Appt. Expires 12-15-2024

-17-
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Electronically Filed
12/16/2021 2:28 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
EXH C&wf ﬁu‘o’—/

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8" Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
attorneys@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT.NO.: X
)
VS. ) HEARING DATE: 1/24/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m.
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

DEFENDANT’S APPENDIX TO OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S
MOTION TO SET ASIDE, ET AL.

Defendant, BROOKE HEWITT, by and through his attorney, BYRON L.
MILLS, ESQ. of MILLS & ANDERSON hereby submits and files his Appendix to
the Opposition and Countermotion.

EXHIBIT BATE NO. |DESCRIPTION
A ] Ana’s profile page

-1-
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Case Number: D-20-602873-F




\B 2-5

Ana’s cmpiéyment for “Cuddling” with responses.

Submitted by:
MILLS & ANDERSON

03 S. 8th Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ. DATED
t No. 6745
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Electronically Filed
12/20/2021 10:14 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
Cos w p S

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745

DANIEL W, ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
attorneys@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT.NO.: X
)
V8. ) HEARING DATE: 1/24/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m.
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

The Undersigned, pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) and EDCR 8.05, does hereby
state and declare that on the 16" day of December, 20211, 1 served a true and correct
copy of the Defendant’s Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Set Aside ... and
Appendix by delivering via electronic service utilizing the Odyssey E-File and
Serve system to the person(s) identified below as follows:
Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)

John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com)
/S/ MARY O’DONNELL

An Employee of Mills & Anderson
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Case Number: D-20-602873-F



12/2021, 7:26 AM

Message

Mary O'Donnell

From:
Received:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

no-reply@efilingmail.tylertech.cloud
Thu 12/16/2021 2:29 PM
Mary C'Donnell

Notification of Service for Case:; D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant. for filing Opposition to Mation - OPPM (FAM), Envelope
Number: 9049552

Notification of Service

Case Number: D-20-602873-F

Case Style: Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant.
Envelope Number: 9049552

This is a naotification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted

document.

Case Number

D-20-602873-F

Case Style

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
Defendant.

Date/Time Submitted

12/16/2021 2:28 PM PST

Filing Type

Opposition to Motion - OPPM (FAM)

Filing Description

Opposition to Motion to Set Aside Order and Default and to Recall Warrant
and Countermotion for Attorney's Fees

Filed By

Jessica Titolo

Service Contacts

Ana Maria Salas:
Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)

John Lanning, Esq. {jlanning@issolaw.com)

Gabino Guardado:

Byron Mills {(modonnell@millsnv.com)

Served Document

Download Document

This link is active for 30 days.

Mary O'Donnell

Printed: Mon 12/20/2021 7:26 AM

hitps:f/cloud .amicusattorney. comiMiscella neousfPrint.aspx?itemType=EmQ%:hangeU niqueld=AAMKADVRY ZASNDQWLTVIOGMINDQOMy0O40GM ... 11



12116421, 3:18 PM Message

Mary O'Donnell

From: no-reply@efilingmail.tylertech.cloud
Received: Thu 12/16/2021 2:29 PM
To: Mary O'Donnell
Cc:
Notification of Service for Case; D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Subject: Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant, for filing Exhibits - EXHS {FAM), Envelope Number;
9049552

Notification of Service

Case Number: D-20-602873-F

Case Style: Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant.
Envelope Number; 9048552

This is a notification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted
document.

Case Number D-20-602873-F
Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
Case Style Defendant.
Date/Time Submitted 12/16/2021 2:28 PM PST
Filing Type Exhibits - EXHS {(FAM)

Filing Description Effendants Appendix to Opposition to Plaintiffs Motion to Set Aside, ET

Filed By Jessica Titolo

Ana Maria Salas:
Peter Isso, Esq. {peter@issolaw.com)

John Lanning, Esq. {jlanning@issclaw.com}
Service Contacts

Gabino Guardado:

Byron Mills (modonnell@millsnv.com)

Served Document Download Document

This link is active for 30 days.

Mary O'Donnell Printed: Thu 12/16/2021 3:18 PM

https:ﬁcioud.amicusattorney.comiMiscelIaneousfPr]nt.aspx?IlemType=Emaﬂ??:hangeUniqueld=AAMkADVhYzASNDQwLTVIOGMlN DOOMy040GM... 111
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Electronically Filed
12/20/2021 10:20 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
EXH w

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Ncvada Bar #6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
attorneys{@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT. NO.: X
)
VS. ) HEARING DATE: 1/24/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m.
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

DEFENDANT’S AMENDED APPENDIX TO OPPOSITION TO
PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO SET ASIDE, ET AL.
Defendant, GABINO GUARDADO, by and through his attorney, BYRON
L. MILLS, ESQ. of MILLS & ANDERSON hereby submits and files his Appendix|

to the Opposition and Countermotion.

EXHIBIT BATE NO. DESCRIPTION

A 1 Ana’s profile page

298

Case Number: D-20-602873-F
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21

22

23

24

25

B 2-5 Ana’s employment for “Cﬁddling” with responses.

Submitted by:
MILLS & ANDERSON

, [ MILLS, ESOQ. _DATED
' No, 6745 —
03 S. 8th Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant
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Electronically Filed
12/20/2021 10:28 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COUR
EXH C&wf ﬁu‘o’—/

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
attorneys@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.; D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT. NO.: X
)
VS, ) HEARING DATE: 1/24/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m.
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

DEFENDANT’S SECOND APPENDIX TO OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFE’S
MOTION TO SET ASIDE, ET AL.
Defendant, BROOKE HEWITT, by and through his attorney, BYRON L.
MILLS, ESQ. of MILLS & ANDERSON hereby submits and files his Appendix to

the Opposition and Countermotion.

EXHIBIT BATE NO. |DESCRIPTION

C 6 Ana Maria’s schedule of trips to see “clients”,
October-December 2019 (San Francisco & Los
Angeles)

-1-

307

Case Number: D-20-602873-F




23

24

25

26

27

23

f l 7 Texts between Ana and her cousin, December 2019

Submitted by:
MILLS & ANDERSON

/S/BYRON L. MILLS 12/20/21

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ. DATED
Bar No. 6745 -
703 S. 8th Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorney for Defendant
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EXHIBIT “D”



include me 0 that mess

8ut I didnt waot +o and she got
mad and called me 3 bad friend

That duy just got out of prison
but they tried to intimidate me
by tolking about shit they've done

1 just dont weant ié visk anything
by lett+ing people know anything
about me '

Say if she went back to Vegas
+rying 4o do anything, or +ried
anything here fo coli

.I cant let her know where I'm at

And 1doot wani- Yisk yosline

-y

312

 Yashine will be much safer in

Florida with my avat wheve no
one kaows who she 15. T'm goana
work something out for tyler to
get her to Floride

In the meantime I dont feel sife |
doing back ’

Once I find & new home, shouldn't
+ake me oo long, I'll move
everything back and will be able +o
hove yasiine again

But right now things ave oot ok

And if aoything bad héppens +o
me, I dido'+ kil myself

DEF 007
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Electronically Filed
12/20/2021 3:06 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
Ccos C&wf A"“““"‘"

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8% Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702} 386-0030
attorneys@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT.NO.: X
)
V8. ) HEARING DATE: 1/24/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m,
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

The Undersigned, pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) and EDCR 8.05, does hereby
state and declare that on the 20" day of December, 20211, I served a true and correct
copy of the AMENDED APPENDIX TO OPPOSITION AND
COUNTERMOTION by delivering via electronic service utilizing the Odyssey E-
File and Serve system to the person(s) identified below as follows:

Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)
John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com)
/S/MARY O’DONNELL

An Employee of Mills & Anderson

313

Case Number: D-20-602873-F




12120421, 10:24 AM Message

Mary O'Donnell

From: no-reply@efilingmail . tylertech.cloud
Received: Mon 12/20/2021 10:21 AM
To: Mary O'Donnell
Cc:
Motification of Service for Case: D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Subject: Plaintiff,vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant. for filing Amended - AMEN (FAM), Envelope Number:
9060939

Notification of Service

Case Number: D-20-602873-F

Case Style: Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant.
Envelope Number: 9060932

This is a notification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted
document.

Filing Detalls

Case Number D-20-602873-F

Case Style gna Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
efendant.

Date/Time Submitted 12/20/2021 10:20 AM PST

Filing Type Amended - AMEN (FAM)

Filing Description iefendant's Amended Appendix to Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Set
side, ET AL.

Filed By Jessica Titolo

Ana Maria Salas:

Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)

John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com)
Service Contacts
Gabino Guardado:

Byron Mills (modonneli@millsnv.com})

Document Details

Served Document Bownl Documen
This link is active for 30 days.

Mary O'Donnell Prinfted: Mon 12/20/2021 10:24 AM

https://ctoud.amicusalterney.camiMiscellansous/Print aspx ?temType=EmZdadchangeUniqueld=AAMKADVHYZASNDQWLTVIOGMINDQOMyO40GM. .. 1/1
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Electronically Filed
2/3/2022 10:34 AM
Steven D. Grierson

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
attorneys(@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT. NO.: X
)
VS, )
)
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

DEFENDANT’S MEMORANDUM OF FEES AND COSTS
Defendant, GABINO GUARDADQO, through his attorney, BYRON L,
MILLS, ESQ., of MILLS & ANDERSON submits her Memorandum of Costs for
attorney fees and costs incurred in this case pursuant to the hearing on January 24,
2022.

COSTS: $ 4275
ATTORNEY’S FEES: $2.870.00
TOTAL: $2,912.75

P8ty of 4

Case Number: D-20-602873-F
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were actually and necessarily incurred and are reasonable. Additionally, the
following is an analysis of the Brunzell v. Golden Gate National Bank, 85 Nev.
345 (1969) factors for the Court’s consideration:
(1) the advocate's qualities, including ability, training, education,
experience, professional standing, and skill,
All the attorneys at Mills & Anderson regularly practice in family law and
regularly participate in CLE to stay current with the most recent changes in the law.
Mills & Anderson collectively has over 50 years of family law practice experience
and all attorneys at the firm have been utilized at various stages in the case. No
disciplinary action of any kind has been taken against any of the firm’s lawyers
during that time.
(2)  the character of the work to be done;, and (3) the work actually
performed by the lawyer;
Gabino’s attorneys were successful as the Court denied the Ana’s Motion
to set Aside and request for child interview and upheld the three prior Orders filed
by this Court Furthermore, Ana was ordered to bring the child to Gabino and to
provide current address to the Court.
The firm’s actions have been in accordance to the highest ethical practices
and consistent with the Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct.
(4)  theresult, whether the attorney was successfill and what benefits
were derived.

As aresult of Ana’s actions, Gabino has incurred fees and costs to defend the
Motion filed by Ana. Ana alleged in her Motion she did not serve proper notice
nor did Gabino make any real attempt to serve her the documents. Thus, the Order
of the Court should be set aside. Gabino provided evidence in his Opposition of

the attempts made to locate and serve Ana. After review of the pleadings on file

P346 of 4
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and testimony, the Court found that Ana did not provide sufficient evidence to set
aside the Ordcrs of the Court.
The total amount including fees and travel costs is $2,312.75. Therefore,

Defendant requests a judgment in his favor in this amount.
DATED this 2~ day of February, 2022

Submitted by:
MILLS & ANDERSON ,

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
S#4te Bar #6745

703 S. 8™ Street
Las Vegas NV §9101
Attorney for Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF BYRON MILLS, ESQ., IN SUPPORT OF
MEMORANDUM OF FEES AND COSTS

STATE OF NEVADA )
: SS.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

1. I, BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ., am a Nevada-barred attorney representing the
plaintiff in this action.

2. Irepresent that the fees in the Memorandum of Fees and Costs were actually
and necessarily incurred and are reasonable based upon the location,
practice, and skill of the attorney.

3. The provided documents are actual billing statements received in this matter.

Pa34 7 of 4




l 4. [ certify that | prepared the above analysis according to the Brunzell factors

2 articulated in case law.

3 ||FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT. — T
4 Doy AT

5 ]yf/ﬁﬁ\] L. MILLS, ESQ.

)

7 |ISUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me
this Y7 day of February, 2022

P348 of 4




Electronically Filed
2/3/2022 10:34 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO
EXH Cﬁwj

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8th Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
Attorneys@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT.NO.: X
)
VS. )
)
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

DEFENDANT’S APPENDIX TO THE MEMORANDUM OF FEES OFAND
COSTS

Defendant, GABINO GUARDADQO, by and through his attorney, BYRON
L. MILLS, ESQ. of MILLS & ANDERSON hereby submits and files his Appendix

/17
1/
/1

319

Case Number: D-20-602873-F




to the MEMORANDUM OF FEES AND COSTS.

EXHIBIT |DESCRIPTION

1 | Billing statements for Mills & Anderson

Submitted by:

MILLS & ANDERSQN

TR - V4

B, AP

_B¥RON L. MILS, ESQ.
“Bar No. 6745
703 S. 8" Street
Las Vegas NV §9101

320




MirLs & ANDERSON

LAW GROUP

INVOICE
Gabino Guardado Inveice # 11301
5100 Ii. Tropicana Ave. #47-D File Number: 21-198 7/ 4.0
£ ] =L "r 3 2 - .
Las Vegas, NV 8912 Invoice Date: Fri, December 31, 2021
Re: GUARDADQ, Gabino 21-198
Current Charges:
Fees
Date Init. Description Hours Rate Amount
11/29/2021 BM  Telephonic consultation 0.7  400.00 280.00
with Gabino Guardado and
his wife Sue regarding
cuslody and recovery of a
child. Review of some of
the documents provided.
124372021 MA  Reviewed Opposing's 25 30000 750.00
Motion to Set aside and
started drafting opposition.
12/3/2021 MA  Reviewed case history. L8  300.00 240.00
12/6/2021] MA  Finished drafting 1.6 300.00 480.00
Opposition to Motion to Set
Aside.
12/13/2021 MA  Phone call with client 0.2 300.00 No Charge
regarding affidavit {or
Opposition 1o Motion to Set
Aside.
12/20/2021 BM  Prepared the Supplemental 0.2 400.00 80.00
Appendix,
Fees for Services 6 $1,830.00
Rendered
Expenses
Date Deseription Amount
12/1/2021 Filing Fees 42,75
Total Fees & Expcnses 51,872.75
Total New Charges $1,872.75
Account Statement:
Balance as of Last [nvoice 0.00
Retainer Balance 5.000.00

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO:
MILLS & ANDERSON

703 5. 8TH STREET

LAS VEGAS, NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
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Mirrs & ANDERSON

LAW GROUP

INVOICE
Gabine Guardado Invoice # Draft
5100 L. Tropicana Ave #47-D File Number: 21-198 /4.0
las Vegas, NV89122 .
= Invoice Date: Wed, February 2, 2022
Re: GUARDADO, Gabhino 21-198
Current Charges:
Fees
Date Init. Deseription Hours Rate Amount
1/24/2022 BM  Court appearance to opposc 1.4 40000 560.00
the Set Aside motion.
Discussions with clients
prior to the hearing.
Preparation.
21172022 BM  Drafted the Memorandum of 0.4 400.00 160.00

Fees and Costs. Prepared
the Appendix.

2/2/2022 BM  Dralied the order for the 0.8 400.00 320.00
1/24 hearing after review of
the hearing to get the time

slamps.
Fees for Services 2.6 $1,040.00
Rendered
Total New Charges $1,040.00
Account Statement:
Balance as of Last [nvoice 0.00
Retainer Balance 3,127.25
Current Charges 1,040.00
Retainers Applicd -1,040.00
Amount Due and Owing to Date 30.00

MAKE CHECKES PAYABLE TO:
MILLS & ANDERSON

703 5. 8TH STRELET

[LAS VEGAS, NV 89101

{702) 386-0030

322
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Electronically Filed
2{4/2022 10:45 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
COS Cﬁwj )ng-—'

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745
MILLS & ANDERSON
703 S. 8" Street

Las Vegas NV 89101
(702) 386-0030
attorneys(@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintift, ) DEPT.NO.: X
)
VS. )
)
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

The Undersigned, pursuant to NRCP 5(b}(2}(D) and EDCR 8.05, does hereby
state and declare that on the 3™ day of February, 2022, I served a true and correct
copy of the MEMORANDUM OF FEES AND COSTS and EXHIBIT
APPENDIX by delivering via electronic service utilizing the Odyssey E-File and
Serve system to the person(s) identified below as follows:

Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)
John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com)
/S/MARY O’DONNELL

An Employee of Mills & Anderson

323

Case Number: D-20-602873-F




213122, 11.23 AM

Message

Mary O'Donnell

From:
Received:
To:

Ce:

Subject:

no-reply@efilingmail.tylertech.cloud
Thu 2/3/2022 10:35 AM
Mary O'Donnell

Notification of Service for Case: D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs., Gabino Guardado, Defendant. for filing Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements -
MEMC {FAM), Envelope Number: 9292616

Notification of Service

Case Number: D-20-602873-F

Case Style; Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant,
Envelope Number: 8292616

This is a notification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted

document.

Case Number

D-20-602873-F

Case Style

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
Defendant.

DateITimé Submitted

2/3/2022 10:34 AM PST

Filing Type

Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements - MEMC (FAM)

Filing Description

Memorandum of Fees and Costs

Filed By

Jessica Titolo

Service Contacts

Ana Maria Salas:
Peter Isso, Esq. {peter@issolaw.com)

John Lanning, Esq. {Jlanning@issolaw.com)

Gabino Guardado:

Byron Mills {modonnell@millsnv.com)

Served Document

Download Document

This link is active for 30 days.

Mary O'Donnell

Printed: Thu 2/3/2022 11:23 AM

https:/fcioud.amicusattorney.com/Miscellansous/Print.as px?llemType=Ema®E4ha ngelniqueld=AAMKADVRY ZASNDOWLTVIOGMINDQOMy04OGM... 141



2{3/22, 11:23 AM

Message

Mary O'Donnell

From:
Received:
To:

Ccc:

Subject:

no-reply@efilingmail.tylertech.cloud
Thu 2/3/2022 10:35 AM
Mary O'Donnell

Notification of Service for Case: D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant. for filing Exhibits - EXHS {FAM}, Envelope Number:

Notification of Service

Case Number: D-20-602873-F

Case Style: Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant.
Envelope Number: 9292616

This is a notification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted

document.

Case Number

D-20-602873-F

Case Style

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
Defendant.

Date/Time Submitted

2/3/2022 10:34 AM PST

Filing Type

Exhibits - EXHS {FAM)

Filing Description

Exhibit Appendix to Memorandum of Fees and Costs

Filed By

Jessica Titolo

Service Contacts

Ana Maria Salas:
Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issctaw.com)

John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com})

Gabino Guardado:

Byron Mills (modonnell@millsnv.com)

Served Document

Download Bocument

This link is active for 30 days.

Mary O'Donnell

Printed: Thu 2/3/2022 11:23 AM

hltps:ﬁdoud,amicusattomey.comeisceIIaneousfPrint.aspx'?ItemType=Ema@@@ﬂangeu nigueld=AAMKADVHhYZASNDOWLTVIOGMINDQOMyD40GHM. .. 141
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BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745
DANIEL W, ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955
MILLS & ANDERSON
703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101
(702) 386-0030
attorneys@millsnv.com
Atrorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD }
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT. NO.: X
)
VS. ) HEARING DATE: 1/24/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m.
GABINO GUARDADOQO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

ORDER OF THE COURT

Pursuant to the Administrative Orders for Public Safety, the parties” Motions
were heard via the audio application, BlueJeans, on January 24, 2022. The Plaintiff,
ANA M. SALAS was not in attendance and counsel was unable to reach her.
THEODORE MEDLYN, ESQ. (Bar No. 15824) appeared on behalf of PETER
[SSO, ESQ., attorney for ANA SALAS. Plaintiff, TYLER EDENFIELD did not
participate in the proceedings. GABINO GUARDADOQO, was in attendance and
represented by BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ. of MILLS & ANDERSON.

THE COURT FINDS that it has subject matter jurisdiction over this case,
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and personal jurisdiction over the parties.
The Court provided a detailed history of the case as follows:

»  On January 24, 2020, Gabino filed his Petition for Registration
of Out of State Child Custody Determination secking to register the North Carolina
Order. In that order, the Carolina Court found that both mom and dad could not be
located (VT 10:25:05); therefore, the Court granted the maternal aunt and uncle,
Ana and Tyler, exclusive legal care and custody of Yasline (10:29:15). There were
allegations in this case that Paola Salas, natural mother, had absconded probation
and had substance abuse issues (VT 10:29:28).

»  On February 6, 2020, in Clark County, an Affidavit of Service
of the Registration Petition, Motion, and Notice of Hearing by substitute service on
Ethel Adalto, cousin of Tyler Edenfield (VT 10:29:46), as well as a January 31,
2020 Certificate of Mail and Certified Mail of those documents (VT 10:29:54).

» On July 29, 2020, the Order Regarding Registration of Out of
State Child Custody Determination was made in Clark County (VT 10:29:56). The
Court went through the Order and Mr. Mills correctly stated that Judge Burton was
extraordinarily thorough (VT 10:30:07). The hearings before in Clark County on
March 9, 2020 and July 27, 2020 related to the underlying facts and circumstances
and service (VT 10:30:23). Judge Burton was very adamant about effectuating
service (VT 10:30:28).

> On December 21, 2020 the Order was entered from the August
6, 2020 hearing. The Order noted that Paola Salas had been served by publication
and there were other affidavits of service by publication (VT 10:30:44). Judge
Burton made significant findings in that order and did a significant canvas of the
facts and circumstances underlying Gabino’s Motions and his request for sole legal
and sole physical custody (VT 10:30:59). The Order filed on December 21, 2020,
granted Gabino sole legal and sole physical custody of Yasline (VT 10:31:09).

> On January 4, 2021, the case was administratively reassigned
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and transferred to this Judge’s Court (VT 10:31:11).

» On January 26, 2021, after review of the case, Judge Mercer
executed an Order for Return of the child (VT 10:31:20).

» On July 2, 2021, a Warrant for Return of Child was issued by
this Court pursuant to NRS 125D.200 (VT 10:31:29). This was issued because
often tumes law enforcement will not assist based solely on a Pickup Order for
Return of Child (VT 10:31:40).

» The three Orders on file with this Court are the most current and
valid for this case (VT 10:31:53). The Court is bound by Judge Burton’s findings
in the December 21, 2020 Order where she made an extensive review of the facts
and circumstances and service (10:32:04). The three Orders that govern are:

. December 21, 2020- granting Gabino the sole legal and

sole physical custody of Yasline.

. January 26, 2021 — Order for Return of Child.

. July 2, 2021- Warrant for Return of Child.
VT 10:3206-10:32:19.

» In Nevada, there are no findings that either Paola Salas or

Gabino Guardado are unfit (VT 10:32:30). The North Carolina Order made
findings that were challenged by Gabino in Clark County stating that 1) his location
was in fact known, 2) he had been sending money, 3) he took a job in Oklahoma,
4) he was in contact with Ana at minimum, to include sending money. (VT 10:32:37
—10:32:51.). The Court is not inclined to set aside any of the orders 1in this case,
particularly the December 21, 2020 order made by Judge Burton (VT 10:33:03)
considering her extensive findings and the best interest factors set forth in NRS
125C.0035 (VT 10:33:10).

> The Court notes that it does not have any findings that either
parent is unfit although there have been allegations (VT 10:33:18). Obviously,

neither Ms. Salas nor Mr. Edenfield have chosen not to participate in this case. In
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the case where the Court possibly has fit parents, there is not a basis for Ms. Salas
to have custody based on Judge Burton’s extensive findings (VT 10:33:38).

WHEREFORE, based on the pleadings on file in the case and the history of
the case as detailed above,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Ana Salas’ Motion to Set Aside is
denied (VT 10:33:48).

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the three Orders of the Court, December
21, 2020, January 26, 2021, and July 2, 2021 shali remain the Orders of the Court
(VT 10:33:51).

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Ana file a Notice of Change of Address
and that she produce the child as ordered by the Court (VT 10:34:05).

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that oral request for Child Interview is not
granted at this time inasmuch as the Court does not believe it is warranted at this
time. If the child returns to Nevada and 1s in the care of Gabino, then perhaps if
counsel stipulate and agree to have the child interviewed, then the Court may
consider the request. However, the Court i1s not inclined as the child is 7 years of
age and she is of sufficient age or capacity to form and opinion as to her custody.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Attorney Mills shall file a Memorandum
of Fees and Costs with the Brunzell Affidavit along with billing statements shall be
served or before February 7, 2022, Attorney Isso will have until February 14, 2021

/1
1
/1
1
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to file an Objection. The Court has a set a decision on the fees for March 2, 2022 af

3:00a.m. VT 10:34:57-10:35:31.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Mr. Mills shall submit an Order to Mr.,

Isso for review and signature on or before February 7, 2022.

Submitted by:
MILLS & ANDERSON

17 /ﬂ)// ~ ]

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nefrada Bar #6745
03 S, 8™ STREET

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant

Dated this 15th day of February, 2022

CH i

83A CB7 9652 F888
Heidi Almase
District Court Judge

_Approved as to Form a

tm

egas, Nevada 891
Atgdrney for Plaintiff
a Salas
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle
Edenfield, Plaintiff.

VS,

Gabino Guardado, Defendant.

CASE NO: D-20-602873-F

DEPT. NO. Department X

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date; 2/15/2022
Byron Mills
Peter Isso, Esq.
Gabino Guardado
Ben Murphy
Molly Rosenblum, Esq.
Genesis Rodriguez
Carolann Allen
Kyle King, Esq.

John Lanning, Esq.

modonnell@millsnv.com
peter(@issolaw.com
sugueryr@yahoo.com
ben(@rosenblumlawlv.com
molly@rosenblumlawlv.com
genesisirosenblumlawlv.com
carolann@rosenblumlawlv.com
kyle(@rosenblumlawlv.com

jlanning(@issolaw.com

If indicated below, a copy of the above mentioned filings were also served by mail
via United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, to the parties listed below at their last

known addresses on 2/16/2022
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Kyle King

Tyler Edenfield

7375 S. Pecos Rd., Ste 101
Las Vegas, NV, 89120

1216 Silver Lake DR
Las Vegas, NV, 89108
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NEQO

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar #6745
MILLS & ANDERSON
703 S. 8" Street

[Las Vegas NV 89101
(702) 386-0030
attorneys@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

ANA M. SALAS AND
TYLER EDENFIELD

Plaintiff,
V8.
GABINO GUARDADO,

Defendant.

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DEPT. NO.: X

I e T

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

TO: ALL PARTIES IN INTEREST

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that
pursuant to N.R.C.P. Rule 58, an ORDER OF THE COURT was entered in the
above-entitled matter on February 15, 2022, copy of which is attached hereto.

DATED this 16" day of February, 2022.

MILLS & ANDERSON

/S/BYRON L. MILLS

CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F

Electronically Filed
2/16/2022 2:.08 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEE

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Bar No. 6745

703 South Eighth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Plaintiff
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Salas
D-20-602873-F

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

The Undersigned, pursuant to NRCP 5(b)}(2)(D) and EDCR 8.05, does hereby
state and declarc that on the 16™ day of February, 2022, 1 served a true and correct
copy of the NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER with the Order by delivering vig
electronic service utilizing the Odyssey E-File and Serve system to the person(s)
identitied below as follows:

Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)
John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com)
/S/ MARY O’DONNELL

An Employee of Mills & Anderson
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ORD

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar #6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8% Street

Las Vegas NV §9101

(702) 386-0030

attorneys@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT.NO.: X
)
VS, ) HEARING DATE: 1/24/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 am.
GABINO GUARDADQ, )
)
Defendant. )
)

ORDER OF THE COURT

Pursuant to the Administrative Orders for Public Safety, the parties” Motions
were heard via the audio application, BlueJeans, on January 24, 2022. The Plaintift,
ANA M. SALAS was not in attendance and counsel was unable to reach her.
THEODORE MEDLYN, ESQ. (Bar No. 15824) appeared on behalf of PETER
ISSO, ESQ., attorney for ANA SALAS. Plaintiff, TYLER EDENFIELD did not
participate in the proceedings. GABINO GUARDADO, was in attendance and
represented by BYRON L, MILLS, ESQ. of MILLS & ANDERSON.

THE COURT FINDS that it has subject matter jurisdiction over this case,

|
Case Numb3350-6028?3-F




and personal jurisdiction over the partics.
The Coutt provided a detailed history of the case as follows:

»  OnJanuary 24, 2020, Gabino filed his Petition for Registration
of Out of State Child Custody Determination seeking (o register the North Carolina
Order. In that order, the Carolina Court found that both mom and dad could not be
located (VT 10:25:05); therefore, the Court granted the maternal aunt and uncle,
Ana and Tyler, exclusive legal care and custody of Yasline (10:29;15), There were
allegations in this case that Paola Salas, natural mother, had absconded probation
and had substance abuse 1ssues (VT 10:29:28).

»  On February 6, 2020, in Clark County, an Affidavit of Service
of the Registration Petition, Motion, and Notice of Hearing by substitute service on
Ethel Adalto, cousin of Tyler Edenfield (VT 10:29:46), as well as a January 31,
2020 Certificate of Mail and Certified Mail of those documents (VT 10:29:54),

> On July 29, 2020, the Order Regarding Registration of Out of
State Child Custody Determination was made in Clark County (VT 10:29:56). The
Court went through the Order and Mr. Mills correctly stated that Judge Burton was
extraordinarily thorough (VT 10:30:07). The hearings before in Clark County on
March 9, 2020 and July 27, 2020 rclated to the underlying facts and circumstances
and service (VT 10:30:23). Judge Burton was very adamant about effectuating
service (VT 10:30:28).

» On December 21, 2020 the Order was entered from the August
6, 2020 hearing. The Order noted that Paola Salas had been served by publication
and there were other affidavits of service by publication (VT 10:30:44). Judge
Burton made significant {indings in that order and did a significant canvas of the
facts and circumstances underlying Gabino’s Motions and his request for sole legal
and sole physical custody (VT 10:30:59). The Order filed on December 21, 2020,
granted Gabino sole legal and sole physical custody of Yasline (VT 10:31:09).

> On January 4, 2021, the case was administratively reassigned

2]
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and transferved to this Judge’s Court (V1 10:31:11).
> On January 26, 2021, after review of the case, Judge Mercer
executed an Order for Return of the child (VT 10:31:20).
> On July 2, 2021, a Warrant for Retum of Child was issued by
this Court pursuant to NRS 125D.200 (VT 10:31:29). This was issued because
often times Taw enforcement will not assist based solely on a Pickup Order for
Return of Child (VT 10:31:40).
¥ The three Orders on file with this Court are the most current and
valid for this case {VT 10:31:53). The Court is bound by Judge Burton’s findings
in the December 21, 2020 Order where she made an extensive review of the Tacts
and circumstances and service (10:32:04). The three Orders that govern are:
° December 21, 2020- granting Gabino the sole legal and
sole physical custody of Yasline.
. January 26, 2021 — Order for Return of Child.
. July 2, 2021- Warrant for Return of Chuild.
VT 10:3206-10:32:19,
> In Nevada, there are no findings that either Paola Salas or
Gabino Guardado are unfit (VT 10:32:30). The North Carolina Order made
findings that were challenged by Gabino in Clark County stating that 1) his location
was in fact known, 2) he had been sending money, 3) he took a job in Oklahoma,
4) he was In contact with Ana at minimum, to include sending money. (VT 10:32:37
— 10:32:51.). The Court 1s not inclined to set aside any of the orders in this case,
particularly the December 21, 2020 order made by Judge Burton (VT 10:33:03)
considering her extensive findings and the best interest factors set forth in NRS
125C.0035 (VT 10:33:10).

N

> The Court notes that it does not have any findings that either
parent is unfit although there have been allegations (VT 10:33:18). Obviously,

neither Ms. Salas nor Mr. Edenfield have chosen not to participate in this case. In

337




the case where the Court possibly has fit parents, there is not a basis for Ms. Salas
to have custody based on Judge Burton’s extensive findings (VT 10:33:38).

WHEREFORE, based on the pleadings on file in the case and the history of
the case as detalled above,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Ana Salas’ Motion to Set Aside is
denied (VT 10:33:48).

I'TIS FURTHER ORDERED that the three Orders of the Court, December
21, 2020, January 26, 2021, and July 2, 2021 shall remain the Orders of the Court
(VT 10:33:51).

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Ana file a Notice of Change of Address
and that she produce the child as ordered by the Court (VT 10:34.05).

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that oral request for Child Interview is not
granted at this time inasmuch as the Court does not believe it is warranted at this
time. If the child returns to Nevada and is in the care of Gabino, then pethaps if
counsel stipulate and agree o have the child interviewed, then the Court may
consider the request. However, the Courtt is not inclined as the child is 7 years of
age and she 1s of sufficient age or capacity to form and opinion as to her custody.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Attorney Mills shall file a Memorandum
of Fees and Costs with the Brunzell Affidavit along with billing statements shall be

served or before February 7, 2022, Attorney Isso will have until February 14, 2021

1/
i
1/
/1
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to {ile an Objection, The Court has a set a decision on the fees for March 2, 2022 af
3:00 am. VT 10:34:57-10:35:31.
I'T IS FURTHER ORDERILED that Mr. Mills shall submit an Order to Mr,

Isso for review and signature on or before February 7, 2022,
Dated this 15th day of February, 2022
: |

83A CB7 9652 F888
Heidi Almase

tm

District Court Judge

Submitted by: Approved as to Form ax ';u mtent
MILLS & ANDERSON SO & ASSOCIATES, N2 o\

~7 7 / ,/,"/ }

f’ﬂ mf)/lé" 3
BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ. PETER IS
Nevada Bar #6745 Nevada

03 S, 8™ STREET 275 E 00
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 Las VYegas, Nevada 891
Attorney for Defendant Atsrney for Plaintiff

1a Salas
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Electronically Filed
2{28{2022 9:26 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEE

SUBT

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
4411 South Pecos Road

[Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lviamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER Case No:  D-20-602873-F
KYLE EDENFIELD, DeptNo: X

Plaintiff,
v.

GABINO GUARDADO,

Defendant.

SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEY
The Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas, hereby agrees to the substitution of Amanda
M. Roberts, Esq., or Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group, as attorney of record, in
VAN
WA
VA

VA

Page 1 of 4
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the above referenced matter, thereby terminating the services of Peter Isso, Esq., in
accordance with Eighth Judicial District Court Rule § 7.40 (b)}(1).

Dated this day of , 2022,

S A

Ana Maria Salas

I, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group, do

"
hereby consent to this Substitution of Attorney this 18% day of M

2022,

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY
LAW GROUP

by, (Mg M M

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294
4411 South Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada §9121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

VA
VA
WA
MV
VA

VA

Page 2 of 4
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I, Peter Isso, Esq., do hereby consent to this Substitution of Attorney this

28th day of February , 2022.

ISSO LAW FIRM

By:

Peter Isso, Esqg.

Peter Isso, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 14721
275 8. Eastern Ave., Unit 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

PH: (757) 903-5424

EMALIL: peter@issolawfirmlv.com

Page 3 of 4
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the i%day of February, 2022, I served by and through Wiz-Net
electronic service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2
for service of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing
SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEY to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.

Email: modonnell@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

By: C\k; \N\"\ N\

An Employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Taw Group

Page 4 of 4
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Colleen O'Brien

From: Peter {sso Esg. <peter@issolaw.com>
Sent: Monday, February 28, 2022 8:00 AM
To: Colleen O'Brien

Subject: Re: Ana Salas

Attachments: Substituticn of Attorney - Ana Salas.pdf

Please find attached the signed substitution of attorney,
All the best,

On Sat, Feb 26, 2022 at 3:36 PM Colleen Q'Brien <colleen@lvfamilylaw.com> wrote:

- Good aftemoon.
Attached please find the Substitution of Attomey.
Please sign the same and email it back to me.

Thank you,

- Uollgen O7#rien
Paralegal to Amanda M. Roberts, Esqg.
ROBERTS STOFFLEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
' 4411 8. Pecos Road
. (Office is located on a small side street, University)
Las Vegas, Nevada 89121
PH: (702) 474-7007

~ TAX: (702) 474-7477
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WEB: Ivfamilylaw.com

PLEASE REPLY ALL WHEN RESPONDING TO EMAILS

The confents of this electronic mail message ore confidentiol in nature and intended solely for the individual us addressed. Should you receive this elecironic
maif message in ervor, please delete this electronic mail message and/or contact Raberis Stoffel Family Law Group immediaiely at the number Nsted aboue,

Due to COVID-19 and Governor Sisolak’s mandate for the closure of non-essential businesses, Roberts Stoffel Family
Law Group will be engaging in sociat distancing and taking measure to fimit contact with the public. That means that
we are prohibited from in-person meetings with members of the public. The firm will remain operational at the
present time, but we will be working remotely with limited services in the office. Therefore, ali clients meeting and
consultations wilt be made via telephone. We can be reached via telephone at {702} 474-7007.

Cur hours will aiso be modified as follows: Mondays through Thursdays: 8:00 a.m. te 5:00 p.m., and Fridays: 8:00
a.m. te 4:00 p.m.

Peter Isso, Esq.
Partner

Isso & Associates Law Firm, PLI.C
T (702) 756-1582 | https://www.issolaw.com/
8275 S Eastern Ave, Suite 200 | Las Vegas, NV 89123

CONFIDENTLAL. Flds e-nait message and the informaton it contains are intended o be pavileged and confidental communications protecred from disclosure. Any filefs) or
attachment(s) transmirted with it aee transmitted based on a ceasonable expectation of privacy consistent with ABA Foemal Opinion No. 99-413. Any disclosure, distabution, copying, or
ase of this informaton by anyone other than the intended recipient, regardless of address or routing, is stdedy prohibired, If you have received this e-mall message in eror, ploase notfy
the sender by c-mall at peterf@issolaw com and peemanendy delete this message. Personal messages express only the view of the sender and are not attobutable to Tsso 8 Associares Lasw
Fizm, PLLC, [RS Cirenlar 230 Disclosare: I'o ensere compliance with reguirements imposed by (e ERS, we inform you that any U5, federal 1zx advice contained in this cornmunication
{including any attachments} s not intended or wrdtten to be vsed, and cannot be used, for the purpose of {2} avoiding penaltes under the Internal Revenue Code or () promaoting,
marketing, or recnmmending 1o anather parey any trxnsaction or mateer addressed herein,
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Electronically Filed
2{28{2022 5:03 PM
Steven D. Grierson

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

IROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
4411 South Pecos Road

[.as Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER Case No:  D-20-602873-F
KYLE EDENFIELD, DeptNo: X

Plaintiff,
V.

GABINO GUARDADO,

Defendant.

OBJECTION TO DEFENDANT’S MEMORANDUM OF
FEES AND COSTS FILED FEBRUARY 3, 2022

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Ana Salas, by and through her attorneys of
record, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group, and
hereby files this Objection to Defendant’s Memorandum of Fees and Costs filed
February 3, 2022.

VA

WA

Page 1 of 4
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Pursuant to EDCR § 5.507 (a), a Party is required to file and serve a
Financial Disclosure Form. The language of the rule reads that a Party “must be
filed in support of any motion or countermotion that includes a request to establish
or modify child support, spousal support, fees and allowances, exclusive possession
of a residence, or any matter involving money to be paid by a party.” This is
mandatory not discretionary. Moreover, pursuant to EDCR § 5.507 (d), the
Financial Disclosure Form “within 3 days of the filing of the motion,
countermotion, or opposition it supports, and may only be filed in open court with
leave of the judge upon a showing of excusable delay.”

In this matter, Gabino filed an Opposition and Countermotion on December
16,2021. As such, he was required to file a Financial Disclosure Form on or before
December 21, 2021 (as the deadline fell on a weekend). Gabino did not meet the
deadline to file the Financial Disclosure Form; in fact, Gabino filed no
Financial Disclosure Form and made no assertions within his Opposition and
Countermotion regarding there being no material change to his financial
situation. {EMPHASIS ADDED}

Ana would argue that filing of the Financial Disclosure Form is the method
by which the Court gains jurisdiction to award financial relief and is the reason is
mandatory not discretionary. She would further argue, the failure to file a Financial

Disclosure Form divests the Court with jurisdiction to hear requests for financial

Page 2 of 4
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relief. Based upon the failure to file a Financial Disclosure Form, Ana would argue

that Gabino’s request for attorney fees and costs cannot be considered by the Court

and must be denied. Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev, 1367, 970 P.2d 1071 (1998).
Based upon the foregoing, Ana requests the Court deny Gabino’s request for

attorney fees and costs.
M
DATED this ?'8 ~~ day of February, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

By: mwm M@@

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State of Nevada Bar No. 9294
4411 South Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Salas
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the Q& day of February, 2022, I served by and through Wiz-Net
electronic service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2
for service of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing
Objection to Defendant’s Memorandum Of Fees And Costs Filed February 3, 2022,
to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.

Email: modonnell@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

(_\\’g"' :\__“) ¢ ) ,
By: \ L ATSNO A /™~

An Emgloyeé\ﬁf Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group
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Electronically Filed
3M1/2022 T:13 FM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
MOTN C&wf ,3««-

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
4411 S. Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

GABINO GUARDADO, Time of Hearing:

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER % Case No:  D-20-602873-F
KYLE EDENFIELD, ) Dept No: X
Plaintiff, i
V. )
i Date of Hearing:
)
)

Defendant. Oral Argument Requested: Yes

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, ASSERTING LACK
OF SUBJECT MATTER AND PERSONAL JURISDICTION;
DECLARATION OF ANA SALAS.

TO: Defendant, Gabino Guardado, through his Attorney, Byron Mills, Esq.

YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS
MOTION WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE
UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN
FOURTEEN (14) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION.
FAILURE TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE
COURT WITHIN FOURTEEN (14) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS
MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE REQUESTED RELIEF BEING
GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT A HEARING PRIOR TO THE
SCHEDULED HEARING DATE.
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COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Ana Salas, by and through her attorney of
record, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group, and

hereby moves the Court for the following:

1. Ana’s request for the Court to reconsider the set aside should be
granted;
2. Ana asserts that Nevada lacked subject matter jurisdiction which she

requests the Court confirm; and
3. Any and all related relief the Court deems just and proper.
DATED this 1* day of March, 2022,

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

By: /s/ Amanda M. Roberts. Esq.

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

4411 S. Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMALIL: efile@lvtamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I.
Statement of Facts

kJ

The minor child at 1ssue in this action 1s Yasline Guardardo-Salas (“Yasline’
or “minor child”’}), born on February 9, 2014. Yasline is currently eight (8) years
old. The Plaintiffs, Ana Salas (*“‘Ana”) and Tyler Edenfield (“Tyler”), are the
Maternal Aunt and Uncle of the minor child at issue. The Defendant, Gabino
Guardado (“Gabino™), 1s the alleged Natural Father of the of the minor child at
1ssue in this action. The Natural Mother of the minor child 1s Paola Leticia Salas
(“Paola™).

North Carolina Procedural History

On or about March 2, 2017, Ana and Tyler received a custody Order which
awarded them sole legal and physical custody of the minor child, Yasline. Pursuant
to said Order, Ana and Tyler had been primary caretakers of Yasline since October
13, 2015. That means that Yasline was twenty (20) months old at the time she was
placed in the care of Ana and Tyler. The temporary custody agreement was signed
when Ana retrieved the child from Paola. Ana recognizes it was Notarized in
Oklahoma because that is where Paola, Gabino and the child were located.

At that time, Paola and Gabino were in Oklahoma. Gabino alleged in his
Motion that he was living with Paola in North Carolina and then got an opportunity

to work in Oklahoma for thirty-six (36) months. Thereafter, Gabino left North
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Carolina for Oklahoma in 2015. Again, to be clear, that was when Yasline was
approximately twenty (20) months old, and he intended to be away from her until
she was approximately four and a half (4 ') years old.

It is unclear when Gabino left Oklahoma and made Nevada his residence, but
he testified it was sometime in 2016. It is unknown why Gabino took no steps to
establish a relationship with Yasline after returning from working in Oklahoma.
Moreover, when Gabino knew that Paola was deported in 2017, it again is not clear
the reason he took no action to locate and establish a relationship with Yasline.

Ana alleges that Gabino was not regularly in contact with her regarding the
minor child. Although he paid minimal support for the child, it stopped in
approximately March of 2016. Moreover, Ana alleges that from on or about
October 13, 2015 to March of 2016, Gabino’s contact with Yasline was sporadic.

Nevada Procedural History

On January 24, 2020, Gabino filed a Petition for Registration of Out of State
Child Custody Determination pursuant to NRS § 125A.465. However, Gabino
failed to comply with VRS § 125A.465 (1)(b) because the Out of State Order
was not certified which is required by statute; moreover, Gabino’s Petition for
Registration of Out of State Child Custody Determination failed to list Ana or
Tyler as required by VRS § 125A.465 (1)(c). {EMPHASIS ADDED}
Therefore, Gabino’s filing was defective and should have been dismissed by the

Court. As the certified Order is required for registration, the failure to comply with
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the requirements means that the Court did not gain jurisdiction over the Out of State
Custody Determination from North Carolina.

Moreover, a review of the records shows that the Petition for Registration of
Out of State Child Custody Determination pursuant to NRS § 125A.465 was not
properly served upon Ana. To be clear, the Petition for Registration of Out of State
Child Custody Determination must be served NRS § 125A.465 (4) as follows, “The
person seeking registration of a child custody determination pursuant to subsection
1 shall serve notice, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, upon
each parent or person who has been awarded custody or visitation identified
pursuant to paragraph (¢) of subsection 1.”' The Certificate of Service filed in this
matter states that Gabino’s Motion, Exhibits and Notice of Hearing were served;
however, the Petition for Registration of Out of State Child Custody Determination
was not included. The USPS tracking information for that Certified Mailing shows
that the article was never mailed and tracking did not occur through the USPS.?
NRS § 125A.465 (4) does not allow for personal service and the Court does not
obtain jurisdiction unless every procedural requirement is met including service by
Certified Mailing. The language of the statute says “shall” which 1s mandatory not

discretionary.

" Certified mailing is vastly different than personal service because it requires the person, not
someone ¢lse, sign the documents. That is why Certified mailing is required, similar to a
guardianship action with proof of returned mail. In this matter, this never happened.

2 A copy of the USPS information is attached to the companion filing as Exhibit “1” and is
hereby fully incorporated herein by reference.
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On January 27, 2020, Gabino filed a Notice of Petition for Registration of
Out of State Custody Determination (“Notice). This filing was 1n accordance with
NRS § 125A.465 (5). Again, the Notice was required to be served pursuant to NRS
§ 125A.465 (4) via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested. Service through this
method was mandatory not discretionary. Again, the Notice was never properly
served and thus, the Court has never gained subject matter jurisdiction in this
matter.

On March 9, 2020, there was a hearing before Judge Burton. It appears that
Judge Burton failed to recognize the lack of service of the Petition and Notice as
required by NRS § 125A.465 (4) and (5).

To be clear, NRS § 125A.465 does not allow personal service. The statutory
requirements are very specific and require Certified Mail, Return Receipt
Requested. Moreover, there was no request by the Court to modify the service
method upon Ana or Tyler. The only alternative service that was granted by the
Court was upon Paola.

Fuactual History

When Yasline was born, Ana and Paola were not in regular contact.
However, after learning that Paola had a third child, Ana decided to establish a
relationship with the child and reconnect with Paola. As such, over the next year,
Ana would have Yasline on the weekends. At the time, Ana worked a traditional

schedule as an office administrator and left her free on the weekends. Ana did not
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maintain a calendar, but claims she regularly had Yasline in her care on the
weekends.

In November of 2014, Ana lost her employment. At that time, Ana relocated
to North Carolina where she met her husband, Tyler, who was stationed in the
military. Ana could not visit as frequently with Yasline, and she admittedly lost
contact with Paola.

In September of 2015, Ana was in Las Vegas visiting friends. While in Las
Vegas, Ana received a telephone call from Paola who alleged that she was living in
Oklahoma City with Gabino and the minor child, staying in a hotel. Paola claimed
that the parents were having difficulty caring for Yasline, Ana even talked to
Gabino who claimed that Paola was struggling mentally and threatened to hurt
Yasline. As such, it was discussed that Ana would travel to Oklahoma City to pick-
up Yasline and she would live with Ana and Tyler.

Ana and her friend Monique drove from North Carolina to Oklahoma. Upon
arriving, Paola told her that Gabino wanted to be at work when Yasline was picked
up so they arranged to meet for breakfast. On October 10, 2015, Pacla, Ana and
Monique met for breakfast and exchanged Yasline. Paola signed the document
which gave Ana temporary custody so she could provide it to the military and be
able to properly care tor the child.

Initially, Paola and Gabino would call to chat with Yasline. However, as

time went along the communication grew more sporadic and decreased.
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Eventually, Ana discussed with both Paola and Gabino the need for formal Orders.
[t was agreed she would file and neither would contest it. Ana’s Counsel indicated
that she needed and address and when she asked Paola and Gabino told her they
were homeless, still moving from motel to motel. Shortly after the Court
proceedings, March 2, 2017, communication ceased from both Gabino and Paola.’

On or about June 23, 2018, Ana and Tyler decided to separate. Ana moved
to California with Yasline where her extended family and friends were located, and
Tyler remained in North Carolina. Initially, Ana lived with her Aunt for a short
time while she sought employment. Unfortunately, Ana’s Aunt was living in a
restricted community and she could not stay long. Therefore, Ana moved in with a
friend in San Bernadino. Ana set up her business with the goal to relocate to Las
Vegas.

On or about April 10, 2019, Ana came to Nevada and rented an apartment in
Henderson. Ana reconnected with family who had been out of her life for years
due to being placed in foster care. Ana received communication from her cousin,
Claudia, that she wanted to introduce her child to Yasline. Ana craved family
relationship and wanted the kids to know each other so she agreed to a sleepover.

Ana noticed that Yasline was different upon being returned, but she could not put

3 Ana subsequently learned from her grandmother that Paola had been deported; however, Ana
does not know the reason that Gabino stopped communicating with her or Yasline.
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her finger on the change in the child.* To the best of Ana’s knowledge, Claudia did
not provide care for Yasline in March of 2019 which means Gabino could not have
had contact with Yasline.

As Ana and Tyler continued to maintain a joint Order, Ana agreed for Tyler
to have custodial time with Yasline from July of 2019 through November of 2019.
Tyler has never lived in the State of Nevada. Upon being discharged from the
military, Tyler relocated to California where he has resided since that time.

In November of 2019, Yasline returned to Ana’s care. Shortly thereafter,
Ana moved in with her Aunt Vanessa who had reached out to her from her Father’s
side of the family. Ana would travel to California for work and Aunt Vanessa
would care for Yasline. Aunt Vanessa’s daughter went to school and brought lice
home from school which caused an infestation. Ana was treating the lice with
special shampoo and cleaning linens according to the direction.

When Ana got to California, Aunt Vanessa called and said that she was at the
grocery store with Yasline when Gabino randomly showed up with the police who
told her to turn over the child to Gabino. Ana immediately returned to Nevada and
contacted the police about retrieving the minor child. Ana never had any contact
with Child Protective Services (““CPS”) while in Nevada and disputes the

allegations made by Gabino’s attorney that CPS was involved with the minor child.

* Ana now believes that Claudia allowed Gabino to have contact with Yasline without her
knowledge or consent in violation of the North Carolina Order.
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After providing the Order the police assisted Ana in retrieving Yasline who told her
that Aunt Vanessa told her to put on her shows and they then went to the store. A
man she did not know then approached, Aunt Vanessa said it Yasline’s Father. The
child said, “she told me he was my Dad, but he wasn’t, and she let him take me.”
Yasline alleged that he forced her to sleep in his bed that night with him. Yasline
was not taken for medical treatment by Gabino for the lice.

After this happened, Ana realized she could not trust Aunt Vanessa or her
extended family including Claudia. Therefore, Ana and Vanessa went to Florida
with Tyler’s Mother who provided a safe place to stay. Eventually, Ana found
employment and relocated with Yasline to Seattle, Washington. Ana was not
residing at 1216 Silver Lake Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada 89108 and Gabino knew
full well that she was not present at that address and Tyler had never lived at that
address.

On November 19, 2021, there was a knock on the door and a police officer
handed Ana the paperwork regarding custody of Yasline. Ana was distraught upon
receiving the paperwork because Yasline does not know Gabino and has very little
contact with him since she began living with Ana and Tyler. Yasline does not
understand the situation with parents and believes Ana to be her “Mom” and Tyler
to be her “Dad” because they are the parents who have raised her as long as she can

remember.

WA
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II.
LEGAL ARGUMENT

EDCR § 5.513 (a) requires a Motion for Reconsideration being filed within
fourteen (14) days of service of the Notice of Entry of Order. In this matter, the
Notice of Entry of Order was filed on February 16, 2022. As such, Ana is within
her timeframe to file the Motion for Reconsideration.

At the hearing in this matter on January 24, 2022, the Court indicated a
mistaken belief that service had been proper upon Ana. The Court further believed
that prior Judge Burton had followed Nevada law when 1ssuing the Orders on
December 21, 2020 and this Court’s subsequent Order on January 26, 2021 and
July 2, 2021. That is simply not the case as set forth herein. The Nevada Court
never gained jurisdiction for Orders to be issued in this matter, and those
Orders should be set aside pursuant to VRCP § 60 (b)(4) because the
judgments are void. {EMPHASIS ADDED}

The manner in which the Court in Nevada gains jurisdiction of an Out of
State Custody Order is very specific. If the procedural requirements are not met,
any Orders issued are defective and lack enforceability. The defects are set forth

herein below as follows:

Relevant Law | Requirement | Compliance

Certified copy

NRS 125465 | 0fthe Order 1

upon :
(1)b). initiations of | COMPliance.

action.
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Relevant Law

Requirement

Compliance

NRS
125A.465 (2).

Court required
to verify
certified copy
before filing.

No
compliance.

NRS
125A.465 (4).

Must serve a
Notice "by
registered or
certified mail,
return receipt
requested[.]

No
compliance.

NRS
125A.475 (2).

The Nevada
Court may
recognize and
enforce, not
modify unless
the Court has
initial or
emergency
jurisdiction.

No
compliance.

NRS
125A.525 (2).

In order to
1ssue a
warrant, the
Court must
take testimony
of the
Petitioner or
other witness.

No
compliance.
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Counsel reviewed the videos and alleges that there are numerous irregularities in

the proceedings:

On July 27, 2020, Gabino and his Counsel appeared via Blue
Jeans. Gabino was questioned by the Court and his Counsel,
and the interpreter had to be reminded by the Court to interpret
exactly what was being said. (Time Stamp: 11:20:00). It was
not until the end of the hearing that the Court recognized the
interpreter was not certified. {Time Stamp: 11:29:40).

On July 27, 2020, Gabino testified he had not had physical
custody with the minor child except for one (1) overnight on or
about December 10, 2019. (Time Stamp: 11:18:30).

The Court did not sign the Order to register the Out of State
Order until July 29, 2020.

On August 6, 2020, Gabino provided contradictory testimony
claiming now that he physical contact with Yasline in March of
2019. (Time Stamp: 10:13:05).

Throughout pleadings, Gabino provided contradictory
information. He claimed to be working in the oilfield for thirty-
six (36) months. On July 27, 2020, he testified he was gone for
thirty-six (36) months. (Time Stamp: 11:08:47). However, Ana
did not take custody until approximately October of 2015 and
thirty-six (36) months would have been October of 2018. Yet
on August 6, 2020, he testified he moved to Nevada in 2016.
(Time Stamp: 10:48:25).

A review of the video shows additional problems with the
interpreter. On August 6, 2020, at time stamp 10:33:28 a
question 1s asked about whether family members had concerns
about the child before December of 2019. Gabino quietly says
“no” and the interpreter does not say it on the record.
Thereafter, the audio is muted at approximately 10:34:38 and
watching the screen the interpreter can be seen making gestures
to Counsel with her hand across her neck instructing Counsel
not to ask that line of question. The question being asked is the
reason Gabino waited until December of 2019 to take any
action. Again, at time stamp 10:40:44, the interpret says
“Counsel” after getting Gabino’s response and can be seen on
the screen making the same gestures her hand across her neck
instructing Counsel not to ask that line of question.
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According to the Nevada Supreme Court, “adjudicating custody and
visitation in the absence of subject matter jurisdiction is void.” Vaile v. Eighth
Judicial District Court, 118 Nev. 262, 44 P.3d 506 (2002). The Supreme Court
went on to explain the UCCJEA law regarding child custody determinations to be
met for the Court to have subject matter jurisdiction. /d. Further, the Supreme
Court has indicated that “subject matter jurisdiction cannot be waived and may be
raised at any time, or sua sponte by a court of review.” Id.

In this matter, it is undisputed that there is a valid Order from North Carolina
that granted Ana and Tyler sole legal and physical custody of Yasline. At the time,
Yasline has been exclusively in Ana and Tyler’s care from 2015 to 2017, without
attempts by either Paola or Gabino to retrieve the minor child from Ana and Tyler.
It is also undisputed that sometime after receipt of the Order from North Carolina,
Ana and then Tyler relocated from North Carolina. Thus, neither a parent or person
acting as a parent, or the minor child remain in North Carolina. Therefore, North
Carolina lost continuing exclusive jurisdiction.

The issue in this case i1s whether the State of Nevada gained subject matter
jurisdiction over the issue of child custody. Pursuant to NRS § 125A.465, the Order
from North Carolina could be registered in the State of Nevada if the Court has
jurisdiction pursuant to NRS § 125A.305 through 125A.395. NRS § 125A.325
provides that the State of Nevada cannot modify an Order for a different State

unless this Court has jurisdiction pursuant to NRS § 125A.305 which provides that
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Nevada must be the “home state of the child on the date of the commencement of
the proceeding or was the home state of the child within 6 months before the
commencement of the proceeding . . . VRS § 125A.085 (1) defines home state is
defined as the place where the child has lived “for at least 6 consecutive months,
including any temporary absence from the state, immediately before the
commencement of a child custody proceeding.”

In this matter, Ana asserts that Nevada was not the “home state” of the minor
child. Ana did not come to Nevada with the child until April 10, 2019. Contrary to
Gabino’s allegations, Ana and Yasline were not in Nevada in 2017. Moreover, Ana
came from California where Tyler resided and he continued to exercise his
custodial rights under the Order to Yasline with her being in his care from July of
2019 to November of 2019. Therefore, the child had not been in the State of
Nevada for six (6) months and Nevada lacked subject matter jurisdiction.

Moreover, Ana would assert

III.
CONCLUSION

Therefore, based upon the foregoing, Ana requests this Court issue the

following:
1. Ana’s request for the Court to reconsider the set aside should be
granted;
2. Ana asserts that Nevada lacked subject matter jurisdiction which she

requests the Court confirm; and
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3. For any and all relief the Court deems just and proper.
DATED this 1* day of March, 2022,

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

By: /s/ Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

4411 S. Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada §9121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas
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DECLARATION OF ANA SALAS

Comes Now, Plaintiff, ANA SALAS, declares under penalty of perjury that
the following is true and correct to her knowledge and belief:

1. I am the Plaintiff in the above entitled action and am competent to
testify to the matters contained herein. Declarant makes this declaration in support
of the foregoing Plaintiff’s Motion For Reconsideration, Asserting Lack Of Subject
Matter And Personal Jurisdiction; Declaration Of Ana Salas. Hereinafter referred
to as “Motion.”

2. I have read the foregoing Motion and can certify and attest that the
facts disputing the claim. The facts stated herein are true of Declarant’s own
knowledge, except for those matter stated upon information and belief, and as to
those matters, Declarant believes them to be true.

FURTHER YOUR DECLARANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

DATED this 1* day of March, 2022,

/s/ Ana Salas
ANA SALAS
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the 1% day of March, 2022, I served by and through Wiz-Net electronic
service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service
of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing Plaintiff’s
Motion For Reconsideration, Asserting Lack Of Subject Matter And Personal
Jurisdiction; Declaration Of Ana Salas, to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.

Email: modonnell@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

By: /s/ Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.
Employee of Roberts Stoifel Family Law Group
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Electronically Filed
3M1/2022 T:13 FM
Steven D. Grierson

MOFI CLERK OF THE couzg
DISTRICT COURT ,

FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Ana Maria Salas
Plaintiff/Petitioner

Case No., D-20-802873-F

Dept. X
Gabino Guardado MOTION/OPPOSITION
Defendant/Respondent FEE INFORMATION SHEET

Notice: Motions and Oppositions tiled after entry of a final order issued pursuant to NRS 125, 125B or 125C are
subject to the reopen filing fee of 525, unless specifically excluded by NRS 19.0312. Additionally, Motions and
Oppositions filed in cases initiated by joint petition may be subject to an additional filing fee of 129 or $37 in

accordance with Senate Bill 388 of the 2015 Legislative Session.

Step 1. Select either the $25 or $0 filing fee in the box below,

$25 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form 1s subject to the S25 reopen fee.
-OR-

$0 The Motion/Opposition being tiled with this form is not subject to the $25 reopen
fee because:

The Motion/Opposition 1s being filed before a Divorce/Custody Decree has been
entered.

The Motion/Opposition is being filed solely to adjust the amount of child support
—__ established in a final order.

The Motion/Opposition is for reconsideration or for a new trial, and is being filed
within 10 days after a final judgment or decree was entered. The final order was
entered on .
Other Excluded Motion ({must specify)

Step 2. Select the $0, $129 or $57 filing fee in the box below.
v |50 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $129 or the

$57 fee because:
The Motion/Opposition is being filed in a case that was not initiated by joint petition.

[_]The party filing the Motion/Opposition previously paid a fee of $129 or $57.
_OR-

$129 The Motion being filed with this form is subject to the $129 fee because it is a motion
to modity, adjust or enforce a final order.

-OR-

$57 The Motion/Opposition being filing with this form is subject to the $57 fee because it is
an opposition to a motion to modify, adjust or enforce a final order, or it is a motion
and the opposing party has alrcady paid a fcc of $129.

Step 3. Add the filing fees from Step 1 and Step 2.

¢ total filing fee for the motion/opposition I am filing with this form is:
v |s0 ﬁms ﬁ$57 | |ss2[ |s129] |s154

Party ﬁllng MotionfOpposition: Plaintiff, Via Amanda M. Roberts, Esq. Date 3172022

Signature of Party or Preparer /s/ Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.
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Electronically Filed
3M1/2022 T:13 FM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
NCOA C&wf ,3««-

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
4411 South Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER% Case No:  D-20-602873-F
KYLE EDENFIELD, DeptNo: X

Plaintiff,
V.

GABINO GUARDADO,

Defendant.

L N R L S e S

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF ADDRESS FOR PLAINTIFF
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas, address has
AA
AA
A
AR
AR

VA
Page 1 of 3
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changed and she now resides at:

903 Nineth Ave Unit #51
Seattle, Washington 98104

DATED this 1* day of March, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

By: /s/ Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

4411 S. Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMALIL: efile(@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

Page 2 of 3
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the 1 day of March, 2022, I served by and through Wiz-Net electronic
service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service
of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing NOTICE OF
CHANGE OF ADDRESS FOR PLAINTIFF, to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.

Email: modonnell@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

By:/s/ Amanda M. Roberts. Esq.
Employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group

Page 3 of 3
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CLERK QF THE {OURT
ORDR
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER KYLE Case No: D-20-602873-F
EDENFIELD, Dept. No: X

Plaintiff,

DATE OF HEARING: 03/02/2022

V8. TIME OF HEARING: CHAMBERS
GABINO GUARDADO,

Defendant

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT AWARD FOR ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS

On January 24, 2022, this matter was scheduled for hearing on Plaintiff Ana (Ana) Marig
Salas” November 24, 2021 Motion to Set Aside Order and Recall Warrant. On December 16
2021, Defendant Gabino (Gabino) Guardado filed his Opposition and Countermotion for Award
for Attorney Fees and Costs. See Order of the Court (filed Februaryl5, 2022). Following
review of the pleadings and papers and after hearing oral argument, Ana’s motion was denied
and Gabino was granted leave to file a Memorandum of Fees and Costs in support of his request
tor award for attorney fees and costs. Id. at p.4, 11.18-20 and p.5, 11.1-2,

This case involves the Registration of an Out of State Child Custody Determination. Seg
Petition for Registration of Out of State Child Custody Determination (filed January 24
2020)(judgment from Craven County, North Carolina). This matter involves one (1) minot
child: YASLINE ALEJANDRA GUARDADO-SALAS, born Fcbruary 9, 2014, The partics i)
this case are Ana and Tyler (Tyler) Kyle Edenfield, matemal aunt and maternal uncle {by

marriage), Gabino is Yaslinc’s natural tathcr., Paolo (Paola) Salas is Yasline’s natural mother
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Neither Tyler nor Paelo participated in the instant matter. The governing order in this matter
following substantial proceedings in the prior judicial department, was filed December 21, 202
and granted Gabino SOLE LEGAL and SOLE PHYSICAL CUSTODY of Yasline. See Order
from August 6, 2020 Hearing at p.6, 11.25-28 (filed December 21, 2020).

On February 3, 2022, Gabino filed his Memorandum of Fees and Costs requesting award
for $2,870 in attorney fees plus $42.75 in specified fees for a total award of $2,912.75. Also on
February 3, 2022, Gabino filed an exhibit which included attorney-client billing inveices i
support of the sums alleged. Gabino’s counsel additionally set forth the required Brunzell v)

Golden Gate Nat’] Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 455 P.2d 31 (1969) analyses.

On February 28, 2022, Ana filed her Objection asserting Gabino failed to file the EDCR
5.507(d) required Financial Disclosure Form (FDF) in support of his request for financial relief.
Based on the defect, Ana contends this Court has no jurisdiction to consider a financial award for
attorney fees and costs.

While the Court FINDS Gabino has set forth a statutory and/or rule basis for award for
attorney fees and costs, included the required Brunzell factors and prevailed, Ana correctly notes
an underlying defect precluding any award.

EDCR 5.507 provides, in pertinent part, as tollows:

“A financial disclosure must be filed within 3 days of the filing of the motion
countermotion, or opposition it supports, and may only be filed in open court with
leave of the judge upon a showing of excusable delay.”

A Financial Disclosure Form is not only required by EDCR 5.507(d) where a party
requests financial relict but is nccessary for this Court to conduct a review of the partics]

respective financial position prior to making any award for attorney fees and costs. See Miller v|

Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005). The Court FINDS Gabino’s most recent Financial
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Disclosure Form was filed on September 1, 2020 or, well in excess of the six-month requirement
set forth at EDCR 5.507(f){party not required to file an updated FDF if s/he makes an affirmative
assertion a FDF has been filed within previous six months and there has been no material changg

in financial circumstances).
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. The Court FINDS Gabino has set forth a statutory and/or rule basis for award foi

. The Court FINDS Gabino's request for award for attorney fees in the requested sum of

. However, because Gabino failed to file a Financial Disclosure Form 1n support of hig

. The Court FINDS, in her November 24, 2021 Motion to Set Aside et al., Ana requested

ACCORDINGLY, THE COURT FINDS AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

attorney fees and costs to include the required Brunzell analysis.

$2,870 plus an additional $42.75 for specified fees reasonable.

request for award for fees and costs pursuant to EDCR 5.507(d), this Court is unable tg

perform the required Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005) analysis of

the parties’ respective financial circumstances.

an award for attorney fees and costs and similarly failed to file a Financial Disclosurg
Form in support of her request for financial relief.
Based on the foregoing, the Court DENIES Gabine’s countermotion for award for

attorney fees and costs.

Dated this 2nd day of March, 2022

168 91C 8FC9 AB4B
Heidi Almase
District Court Judge

3
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CSERY

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle
Edenfield, Plaintiff.

VS,

Gabino Guardado, Defendant.

CASE NO: D-20-602873-F

DEPT. NO. Department X

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial Dastrict
Court. The foregoing Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date; 3/2/2022
Amanda Roberts, Esq.
Byron Mills
Peter [sso, Esq.

Gabino Guardado

Ben Murphy

Molly Rosenblum, Esq.
Genesis Rodriguez
Carolann Allen

Kyle King, Esq.

John Lanning, Esq.

efile@lvfamilylaw.com
modonnell@millsnv.com
peter{@issolaw.com
sugueryr@yahoo.com
ben@rosenblumlawlv.com
molly(@rosenblumlawlv.com
genesis@rosenblumlawlv.com
carolann(@rosenblumlawlv.com
kyle{@rosenblumlawlv.com

jlanning(@issolaw.com
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[f indicated below, a copy of the above mentioned filings were also served by mail
via United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, to the parties listed below at their last
known addresses on 3/3/2022

Kyle King 7375 S. Pecos Rd., Ste 101
Las Vegas, NV, 89120

Tyler Edenfield 1216 Silver Lake DR
Las Vegas, NV, 89108
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Electronically Filed
3/2/2022 3:39 FM
Steven D. Grierson

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
4411 South Pecos Road

I.as Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER} Case No: D-20-602873-F
KYLE EDENFIELD, Dept No: X

Plaintiff,
\'2

GABINO GUARDADO,

Defendant.

ERRATA TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION,
ASSERTING LACK OF SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION AND
PERSONAL JURISDICTION; DECLARATION OF ANA SALAS
COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas, by and through her attorney
of record, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group and
hereby submits this errata to Plaintiff’s Motion For Reconsideration, Asserting
Lack Of Subject Matter Jurisdiction And Personal Jurisdiction; Declaration Of

VA

VA

Page 1 of 3
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Ana Salas. Specifically the following errors should be corrected as follows
(denoted in bold herein):

I At page 10, line 10 1s should state that “Therefore, Ana and Yasline
went to Florida with Tyler’s Mother who provided a safe place to
stay.”

2. At page 15, line 18 the language which says, “Moreover, Ana would
assert” was erroneously included and should have been removed.

DATED this ﬂ day of March, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

4411 S. Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efite@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

Page 2 of 3
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the _,_l_m day of March, 2022, 1 served by and through Wiz-Net electronic
service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service
of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R_, the foregoing ERRATA TO
PLAINTIFE’S MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, ASSERTING LACK
OF SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION AND PERSONAL
JURISDICTION; DECLARATION OF ANA SALAS, to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.

Email: modonneli@milisnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

By:/s/ Amanda M. Roberts, Fsq.
Employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group

Page 3 of 3
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Electronically Filed
3/2/2022 3:39 FM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEE

NEQJ

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State of Nevada Bar No. 9294

IROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
1411 S. Pecos Road

[.as Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER Case No:  D-20-602873-F
KYLE EDENFIELD, DeptNo: X

Plaintiff,
V.

GABINO GUARDADQO,

Defendant.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT AWARD FOR
ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS

A
VA
A
VA
A

W\

Page t of 3
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that an Order Denying Defendant Award for
Attorney Fees and Costs was duly entered on the 2% day of March 2022, a copy of
which is attached hereto and fully incorporated herein.

s o
DATED this day of March, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

sy: U 0’

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

4411 S. Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

Page 2 of 3
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the _'2__ day of March, 2022, 1 served by and through Wiz-Net electronic
service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service
of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing Notice of Entry
of Order Denying Defendant Award for Attorney Fees and Costs (with Order
attached herein), to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.

Email: modonnell@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

By: (bk\l. M\A

Employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group

Page 3 of 3
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Electronically Filed
03/02/2022 8|5F AM,
m .Qgﬁﬁt—an_
CLERK OF THE DOURT
ORDR
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER KYLE Case No: D-20-602873-F
EDENFIELD, Dept. No: X
Plaintiff,
DATE OF HEARING: 03/02/2022
vs. TIME OF HEARING: CHAMBERS
GABINO GUARDADO,
Defendant

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT AWARD FOR ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS

On January 24, 2022, this matter was scheduled for hearing on Plaintiff Ana (Ana) Marig
Salas’ November 24, 2021 Motion to Set Aside Order and Recall Warrant. On December 16;
2021, Defendant Gabino (Gabino) Guardado filed his Opposition and Countermotion for Award
for Attomey Fees and Costs. See Order of the Court (filed Februaryl5, 2022). Following
review of the pleadings and papers and after hearing oral argument, Ana’s motion was denied
and Gabino was granted leave to file a Memorandum of Fees and Costs in support of his reques
for award for attorney fees and costs. Id. at p.4, 11.18-20 and p.5, 11.1-2.

This case involves the Registration of an Out of State Child Custody Determination. Sed
Petition for Registration of Out of State Child Custody Determination (filed January 24,
2020)(judgment from Craven County, North Carolina). This matter involves one (1)} minot
child: YASLINE ALEJANDRA GUARDADO-SALAS, born February 9, 2014. The parties i
this case are Ana and Tyler (Tyler) Kyle Edenfield, maternal aunt and maternal uncle (by

marriage). Gabino is Yasline’s natural father. Paolo (Paola) Salas is Yasline’s natural mother
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Neither Tyler nor Paolo participated in the instant matter. The governing order in this matter
following substantial proceedings in the prior judicial departinent, was filed December 21, 2020
and granted Gabino SOLE LEGAL and SOLE PHYSICAL CUSTODY of Yasline. See Ordes
from August 6, 2020 Hearing at p.6, 11.25-28 (filed December 21, 2020).

On February 3, 2022, Gabino filed his Memorandum of Fees and Costs requesting award
for $2,870 in attorney fees plus $42.75 in specified fees for a total award of $2,912.75. Also o
February 3, 2022, Gabino filed an exhibit which included attorney-client billing invoices in
support of the sums alleged. (Gabino’s counsel additionally set forth the required Brunzell v

Golden Gate Nat’ Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 455 P.2d 31 (1969) analyses.

On February 28, 2022, Ana filed her Objection asserting Gabino failed to file the EDCR
5.507(d) required Financial Disclosure Form (FDF) in support of his request for financial relief.
Based on the defect, Ana contends this Court has no jurisdiction to consider a financial award for
attorney fees and costs.

While the Court FINDS Gabino has set forth a statutory and/or rule basis for award for
attorney fees and costs, included the required Brunzell factors and prevailed, Ana correctly notes
an underlying defect precluding any award.

EDCR 35.507 provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

“A financial disclosure must be filed within 3 days of the filing of the motion]
countermotion, or opposition it supports, and may only be filed in open court with
leave of the judge upon a showing of excusable delay.”

A Financial Disclosure Form is not only required by EDCR 5.507(d) where a party
requests financial relief but is necessary for this Court to conduct a review of the parties].

respective financial position prior to making any award for attorney fees and costs. See Miller v

Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005). The Court FINDS Gabino’s most recent Financial
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Disclosure Form was filed on September 1, 2020 or, well in excess of the six-month requirement
set forth at EDCR 5.507(f)(party not required to file an updated FDF if s/he makes an affirmativd
assertion a FDF has been filed within previous six months and there has been no material changg

in financial circumstances).
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. The Court FINDS Gabino has set forth a statutory and/or rule basis for award foi

. The Court FINDS Gabino’s request for award for attorney fees in the requested sum ot

. Based on the foregoing, the Court DENIES Gabino’s countermotion for award for

ACCORDINGLY, THE COURT FINDS AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

attorney fees and costs to include the required Brunzell analysis.

$2,870 plus an additional $42.75 for specified fees reasonable.
However, because Gabino failed to file a Financial Disclosure Form in support of hig
request for award for fees and costs pursuant to EDCR 5.507(d), this Court is unable to

petform the required Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005) analysis of

the parties’ respective financial circumstances.
The Court FINDS, in her November 24, 2021 Motion to Set Aside et al., Ana requested
an award for atiormey fees and costs and similarly failed to file a Financial Disclosure

Form n support of her request for financial relief.

attorney fees and costs.

Dated this 2nd day of March, 2022

168 91C 8FC9 AB4B
Heidi Almase
District Court Judge

3
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CSERV

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Ana Maria Saias, Tyler Kyle
Edenfield, Plaintiff.

VS,

Gabino Guardado, Defendant.

CASE NO: D-20-602873-F

DEPT. NO. Department X

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial District
Court. The foregoing Order was served via the court’s electronic eFile system to all
recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date: 3/2/2022
Amanda Roberts, Esq.
Byron Mills
Peter Isso, Esq.

Gabino Guardado

Ben Murphy

Molly Rosenblum, Esq.
Genesis Rodriguez
Carolann Allen

Kyle King, Esq.

John Lanning, Esq.

efile@lvfamilylaw.com
modonnell@millsnv.com
peter@issolaw.com
sugueryr@yahoo.com
ben@rosenblumlawlv.com
molly@rosenblumlawlv.com
genesis@rosenblumlawlv.com
carolann{@rosenblumiawlv.com
kyle@rosenblumlawlv.com

jlanning@issolaw.com
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I indicated below, a copy of the above mentioned filings were also served by mail
via United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, to the parties listed below at their last
known addresses on 3/3/2022

Kyle King 7375 S. Pecos Rd,, Ste 101
Las Vegas, NV, 89120

Tyler Edenfield 1216 Silver Lake DR
Las Vegas, NV, 89108
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Electronically Filed
3/4/2022 3:15 FM
Steven D. Grierson
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COU
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA w ’3,.

oo ok

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Case No.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintift.
VS, Department X

(Gabino Guardado, Defendant.

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Plaintiff s Motion For Reconsideration, Asserting Lack Of
Subject Matter And Persenal Jurisdiction; Declaration Of Ana Salas in the above-entitled
matter 1s set for hearing as follows:

Date: April 11,2022
Time: 10:00 AM
Location: RJC Courtroom (3B

Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the

Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/Joshua Raak
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/Joshua Raak
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
oo ok
Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Case No.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintift.
VS, Department X

(Gabino Guardado, Defendant.

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Plaintiff s Motion For Reconsideration, Asserting Lack Of
Subject Matter And Personal Jurisdiction; Declaration Of Ana Salas in the above-entitled
matter 1s set for hearing as follows:

Date: April 11, 2022
Time: 10:00 AM
Location: RJC Courtroom (3B

Regional Justice Center

200 Lewis Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/Joshua Raak
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/Joshua Raak
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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Electronically Filed
3/8/2022 12:39 PM
Steven D. Grierson

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
4411 South Pecos Road

[.as Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAILL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER )} CaseNo: D-20-602873-F
KYLE EDENFIELD, } DeptNo: X
)
Plaintiff, )
v. )
)
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
EX PARTE APPLICATION

FOR AN ORDER SHORTENING TIME
COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Ana Salas, by and through her attorney of
record, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group, and
hereby moves this Court for an Order Shortening Time on the Plaintiff’s Motion
For Reconsideration, Asserting Lack Of Subject Matter And Personal Jurisdiction;
Declaration Of Ana Salas.

A

Page 1 of 13
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This Application is based upon the Affidavit of Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.
Moreover, this Application is made and based upon all the papers, pleadings and
records on file herein, as well as the Points and Authorities attached hereto.

. g-ﬂ\
DATED this 0~ day of March, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROU?P

By: Q/W/Wm

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294
4411 South Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lviamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Salas

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L
Points and Authority

EDCR § 5.513 states, the request for an Order Shortening Time may be
sought through ex parte means. The request must be accompanied by an Affidavit
explaining the need for the request for an Order Shortening Time. The request for
an Order Shortening Time can only be granted after the Motion has been served
absent exigent circumstances {the Motion was served in this matter pursuant to the

“Certificate of Service” attached to the Motion). Ana’s Motion has been served.

Page 2 of 13
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The minor child at issue in this action is Yasline Guardardo-Salas (“Yasline”
or “minor child”), born on February 9, 2014, Yasline is currently eight (8) years
old. The Plaintiffs, Ana Salas (“Ana”) and Tyler Edenfield (“Tyler”), are the
Maternal Aunt and Uncle of the minor child at issue. The Defendant, Gabino
Guardado (“Gabino™), is the alleged Natural Father of the of the minor child at
issue in this action. The Natural Mother of the minor child is Paola Leticia Salas
(“Paola™).

In September of 2015, Ana was in Las Vegas visiting friends. While in Las
Vegas, Ana received a telephone call from Paola who alleged that she was living in
Oklahoma City with Gabino and the minor child, staying in a hotel. Paola claimed
that the parents were having difficulty caring for Yasline, Ana even talked to
Gabino who claimed that Paola was struggling mentally and threatened to hurt
Yasline. As such, it was discussed that Ana would travel to Oklahoma City to pick-
up Yasline and she would live with Ana and Tyler.

Ana and her friend Monique drove from North Carolina to Oklahoma. Upon
arriving, Paola told her that Gabino wanted to be at work when Yasline was picked
up so they arranged to meet for breakfast. On October 10, 2015, Paola, Ana and
Monique met for breakfast and exchanged Yasline. Paola signed the document
which gave Ana temporary custody so she could provide it to the military and be

able to properly care for the child.
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Initially, Paola and Gabino would call to chat with Yasline. However, as
time went along the communication grew more sporadic and decreased.
Eventually, Ana discussed with both Paola and Gabino the need for formal Orders.
It was agreed she would file and neither would contest it. Ana’s Counsel indicated
that she needed an address and when she asked, Paola and Gabino told her they
were homeless, still moving from motel to motel. Shortly after the Court
proceedings, March 2, 2017, communication ceased from both Gabino and Paola.

On or about March 2, 2017, Ana and Tyler received a custody Order which
awarded them sole legal and physical custody of the minor child, Yasline. Pursuant
to said Order, Ana and Tyler had been primary caretakers of Yasline since October
13, 2015. That means that Yasline was twenty (20) months old at the time she was
placed in the care of Ana and Tyler. The temporary custody agreement was signed
when Ana retrieved the child from Paola. Ana recognizes it was Notarized in
Oklahoma because that is where Paola, Gabino and the child were located.

On January 24, 2020, Gabino filed a Petition for Registration of Out of State
Child Custody Determination pursuant to NRS § 125A.465.

On January 27, 2020, Gabino filed a Notice of Petition for Registration of
Out of State Custody Determination (“Notice™), and a Motion to Modify Custody,
et. al. (“Motion”).

AR
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In December of 2019, Ana moved in with her Aunt Vanessa who had reached
out to her from her Father’s side of the family. Ana would travel to California for
work and Avnt Vanessa would care for Yasline. Ana believed that Aunt Vanessa
was a trusted family member who was a proper adult to care for the minor child.

While Ana was out of town, Aunt Vanessa called and said that she was at the
grocery store with Yasline when Gabino randomly showed up with the police who
told her to turn over the child to Gabino. Ana immediately returned to Nevada and
contacted the pelice about retrieving the minor child. Ana never had any contact
with Child Protective Services (“CPS”) while in Nevada and disputes the
allegations made by Gabino’s attorey that CPS was involved with the minor child.
After providing the Order the police assisted Ana in retrieving Yasline who told her
that Aunt Vanessa told her to put on her shoes and they then went to the store. A
man she did not know then approached, Aunt Vanessa said it Yasline’s Father. The
child said, “she told me he was my Dad, but he wasn’t, and she let him take me.”
Yasline alleged that he forced her to sleep in his bed that night with him. Yasline
was not taken for medical treatment by Gabino for the lice.

After this happened, Ana realized she could not trust Aunt Vanessa or her
extended family. Therefore, Ana and the minor child went to Florida with Tyler’s
Mother who provided a safe place to stay. Eventually, Ana found employment and

relocated with Yasline to Seattle, Washington. Ana was not residing at 1216 Silver
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Lake Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada 89108 and Gabino knew full well that she was not
present at that address and Tyler had never lived at that address.

On November 19, 2021, there was a knock on the door and a police officer
handed Ana the paperwork regarding custody of Yasline. Ana was distraught upon
receiving the paperwork because Yasline does not know Gabino and has very little
contact with him since she began living with Ana and Tyler. Yasline does not
understand the situation with parents and believes Ana to be her “Mom” and Tyler
to be her “Dad” because they are the parents who have raised her as long as she can
remember.

The hearing 1s set in this matter on April 11, 2022, On March 7, 2022,
Defendant’s Counsel provided notice that he intends to travel to Washington and
retrieve the minor child despite the pending Motion and arguments regarding the
validity of the Nevada Orders. As set forth herein, since 2015, the minor child
has spent little more than twenty-four (24) hours with Defendant and does not
know it. It would be emotionally detrimental for the Court’s Orders to be
acted upon without further involvement of this Court. {EMPHASIS ADDED}
Therefore, good cause exists for this matter to be set on an Order Shortening Time.
VA
VA

WA
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1.
Conclusion

Based on the aforementioned reasons, it is respectfully requested that this
request for an Order Shortening Time be granted.
DATED this (gn) day of March, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

sy OMande M. 2pbugh

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

4411 South Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas
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AFFIDAVIT OF AMANDA M. ROBERTS, ESQ.

STATE OF NEVADA )

$S
County of Clark )
1. I, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., am the attorney in the above referenced

matter and 1 can attest to the below reference facts as being true and correct to the
best my knowledge as represented by my client.

2. The minor child at issue in this action is Yasline Guardardo-Salas
(“Yasline” or “minor child”), born on February 9, 2014. Yasline is currently eight
(8) years old. The Plaintiffs, Ana Salas (“Ana”} and Tyler Edenfield (“Tyler”), are
the Maternal Aunt and Uncle of the minor child at issue. The Defendant, Gabino
Guardado (“Gabino™), is the alleged Natural Father of the of the minor child at
issue in this action. The Natural Mother of the minor child is Paola Leticia Salas
(“Paola”).

3. In September of 2015, Ana was in Las Vegas visiting friends. While
in Las Vegas, Ana received a telephone call from Paola who alleged that she was
living in Oklahoma City with Gabino and the minor child, staying in a hotel. Paocla
claimed that the parents were having difficulty caring for Yasline, Ana even talked
to Gabino who claimed that Paola was struggling mentally and threatened to hurt
Yasline. As such, it was discussed that Ana would travel to Oklahoma City to pick-

up Yasline and she would live with Ana and Tyler.
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4. Ana and her friend Monique drove from North Carolina to Oklahoma.
Upon arriving, Paola told her that Gabino wanted to be at work when Yasline was
picked up so they arranged to meet for breakfast. On October 10, 2015, Paola, Ana
and Monique met for breakfast and exchanged Yasline. Paola signed the document
which gave Ana temporary custody so she could provide it to the military and be
able to properly care for the child.

5. Initially, Paola and Gabino would call to chat with Yasline. However,
as time went along the communication grew more sporadic and decreased.
Eventually, Ana discussed with both Paola and Gabino the need for formal Orders.
It was agreed she would file and neither would contest it. Ana’s Counsel indicated
that she needed an address and when she asked, Paola and Gabino told her they
were homeless, still moving from motel to motel. Shortly after the Court
proceedings, March 2, 2017, communication ceased from both Gabino and Paola.

6. On or about March 2, 2017, Ana and Tyler received a custody Order
which awarded them sole legal and physical custody of the minor child, Yasline.
Pursuant to said Order, Ana and Tyler had been primary caretakers of Yasline since
October 13, 2015. That means that Yasline was twenty (20) months old at the time
she was placed in the care of Ana and Tyler. The temporary custody agreement

was signed when Ana retrieved the child from Paola. Ana recognizes it was
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Notartzed in Oklahoma because that is where Paola, Gabino and the child were
located.

7. On January 24, 2020, Gabino filed a Petition for Registration of Out of
State Child Custody Determination pursuant to NRS § 125A.465.

8. On January 27, 2020, Gabino filed a Notice of Petition for Registration
of Out of State Custody Determination (“Notice™), and a Motion to Modify
Custody, et. al. (“Motion”).

9, In December of 2019, Ana moved in with her Aunt Vanessa who had
reached out to her from her Father’s side of the family. Ana would travel to
California for work and Aunt Vanessa would care for Yasline. Ana believed that
Aunt Vanessa was a trusted family member who was a proper adult to care for the
minor child.

10.  While Ana was out of town, Aunt Vanessa called and said that she was
at the grocery store with Yasline when Gabino randomly showed up with the police
who told her to turn over the child to Gabino. Ana immediately returned to Nevada
and contacted the police about retrieving the minor child. Ana never had any
contact with Child Protective Services (“CPS”) while in Nevada and disputes the
allegations made by Gabino’s attorney that CPS was involved with the minor child.
After providing the Order the police assisted Ana in retrieving Yasline who told her

that Aunt Vanessa told her to put on her shoes and they then went to the store. A
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man she did not know then approached, Aunt Vanessa said it Yasline’s Father. The
child said, “she told me he was my Dad, but he wasn’t, and she let him take me.”
Yasline alleged that he forced her to sleep in his bed that night with him. Yasline
was not taken for medical treatment by Gabino for the lice.

11.  After this happened, Ana realized she could not trust Aunt Vanessa or
her extended family. Therefore, Ana and the minor child went to Florida with
Tyler’s Mother who provided a safe place to stay. Eventually, Ana found
employment and relocated with Yasline to Seattle, Washington. Ana was not
residing at 1216 Silver Lake Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada 89108 and Gabino knew
full well that she was not present at that address and Tyler had never lived at that
address.

12. On November 19, 2021, there was a knock on the door and a police
officer handed Ana the paperwork regarding custody of Yasline. Ana was
distraught upon receiving the paperwork because Yasline does not know Gabino
and has very little contact with him since she began living with Ana and Tyler.
Yasline does not understand the situation with parents and believes Ana to be her
“Mom” and Tyler to be her “Dad” because they are the parents who have raised her
as long as she can remember.

13.  The hearing is set in this matter on April 11, 2022. On March 7, 2022,

Detendant’s Counsel provided notice that he intends to travel to Washington and
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retrieve the minor child despite the pending Motion and arguments regarding the
validity of the Nevada Orders. As set forth herein, since 20135, the minor child has
spent little more than twenty-four (24) hours with Defendant and does not know it.
It would be emotionally detrimental for the Court’s Orders to be acted upon without
further involvement of this Court. Therefore, good cause exists for this matter to be
set on an Order Shortening Time.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Qo Qppud)”

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

Subscribed and Sworn to before me this
Z™  day of March, 2022.

Frowpahall

Notary Public in and for said County
And State

SHAYNA HALL
NCTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA

] ;
3 Y
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the 8_‘}43-:_ day of March, 2022, T served by and through Wiz-Net electronic
service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service
of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing Ex Parte
Application for Order Shortening Time, to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.

Email: modonnell@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

sy Gt Y

Employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group
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Electronically Filed
3/9/2022 4:59 FM
Steven D. Grierson

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
1411 South Pecos Road

[.as Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Case No:  D-20-602873-F
ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER Dept No: X
KYLE EDENFIELD,

Plaintiff,

V.

GABINO GUARDADO,

Defendant.

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER FOR A TEMPORARY
RESTRAINING ORDER PURSUANT TO EDCR § 5.520

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Ana Salas, by and through her attomey of
record, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., and hereby moves this Court for an Ex Parte
Order for a Temporary Restraining Order Pursuant to EDCR § 5.520.

M
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This Application for an Ex Parte Order for a Temporary Restraining Order
Pursuant to EDCR § 5.520 is based upon the Affidavit of Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.
Moreover, this Application is made and based upon all the papers, pleadings and
records on file herein, as well as the Points and Authorities attached hereto.

DATED this % day of March, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

sy: (WManda N Robec™

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State of Nevada Bar No. 9294
4411 S. Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Salas
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I.
Statement of Facts

The minor child at issue in this action is Yasline Guardardo-Salas (“Yasline”
or “minor child”), born on February 9, 2014. Yasline is currently eight (8) years
old. The Plaintiffs, Ana Salas (“Ana”) and Tyler Edenfield (“Tyler”), are the
Maternal Aunt and Uncle of the minor child at 1ssue. The Defendant, Gabino
Guardado (“Gabino”), is the alleged Natural Father of the of the minor child at
issue in this action. The Natural Mother of the minor child is Paola Leticia Salas
(“Paola™).

On or about October 15, 2015, Paola and Gabino indicated an inability to
care for Yasline. As such, they asked Ana and Tyler to take physical custody of the
minor child, and they agreed. At the time, Yasline was approximately twenty (20)
months old.

Currently, Yasline is currently eight (8) years old. Yasline has only known
Ana and Tyler to be her Mom and Dad. That means for nearly six and half (6 %)
years, she has been raised by Ana and Tyler. Initially, Paola and Gabino had
regular contact with Yasline, but over time is waned to the point that neither of
them were having regular contact.

Therefore, on or about March 2, 2017, Ana and Tyler received a custody

Order which awarded them sole legal and physical custody of the minor child,
Page 3 of 16
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Yasline. This was one and a half (1 %) years after Yasline came to live with Ana
and Tayler.

On or about April 10, 2019, Ana relocated from California to Nevada.
Yasline relocated with Ana; however, Yasline continued to have contacts in
California because that is where Tyler was residing after his was discharged from
the military.

As Ana and Tyler continued to maintain a joint Order, Ana agreed for Tyler
to have custodial time with Yasline from July of 2019 through November of 2019.
Tyler has never lived in the State of Nevada.

In November of 2019, Yasline returned to Ana’s care. Shortly thereafter,
Ana moved in with her Aunt Vanessa. Ana would travel to California for work and
Aunt Vanessa would care for Yasline. During a trip to California in December of
2019, Aunt Vanessa called Ana and said that she was at the grocery store with
Y asline when Gabino randomly showed up with the police who told her to turn
over the child to Gabino. Ana immediately returned to Nevada and contacted the
police about retrieving the minor child. Ana never had any contact with Child
Protective Services (“CPS”) while in Nevada and disputes the allegations made by
Gabino’s attorney that CPS was involved with the minor child. After providing the

North Carolina Order, the police assisted Ana in retrieving Yasline from Gabino.
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Upon picking up Yasline, she discovered that Aunt Vanessa’s story was not
consistent with what actually transpired. In fact, Aunt Vanessa told Yasline to put
on her shoes and they then went to the store. A man she did not know then
approached, Aunt Vanessa said it Yasline’s Father. The child said, “she told me he
was my Dad, but he wasn’t, and she let him take me.” Yasline alleged that he
forced her to sleep in his bed that night with him.

After this happened, Ana realized she could not trust Aunt Vanessa or her
extended family. Therefore, Ana and Yasline went to Florida with Tyler’s Mother
who provided a safe place to stay. Eventually, Ana found employment and
relocated with Yasline to Seattle, Washington. Ana was not residing at 1216 Silver
Lake Dnive, LL.as Vegas, Nevada 89108 and Gabino knew full well that she was not
present at that address and Tyler had never lived at that address.

Unbeknownst to Ana, on January 24, 2020, Gabino filed a Petition for
Registration of Qut of State Child Custody Determination pursuant to NRS §
125A.465. On January 27, 2020, Gabino filed a Notice of Petition for Registration
of Out of State Custody Determination (“Notice”) and a Motion for a modification
of legal and physical custody. Ana had no knowledge that Gabino was taking this
action. Gabino had not shown an interest in being a part of Yasline’s life for more
than five (5) years and Ana was shocked by his actions.

WA
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On December 21, 2020, the Court proceeded with a hearing on the Motion
granting a modification of legal and physical custody. Ana claims she was not
given proper service and the Court lacked subject matter jurisdiction. Had she
known of the proceedings, Ana would have participated in this matter.

On November 19, 2021, there was a knock on the door and a police officer
handed Ana the paperwork regarding custody of Yasline. Ana was distraught upon
receiving the paperwork because Yasline does not know Gabino and has very little
contact with him since she began living with Ana and Tyler. Yasline does not
understand the situation with parents and believes Ana to be her “Mom” and Tyler
to be her “Dad” because they are the parents who have raised her as long as she can
remember.

NRS § 125C.0035 (4)(g) requires this Court to consider, among other things,
the physical, developmental and emotional needs of Yasline. Right now, a hearing
is scheduled on Ana’s Motion on April 11, 2022, On March 7, 2022, Gabino’s
attorney indicated that he intends to travel to Washington to retrieve the minor child
on Saturday, March 12, 2022. Gabino is attempting to effectuate the Court’s Order
despite the fact this child does not know him and has had only twenty-four (24)
hours of contact with him in the last nearly six and half (6 '2) years.

Ana is extremely concerned about the physical, developmental and emotional

needs of Yasline. There is concern that there is possible psychological damage
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which may occur and the minor child is at a high risk of trauma, if she removed
from her primary caregiver. The removal of the child from a primary caregiver
impacts the child’s sense of worth throughout the child’s lifetime, it makes the child
feel as if the behavior is their fault. Given the lack of involvement by Gabino,
without services, Yasline is likely going to be developmentally and emotionally
harmed without proper intervention like reunification.!

Ana has sought an Order Shortening Time which was denied. Therefore,
Ana has no other choice than to seek a Temporary Restraining Order in this matter.
Good cause exists for the Court to grant the relief set forth herein.

11.
Legal Analvsis

EDCR § 5.520 (a)(2) provides that the Court may grant a Temporary
Restraining Order via ex parte means. EDCR § 5.520 (a)(4) states, “Every
temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction shall state with specificity
the reasons for its issuance and the act or acts sought to be restrained, without
reference to other documents.” In this matter, Ana is seeking an Order that
restrains Gabino’s ability to pick-up the minor child until this Court hears
arguments regarding subject matter jurisdiction., When and if the Court determines
that subject mater jurisdiction is proper, Ana is asking this Court to take proper

steps to take evidence and testimony regarding a modification of the Orders from

U A correspondence authored by Donna Wilburn, MS, MFT, is attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and
is hereby fully incorporated herein by reference.
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North Carolina. Moreover, Ana wants to ensure any transition to Gabino is done in
a manner to best address the issues with the child’s physical, developmental and
emotional needs. |

Pursuant to EDCR § 5.520 (b)(1) this is an emergency because the minor
child does not know Gabino. The minor child’s contact with Gabino is limited to
twenty-four (24) hours in the last six and a half (6 %) years. The minor child
believes that the adults who have been raising her are her Mom and Dad because
she was infant when her parents were unable to provide care. Pursuant to EDCR §
5.520 (b)(2), if the Temporary Restraining Order is issued, it should be filed
forthwith to the Clerk’s office; and pursuant to EDCR § 5.520 (b)(3) the Temporary
Restraining Order should expire within thirty (30) days of filing of same.
Moreover, a hearing should be set as soon as practicable.
A\
WA
WA
A\
VA
AL
A\

A
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III.
Conclusion

Based on the aforementioned reasons, in order irreparable harm the Court

should grant Ana a Temporary Restraining Order.
DATED this Qﬂ day of March, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

By: WMWW

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State of Nevada Bar No. 9294
4411 S. Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Salas
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AFFIDAVIT OF AMANDA M. ROBERTS, ESQ.
STATE OF NEVADA )

S8
County of Clark )

1. I, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., am the attorney for the Plaintiff, Ana
Salas, in the above referenced matter and I can attest to the below reference facts as
being true and correct to the best my knowledge as represented by my client.

2. The minor child at issue in this action is Yasline Guardardo-Salas
(“Yasline” or “minor child”), born on February 9, 2014. Yasline is currently eight
(8) years old. The Plaintiffs, Ana Salas (“Ana”)} and Tyler Edenfield (“Tyler”}, are
the Maternal Aunt and Uncle of the minor child at issue. The Defendant, Gabino
Guardado (“Gabino”), is the alleged Natural Father of the of the minor child at
issue in this action. The Natural Mother of the minor child is Paola Leticia Salas
(“Paola™).

3. On or about October 15, 2015, Paola and Gabino indicated an inability
to care for Yasline. As such, they asked Ana and Tyler to take physical custody of
the minor child, and they agreed. At the time, Yasline was approximately twenty
(20) months old.

4. Currently, Yasline is currently eight (8) years old. Yasline has only
known Ana and Tyler to be her Mom and Dad. That means for nearly six and half

(6 ¥2) years, she has been raised by Ana and Tyler. Initially, Paola and Gabino had
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regular contact with Yasline, but over time is waned to the point that neither of
them were having regular contact.

5. Therefore, on or about March 2, 2017, Ana and Tyler received a
custody Order which awarded them sole legal and physical custody of the minor
child, Yasline. This was one and a half (1 1) years after Yasline came to live with
Ana and Tayler.

0. On or about April 10, 2019, Ana relocated from California to Nevada.
Yasline relocated with Ana; however, Yasline continued to have contacts in

7. California because that is where Tyler was residing after his was
discharged from the military.

8. As Ana and Tyler continued to maintain a joint Order, Ana agreed for
Tyler to have custodial time with Yasline from July of 2019 through November of
2019. Tyler has never lived in the State of Nevada.

9. In November of 2019, Yasline returned to Ana’s care. Shortly
thereafter, Ana moved in with her Aunt Vanessa. Ana would travel to California
for work and Aunt Vanessa would care for Yasline. During a trip to California in
December of 2019, Aunt Vanessa called Ana and said that she was at the grocery
store with Yasline when Gabino randomly showed up with the police who told her
to turn over the child to Gabino. Ana immediately returned to Nevada and

contacted the police about retrieving the minor child. Ana never had any contact
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with Child Protective Services (“CPS”) while in Nevada and disputes the
allegations made by Gabino’s attorney that CPS was involved with the minor child.
After providing the North Carolina Order, the police assisted Ana in retrieving
Yasline from Gabino.

10. Upon picking up Yasline, she discovered that Aunt Vanessa’s story
was not consistent with what actually transpired. In fact, Aunt Vanessa told
Yasline to put on her shoes and they then went to the store. A man she did not
know then approached, Aunt Vanessa said it Yasline’s Father. The child said, “she
told me he was my Dad, but he wasn’t, and she let him take me.” Yasline alleged
that he forced her to sleep in his bed that night with him.

11.  After this happened, Ana realized she could not trust Aunt Vanessa or
her extended family. Therefore, Ana and Yasline went to Florida with Tyler’s
Mother who provided a safe place to stay. Eventually, Ana found employment and
relocated with Yasline to Seattle, Washington. Ana was not residing at 1216 Silver
Lake Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada 89108 and Gabino knew full well that she was not
present at that address and Tyler had never lived at that address.

12.  Unbeknownst to Ana, on January 24, 2020, Gabino filed a Petition for
Registration of Out of State Child Custody Determination pursuant to NRS §
125A.465. On January 27, 2020, Gabino filed a Notice of Petition for Registration

of Out of State Custody Determination (“Notice”) and a Motion for a modification
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of legal and physical custody. Ana had no knowledge that Gabino was taking this
action. Gabino had not shown an interest in being a part of Yasline’s life for more
than five (§) years and Ana was shocked by his actions.

13.  OnDecember 21, 2020, the Court proceeded with a hearing on the
Motion granting a modification of legal and physical custody. Ana claims she was
not given proper service and the Court lacked subject matter jurisdiction. Had she
known of the proceedings, Ana would have participated in this matter.

14.  On November 19, 2021, there was a knock on the door and a police
officer handed Ana the paperwork regarding custody of Yasline. Ana was
distraught upon receiving the paperwork because Yashne does not know Gabino
and has very little contact with him since she began living with Ana and Tyler.
Yasline does not understand the situation with parents and believes Ana to be her
“Mom” and Tyler to be her “Dad” because they are the parents who have raised her
as long as she can remember.

15.  NRS § 125C.0035 (4)(g) requires this Court to consider, among other
things, the physical, developmental and emotional needs of Yastine. Right now, a
hearing is scheduled on Ana’s Motion on April 11, 2022. On March 7, 2022,
Gabino’s attorney indicated that he intends to travel to Washington to retrieve the
minor child on Saturday, March 12, 2022. Gabino is attempting to effectuate the

Court’s Order despite the fact this child does not know him and has had only

Page 13 0f 16
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twenty-four {24) hours of contact with him in the last nearly six and half (6 %)
years.

16.  Ana is extremely concerned about the physical, developmental and
emotional needs of Yasline. There is concern that there is possible psychological
damage which may occur and the minor child is at a high risk of trauma, if she
removed from her primary caregiver. The removal of the child from a primary
caregiver impacts the child’s sense of worth throughout the child’s lifetime, it
makes the child feel as if the behavior is their fault. Given the lack of involvement
by Gabino, without services, Yasline is likely going to be developmentally and
emotionally harmed without proper intervention like reunification.

17.  Ana has sought an Order Shortening Time which was denied.
Therefore, Ana has no other choice than to seek a Temporary Restraining Order in
this matter. Good cause exists for the Court to grant the relief set forth herein.

18.  In this matter, Ana is seeking an Order that restrains Gabino’s ability
to pick-up the minor child until this Court hears arguments regarding subject matter
jurisdiction. When and if the Court determines that subject matter jurisdiction is
proper, Ana is asking this Court to take proper steps to take evidence and testimony
regarding a modification of the Orders from North Carolina. Moreover, Ana wants
to ensure any transition to (Gabino is done in a manner to best address the issues

with the child’s physical, developmental and emotional needs.
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19.  Pursuant to EDCR § 5.520 (b)(1) this is an emergency because the

minor child does not know Gabino.

20. Counsel makes this request is made in good faith and good cause

exists for the Court to grant the request set forth herein.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

(mandn 1. e’

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

Subscribed and Sworn to before me this

day of March, 2022.

CONS hed )

Notary Publictin and for said County

And State

2 COLLEEN O'BRIEN
i Notary Public, State of Nevada

Appointment Ng 0
% - 07-4047.9
ks My Appt. Expires Nay 27, 2024
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the i day of March, 2022, I served by and through Wiz-Net electronic
service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service
of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing Ex Parte
Application For An Order For A Temporary Restraining Order Pursuant To £ZDCR
§ 5.520, to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.

Email: modonnell@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

s (O, o)

Employee of Rolerts Stoffel FamiE;Law Group
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DocuSign Envelope 10; 365837A2-A622-4142-AF5A-B7333601CAED

.Donn

a Wilburn M.S., LMFT

ooigipit

10655 W. PARK RUN DR, #2110, LAS VEGAS, NV 89144
PH: 702.234.8325 EMAIL: DONNAWILBURNESEGMAIL.COM

Concern for the Welfare of a Child
March B, 2022

1. When a child has had 2 primary caretaker during their formative years, that child will form an attach-
ment to that caregiver. The attachment bond is a function of psychological health and it is crucial to prior-
itize the child’s attachment needs in order to minimize psychological damage,

2. To suddenly transfer a child under 10 years old into the care of another is & high risk of trauma due to
the child’s developmentat challenpes. A child under 10 years old has not experienced dxfferentiation yet.
Differentiation is when a child sees themsclves as separate individuals from their caretaker, Before }0
years old, a child sces themselves as an extension of their primary caregiver.

3. A child under 10 years old will take the loss of their carcgiver personally due to their developmental
stage, This means the child will interpret the loss as their fault, no matter how the change is verbally dis-
cussed. A child under 10 years old will interpret the loss as their fault, as if they did something to cause
the caretaker to leave them. This is ego trauma and can affect the child’s sense of worth for their life-

{ime.

4. Should a child have to be removed from a primary caretaker, the authorities need to consider the child’s
age and psychological functioning and how the change will affect the child. Authorities have to mini-
mize the risk of trauma for the child at all cosis.

5. If carctakers are upable to cooperate in order to provide proper care to the child, then a third party, such
as a specialized family therapist, is needed to advocate for whalt is in the best interests of the child. That
therapist can help with facilitating reunification, iraprove communication between parties, minimizing
conflict between parties and can monitor the effect of conflict on the wellbeing of the child.

6. Reunification is often recommended as the process used to help a child adjust to being in the care ofa
parent who has been absent or distant for over 6 months. If at all possible, it is recomunended that a child
be given the opportusity to strengthen the attachment bond with the new parent before being transferred
into their care.

NOTE: Children may have developed coping skills with which to manage stress related to trauma. Many
children will internalize their stress and will behave as if they are ‘fine’ even if they are in a traumatized

state.

Respectfully,

DozuSigned by:
Dovina il
Donna Wilbtin

PLTF0001
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Electronically Filed
3M17/2022 10:05 AM
Steven D, Grierson

OPPS

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar #6745

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S, 8th Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

702-386-0030

attorneys@millsnv.com

Attorney for Adverse Party
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ANA MARITA SALAS AND CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
TYLER KYLE EDENFIELD DEPT. NO.: X

Applicant,

VS.

GABINO GUARDADO

Adverse Parly.

OPPOSITION TO APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY PROTECTION
ORDER

COMES NOW, Adverse Party, GABINO GUARDADO, by and through his
attorney of record, Byron L. Mills, Esq., of the law firm of MILLS & ANDERSON
submits this Opposition to Application for Temporary Protection Order and
requests this Court do the following:

1. Deny Applicants’ Application for Temporary Protection Order;
2. QGrant reasonable attorney’s fees to the Adverse Party;

3. Grant any other relief as the Court deems appropriate.

This Opposition is based upon the pleadings and papers on file herein, the

-i421
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following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the Affidavit of Guardado
Gabino attached to the Opposition to the Motion for Reconsideration, and any oral

argument permitted at the time of hearing.
Weie
DATED this day of March 2022,

MILLS & ANDERSON

T MILLS, ESQ.
Névada Bar No. 6745

703 S. 8th Street

Las Vegas NV 89101
Attorney for Adverse Party

I
INTRODUCTION

The Defendant, GABINO GUARDADO (“Gabino”) and Plaintiff, ANA
MARIA SALAS (“*Ana Maria”) are former in-laws. Gabino is the biological father
of the child at issue, to wit: YASLINE ALEJANDRA GUARDADO-SALAS, born
on February 9, 2014 (“the child” or “Yasline”). Ana Maria is the sister of the child’s
biological mother, PAOLA LETICIA SALAS (“Paol2” or “child’s mother”). The

Plamtiff, TYLER EDENFIELD (*“Mr. Edenfield”) is Ana Maria’s ex-husband.

I1.
STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. HISTORY BETWEEN THE PARTIES
This case stems from the fraudulent actions of Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield.
In 2015, Gabino, Paola, and their daughter Yasline were residing in Las Vegas at
1294 E Hacienda Ave. During this time, Gabino was afforded a phenomenal job
opportunity in Oklahoma working in the oil fields. This opportunity would allow
Gabino to substantially increase his income, but it would require him to move to

Oklahoma for what he was told would be least 36 months.! Gabino accepted the

! The job did not last all 36 months,
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opportunity and he believed that Paola would continue to provide care for Yasline
while he was away. Unfortunately, Paola had other plans.

At some point in 2015, Paola decided to enter into a handwritten agreement
giving temporary custody of the child to Ana Maria. This occurred without
Gabino’s consent or knowledge. The only signatures on the agreement are those of
Ana Maria and Paola. The execution of the agreement occurred on October 9, 2015,
and it was notarized in Oklahoma. Ana Maria then took the child with her to North
Carolina, which is where Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield resided at the time.

1. Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield filed for custody in North Carolina.

After the above child exchange between Paola and Ana Maria, Ana Maria
cut off all contact between Gabino and the child. On March 8, 2016, Ana Maria and
Mr. Edenfield filed a complaint in North Carolina seeking temporary and permanent
custody of the child. The complaint was filed In the General Court of Justice District
Court Division of Craven County, North Carolina under case number 16 CVD 310.
Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield filed a complaint in North Carolina seeking temporary
and permanent custody of the child.? The Plaintiffs were Ana Maria and Mr.
Edenfield. The Defendants were Gabino and Paola.

On March 2, 2017, Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield obtained a custodial order
(“NC Order”) which awarded them exclusive physical and legal custody over the
child. Judging from the findings in the NC Order, it is obvious that Ana Maria and
Mr. Edenfield misled the North Carolina court into believing that they did not know
of the whereabouts of either of the child’s parents, Paola and Gabino. Ana Maria
and Mr. Edenfield also misled the North Carolina court into believing that Gabino
and Paola had abandoned the child physically and financially. None of which was
true.

2. The child begins residing in Nevada.

On March 2019, Ana Maria’s family contacted Gabino to inform him that the

2 In the General Court of Justice District Court Division of Craven County, North Carolina under
case number 16 CVD 310.
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child was in Nevada. After years of searching for his child, Gabino was finally able
to see her. The child was in the care of Ana Maria’s grandmother, Andrea Salas.
Ana Maria claims she moved to Henderson, Nevada on or about April 10, 2019.
However, the child was in the state of Nevada at [east one month prior to that.

Throughout 2019, Gabino saw the child in Nevada several times. He saw the
child in March and April while the child was being cared for by Andrea Salas. He
saw the child in September 2019 at the Wal Mart shopping center located on
Charleston and Nellis. In October 2019, he saw the child at the McDonald’s located
on Rancho and Washington. In December 2019, he had further direct contact with
the child on 3 separate occasions.

While in Ana Maria’s custody, she left the child with family members
frequently and for extended periods of time. One such time occurred in early
December 2019 when Ana Marta made an extended “work™ trip to California. To
be clear, whenever Ana Maria refers to “work™ or “clients” it should be noted that
she is an escort and/or prostitute. This is evidenced by text conversations she had
with clients on November 30, 2019 and December 9, 2019.

During Ana Maria’s “work” trip, Ana Maria’s family contacted Gabino to
inform him that Ana Maria had left the child with them again. Gabino subsequently
retrieved his child and found that the child had lice and was wearing clothes that
were far too small. On December 13, 2019, Ana Maria arrived at Gabino’s home
accompanied by police and took the child. This was the first time Gabino had been
made aware of the custody case in North Carolina and of the North Carolina Order.
Shortly thereafter, Gabino engaged the serviced of an attorney in Nevada.

3. Ana Maria flees Nevada with the child.

After Gabino initiated the present action, Ana Maria fled the state of Nevada

and took the child with her to Florida. Upoen information and belief, this occurred

in mid-2020. After several court proceedings, the Court issued an order granting
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Gabino sole legal and sole physical custody of the child.? Unfortunately, Gabino
was not able to obtain a copy of the order from the August 6, 2020 hearing until
December 22, 2020.

On Jannary 25, 2021, Gabino filed an Ex Parte Request for a Pick Up Order.
That request for the emergency pick-up order was based on the fact that Ana Maria
had been refusing to remain in contact with Gabino since December 2019 and was
in violation of the Court Order from the August 6, 2020 hearing. The pick up order
was granted on January 25, 2021, By the time Gabino hired a private investigator
to locate Ana Maria and the child, Ana Maria had fled from Florida as well.

On May 7, 2021, Gabino’s private investigator found Ana Maria had
speeding tickets in Seattle, Washington. Gabino only had the pickup order at the
timé and when he travelled to Washington to pick up his child, Washington police
refused to enforce it until Gabino localized the order.

On July 2, 2021, Gabino filed for and obtained a Warrant to Take Physical Custody
of the child, which he served on Ana Maria in the state of Washington.

4. Ana Maria finally partakes in the Nevada proceedings and filed a

Motion to Set Aside.

On November 23, 2021, Ana Maria’s previous counsel filed a Notice of
Appearance and Ana Maria filed her Motion to Set Aside on November 24, 2021.
The only reason Ana Maria finally decided to reSpond in this Court is because she
was tracked down and not given the opportunity to flee again before being served
in Washington.

Absent from Ana Maria’s motion was any proof of any kind, other than her
self-serving affidavit, that she was never served. In her Motion to Set Aside, Ana
Maria also claimed that the child resided with her since the NC Order was entered.*

Ana Maria’s claim was patently false given that she habitually left the child with

3 See Order from Hearing held on August 6, 2020.
* As stated above, the NC Order was filed on March 2, 2017,
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her family members in Nevada in order to meet with her “clients” outside of
Nevada.
5. Ana Maria’s Motion to Set Aside is Denied and the current
controlling order is entered.
On January 24, 2022, this Court issued the current controlling order’ (“the
Order”) in favor of Gabino on January 24, 2022, which states in pertinent part:
THE COURT FINDS that it has subject matter jurisdiction over this

case and personal jurisdiction over the parties.®

The Order filed on December 21, 2020, granted Gabino sole legal

and sole physical custody of Yasline.”

On January 26, 2021, after review of the case, Judge Mercer
executed an Order for Return of the Child.®

On July 2, 2021, a Warrant for Return of Child was issued by this
Court pursuant to NRS 125D.200. This was issued becanse often times
law enforcement will not assist based solely on a Pickup Order for
Return of Child.?

The three Orders on file with this Court are the most current and
valid for this case. The Court is bound by Judge Burton’s findings in
the December 21, 2020 Order where she made extensive review of the
facts and circumstances and service. The three Orders that govern are:'°

e December 21, 2020 — granting Gabino the sole legal and physical
custody of Yasline.
s January 26, 2021 — Order for Return of Child.

3 See Order of the Court filed on Febtuary 15, 2022.
6 Id. at 1:27-2:2.

T Id. at 2:26-28.

8Id. at 3:24.

°Id. at 3:4-7.

10 1d. at 3;8-16.
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o July 2, 2021 — Warrant for Return of Child.

The Court is not inclined to set aside any of the orders in this case,
particularly the December 21, 2020 order made by Judge Burton
considering her extensive findings and the best interest factors set forth
in NRS 125C.0035."

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Ana Salas’ Motion to Set

Aside is denied.'?

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the three Orders of the

Court, December 21, 2020, January 26, 2021, and July 2, 2021 shall

remain the Orders of the Court."

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Ana file a Notice of Change

of Address and that she produce the child as ordered by the Court.'

6. Ana Maria’s violates the Order.

Notwithstanding the Order which clearly and unambiguously directs Ana
Maria to produce the child, she has decided to not do so. In fact, as of the filing of
this Opposition, Ana Maria continues to withhold the child from Gabino. Rather
than comply with the Order, Ana Maria has made additional filing to stall
proceedings and figure out what other lies she can tell in her pleadings. ¢

7. Ana Maria makes additional frivolous filings.

On February 28, 2022, Ana Maria’s current counsel filed Substitution of
Attorney. On March 1, 2022, Ana Maria filed a Motion for Reconsideration,
asserting Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction and Personal Jurisdiction. Clearly,
Ana Maria’s Motion is an attempt to take another stab at making the same argument

she already made in her previous Motion to Reconsider. However, the Motion only

U 74, at 3:22-25.
2 14, at 4:5-6.
B Id. at 4:7-8.
4 14 at 4:10-11.
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further shows how untrustworthy Ana Maria is. Once more, Ana Maria provided no
proof of any kind to substantiate her claims.

Ana Maria continued to claim, with no basis whatsoever, that she was never
served in Nevada. Ana Maria also claimed that the child’s home state was not
Nevada at the onset of this case, which is of course not true. Noticeably absent from
Ana Maria’s motion was any proof of any kind, other than more self-serving
allegations without any documentation of the child’s whereabouts or of her own
whereabouts. ‘

Ana Maria’s Motion for Reconsideration is riddled with inconsistencies and
frankly, lies. One such lie is her claim that she shipped the child to Mr. Edenfield

from July 2019 to November 2019, which is of course not true. Ana Maria provided
no evidence of any kind to support her claim that the child was absent from the state
of Nevada from July 2019 through November 2019.

The reason Ana Maria has not provided such evidence is because such
evidence does not exist. Evern in her own previous pleading,”> Ana Maria
specifically claimed that, “Since the time that Custody order was entered, the minor
child has resided with Plaintiff and continues to do so through the present.”'®
Additionally, Gabino had contact with the child and also spotted the child physically
in the state of Nevada multiple times between July 2019 and November 2019. Ana
Maria’s claim is cleatly a lie being told in order to support her frandulent argument
that Nevada was not the child’s home state at the onset of this case.

B. ANA MARIA’S EX-PARTE APPLICATION FOR A TPO.

Ana Maria now seeks a TPO by filing an application (“TPO Application”)
that is essentially direct copy paste of her Motion for Reconsideration filed on
March 1, 2022. Ana Maria quite literally begins the TPO Application by stating
that Gabino is the “alleged” natural father, which is simply more of the ridiculous
bologna she has been spewing all along. Ana Maria knows exactly why Gabino did

15 Ana Maria’s Motion to Set Aside filed on November 24, 2021,
16 See Ana Maria’s Motion to Sct Aside at 8:16-18.
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not take action to rescue his child from that godawful situation she was under while | -
in Ana Maria’s so-called care. Ana Maria entered into a temporary custody
agreement with Paola without Gabino’s knowledge, she filed a fraudulent
complaint in North Carolina without Gabino’s knowledge, and she cut off
communications with Gabino when he requested his child back, For years, she
deprived Gabino of any contact with his child and she threatened to call
immigration if he attempted to take legal action.

Gabino’s only contact with his child was during times when Ana Maria was
not around and her family members allowed Gabino contact with his child.
Eventually, even Ana Maria’s family,!” became disillusioned with the situation and
they handed the child over to Gabino. This is what triggered Ana Maria’s distrust
in her family. She even said that she could no longer trust them after she found out
that Gabino retrieved the child in December 2019. To clarify, Ana Maria could
*not trust” the people who disagreed with her taking off for weeks at a time to be
an escort/prostitute. She also could “not trust” the people who disagreed with
depriving a child of any relationship with her father.

Ana Maria is now attempting to bolster her position by making the claim that
the child barely knows Gabino. However, Ana Marta herself is the one depriving
(Gabino and the child of their father-daughter relationship. Ana Maria should be
condemned for her actions, not rewarded. Ana Maria has already deprived Gabino
of years with his daughter.

Furthermore, her claim that she cares about the child’s physical,
developmental, and emotional needs is nothing short of ridiculous. Assuming
arguendo, Ana Maria has essentially admitted she has no problem sending the child
to Mr. Edenfield for months at a time. This is especially troubling given that she is
comfortable sending the child to be alone with a man who is (1) not a blood
relative, (2) who no longer has a relationship with Ana Maria, and (3) resides in

another state. It is also clear Ana Maria does not actually care for the child given

17 Her aunt Vanessa and her cousin Claudia.
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that she has no issue leaving to go meet “clients” in other states, If anything
happens to the child’s health, Ana Maria is quick to blame others, even her own
family as she did with the child’s head lice from December 2019. Lastly, it is
certainly absurd that Ana Maria claims to care about the child while moving her
across the country multiple times, shipping her left and right to other family
members, and all the while depriving the child’s parent of his parental rights. Quite
literally everything Ana Maria has done (and continues to do) with the child has a
detrimental effect on the child’s physical, developmental, and emotional needs, not
the other way around.

It is time for this situation to end and for it to end the correct way, with the
father of the child having his child in his custody and care as already ordered by
this Court. This Court also ordered Ana Maria to produce the child nearly 2 months
ago, and she continues to act in willful violation of the orders. Based on the above,

Gabino respectfully requests that Ana Maria’s TPO Application be denied.

II[.
ARGUMENT
A. The Application for Temporary Protection Order Must Be Denied

EDCR § 5.520(a)(2) provides that the Court may grant a TPO via ex parte
means. Ana Maria’s TPO Application is clearly just another attempt to stall
proceedings. This Court correctly ruled on the issue of subject matter jurisdiction
and personal jurisdiction. Ana Maria claims that she 1s filing her TPO Application
as an emergency pursuant to EDCR § 5.520(b)(1) solely based on the amount of
contact the child has had with Gabino since 2015.

As stated above, Ana Maria’s argument is that the child has not had contact
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with Gabino and that she wants to keep Gabino from enforcing the pick-up order
issued by this Court until this Court determines subject matter jurisdiction, which
the Court already did. Ana Maria’s Motion for Reconsideration filed on March 1,
2022 contains no evidence whatsoever to support Ana Maria’s argument that the
Court did not rule properly on the issue of subject matter jurisdiction. Ana Maria’s
carries the burden to show lack of subject matter jurisdiction and she has
unquestionably failed to meet that burden. As such, Ana Maria has no chance of
prevailing on the merits of this case.

Ana Maria’s argument as to the lack of contact between Gabino and the child
over the last 6 years is absurd and completely devoid of any logical though or human
decency. Through her own fraudulent actions (and the actions of Mr, Edenfield),
Ana Maria deprived Gabino and his child of a parent-child relationship for over 6
years and now she is using her own wrongful actions to continue depriving them of
that relationship.

If Ana Maria truly cared about fostering a parent-child relationship between
Gabino and the child and “easing the transition” to Gabino’s care, she would not
have fled the state of Nevada after this proceeding began in 2020. She has known
that Gabino wanted his child back since the very moment she took the child from
Oklahoma in 2015, which is why her sister Paola and her executed that agreement
without his knowledge or consent. Ana Maria willfully defrauded the North
Carolina court to sever the child’s contact with Gabino and she threatened to call
immigration if he ever tried to get his child back. She moved from North Carolina
to California, then to Nevada, fled Nevada for Florida, and fled Florida for
Washington. At no point has there been any indication that Ana Maria intends to
“ensure any fransition” aside from perhaps her own transition to another state to

avoid complying with any orders that are not in her favor,
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In short, if Ana Maria wanted the child to have contact with Gabino, she
would not be acting in violation of this Courts orders, she would not have fled
multiple times, and she would not have cut off all communications with Gabino
after Gabino requested the return of his child. Ana Maria filed her TPO Application
without any legal or factual basis. The only emergency at the moment is that the
child is with a person who is an escort, does not comply with court orders, and who
has shown not a single sliver of trustworthiness thus far. For these reasons, the Court
should deny Ana Maria’s TPO Application.

B. Attorney Fees Should Be Awarded

In Nevada, courts may award a prevailing party attorney’s fees in two
situations: (1) when the prevailing party recovers less than $20,000, or (2) when the
opposing party has brought or maintained the claim without reasonable grounds or
to harass the prevatling party. NRS 18.010(2). In doing so, courts are required to
“liberally construe” these provisions to grant attorney fees in all appropriate
situations. NRS 18.010(2)}(b). The Nevada Legislature has specifically advised
courts to use attorney’s fees to punish and deter frivolous litigation. /d.

Here, Ana Maria unreasonably brought a frivolous Application for TPO. As
stated above, Ana Maria has already willfully failed to comply with multiple Court
orders, including the Order directing her to produce the child. This TPO Application
is brought under the guise of an emergency when it truly is not. The actual
emergency is that Ana Maria refuses to comply with Court orders and refuses to
return the child back to her father.

This TPO Application is only Ana Maria grasping at straws, pretending to
care about the child who she has deprived of any semblance of a normal life for the
past 6 years. Ana Maria cannot now hide behind the argument that she is concerned
about the “high risk of trauma” the child may have if she returns to her father when

Ana Maria herself was the one who deprived the child and Gabino of contact in the
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first place.

In other words, Ana Maria is unreasonably using a TPO Application because
she does not intend to comply with the Court’s orders unless they are in her favor.
Whatever purpose Ana Maria is using this attempted TPO, it is not lawful because
she could not reasonably be concerned for the child’s wellbeing. She certainly was
not concerned when she left the child with lice in Nevada in December 2019 when
she went off California to do her “work™ as an escort/prostitute. She was not
concerned when she cut off any contact between the child and Gabino. She was not
concerned when she moved the child across the country multiple times in the child’s
short life. As such, this Court should award Gabino attorney fees for costs incurred
due to Ana Maria unreasonably bringing this TPO.

When courts assess the reasonableness of attorney fees, they do so using the
Brunzell factors:'®
(1) the advocate’s qualities, including ability, training, education, experience,
professional standing, and skill,

All the attorneys at Mills & Anderson regularly practice in family law and
regularly participate in CLE to stay current with the most recent changes in the law.
Mills & Anderson collectively has over 50 years of family law practice experience
and all three attorneys at the firm will likely be utilized at various stages in the case.
No disciplinary action of any kind has been taken against any of the firm’s lawyers
during that time.

(2) the character of the work to be done; and (3) the work actually
performed by the lawyer,

Gabino’s attorneys have prepared all the substantive pleadings in this matter,
researched and cited all appropriate law, with correct analysis and application of the

law to the facts. They have communicated with Gabino and will be present at all

® Brunzell v, Golden Gate Nat'l Bank, 455 P.2d 31 (1969).
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hearings in this matter. The firm’s actions have been in accordance to the highest
ethical practices and consistent with the Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct.
Additionally, counsel was required to give this case priority over other cases
because of the emergent nature of the circumstances.

(4) the resull, whether the attorney was successful and what benefits were

derived.

Gabino anticipates a successful result at hearing as his requests are consistent
with and supported by Nevada law.

Should the Court be so inclined to grant Gabino’s attorney fee request,
Gabino’s attorneys will provide a separately filed affidavit stating the specific fees

and costs reasonably incurred in pursuing this action.

IV.
CONCLUSION
This Application for 2 TPO is both unnecessary and unreasonable. This Court
should therefore:
I. Deny Applicants’ Application for Temporary Protection Order;
2. (Qrant reasonable attorney’s fees to the Adverse Party;

3. Grant any other relief as the Court deems appropriate.
]C——
DATED this [ __day of March 2022

MILLS & ANDERSON

B QT

N'L. MILLS, ESQ.
vada Bar No. 6745
703 S. 8th Street
Las Vegas NV 89101
Attorney for Adverse Party
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Steven D, Grierson
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BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745

DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955

MILLS & ANDERSON

703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101

(702) 386-0030
attorneys@millsnv.com

Attorney for Defendant
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT.NO.: X
)
Vs. ) HEARING DATE: 4/11/2022
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m.
GABINO GUARDADO, )
) ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED
Defendant. ) YES X NO
)

OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR
RECONSIDERATION, ASSERTING LACK OF SUBJECT MATTER
JURISDICTION AND PERSONAL JURISDICTION
AND
COUNTERMOTION FOR MOTION FOR CONTEMPT AND
ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS

COMES NOW the Defendant, GABINO GUARDADQ, by and through his
attorney, BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ., of the law firm of MILLS & ANDERSON and
pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes and Eighth Judicial District Court Rules

cited hereinbelow, hereby respectfully requests the following:
1. An Order of the Court denying Plaintiff’s request to reconsider and set aside
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any and all judgement’s, orders, or other decisions in the present matter;

2. An order of the Court holding Plaintiff in contempt for failing to produce the
child;

3. An Order awarding Defendant with fees and costs in the amount of $5,000;

4. For any and other such further relief as this Court deems appropriate in the
premises.

This Opposition and Countermotion is made and based upon the papers and
pleadings on file herein, Points and Authorities cited below, the Affidavit of
Plaintiff, GABINO GUARDADQ, attached hereto, other supporting documentation
set forth herein below, and any argument entertained at the time of hearing.

DATED this |4 day of March, 2022,
MILLS & ANDERSO

+ 27

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6745
703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV 89101
Attorney for Defendant

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
|
STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant, GABINO GUARDADQO (“Gabino”) and Plaintiff, ANA
MARIA SALAS (*Ana Maria”) are former in-laws. Gabino is the biological father
of the child at issue, to wit: YASLINE ALEJANDRA GUARDADO-SALAS, born
on February 9, 2014 (“the child” or “Yasline”). Ana Maria is the sister of the child’s
biological mother, PAOLA LETICIA SALAS (“Paola” or “child’s mother”). The
Plaintiff, TYLER EDENFIELD (“Mr. Edenfield”) is Ana Maria’s ex-husband.

A, Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield filed for custody in North Carolina.
As this Court is aware, on March 8, 2016, Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield filed

a complaint in North Carolina seeking temporary and permanent custody of

.
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Yasline.! # On March 2, 2017, Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield obtained a custodial
order (“NC Order”) which awarded them exclusive physical and legal custody over
Yasline. Notably, the NC Order contains several findings of fact that give insight
into the disturbing degree of fraud Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield committed in
obtaining the order. Specifically, Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield misled the North
Carolina court into believing that they did not know the whereabouts of either of
the child’s parents and that Gabino had abandoned the child. They also misled the
North Carolina Court into believing that the Pacla was homeless and that she
requested for Ana Maria to get the child from her in Nevada. Of course, these were
lies told to ensure that neither parent, but specifically Gabino, would not have
knowledge of the North Carolina case.
B. Ana Maria’s previous attempt to set aside the Court’s orders.

On November 23, 2021, Ana Maria’s previous counsel filed a Notice of
Appearance and Ana Maria filed her first Motion to Set Aside on November 24,
2021. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Ana Maria filed a motion to set aside “all
orders” issued in this case.” Noticeably absent from Ana Maria’s motion was any
proof of any kind, other than her self-serving affidavit, that she was never served.
This Court issued the current controlling order* in favor of Gabino on January 24,
2022, which states in pertinent part:

THE COURT FINDS that it has subject matter jurisdiction over

this case and personal jurisdiction over the parties.’

! In the General Court of Justice District Court Division of Craven County, North Carolina under
case number 16 CVD 310,

2 The Plaintiffs were Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield. The Defendants were Gabino and Paola.

3 Specifically, the Orders noted in Subsection C of the Statement of Facts of this Opposition.

4 See Order of the Court filed on February 15, 2022.

S1d. at 1:27-2:2. |
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The Order filed on December 21, 2020, granted Gabino sole legal

and sole physical custody of Yasline.°

On January 26, 2021, after review of the case, Judge Mercer
executed an Order for Return of the Child.”
On July 2, 2021, a Warrant for Return of Child was issued by this
Court pursuant to NRS 125D.200. This was issued because often times
law enforcement will not assist based solely on a Pickup Order for
Return of Child.®
The three Orders on file with this Court are the most current and
valid for this case. The Court is bound by Judge Burton’s findings in
the December 21, 2020 Order where she made extensive review of the
facts and circumstances and service. The three Orders that govern are:®
e December 21, 2020 — granting Gabino the sole legal and physical
custody of Yasline.
¢ January 26, 2021 — Order for Return of Child.
o July 2, 2021 — Warrant for Return of Child.

The Court is not inclined to set aside any of the orders in this case,
particularly the December 21, 2020 order made by Judge Burton
considering her extensive findings and the best interest factors set forth
in NRS 125C.0035.1°

6 Id. at 2:26-28,
TId. at 3:2-4.

8 Id. at 3:4-7.
°Id. at 3:8-16.
074 at 3:22-25,
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Ana Salas’ Motion to Set

Aside is denied.!!

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the three Orders of the

Court, December 21, 2020, January 26, 2021, and July 2, 2021 shall

remain the Orders of the Court.'2

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Ana file a Notice of Change

of Address and that she produce the child as ordered by the Court."”

C. Ana Maria’s instant Motion further shows that she misled the NC Court
in order to fraudulently obtain the NC Order.

On February 28, 2022, Ana Mana’s current counsel filed Substitution of
Attorney. On March 1, 2022, Ana Maria filed a Motion for Reconsideration,
asserting Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction and Personal Jurisdiction. Ana
Maria’s Motion is merely an attempt to take another stab at making the same
argument she already made in her previous Motion to Reconsider. However, the
Motion only further shows how untrustworthy Ana Maria is.

Noticeably absent from Ana Maria’s motion was any proof of any kind, other
than more self-serving allegations without any documentation of the child’s
whereabouts or of her own whereabouts. Ana Maria continues to claim, with no
basis whatsoever, that she was never served in Nevada. Ana Maria also claims that
the child’s home state was not Nevada at the onset of this case, which is of course
not true. This Court correctly issued the current controlling order in favor of Gabino
on January 24, 2022,

In her instant Motion, Ana Maria claims that in September 2015, Paola told

her that Paola, Gabino, and the child were living in Oklahoma City.'* Furthermore,

Ana Maria states that the notarized agreement was executed in Oklahoma because

U 7d. at 4:5-6.

12 74. at 4:7-8.

B1d. at 4:10-11.

14 See Ana Maria’s Motion at 7:9-25.
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that is where Gabino, Paola, and the child were located.!* However, this conflicts
with findings in the NC Order. Ana Maria told the North Carolina court that Paola
asked her to pick the child up in Nevada, but now Ana Maria states that she was in
Nevada when Paola asked her to pick the child up in Oklahoma.

Ana Maria omitted this information from the North Carolina court for
obvious reasons. In the North Carolina case, Ana Maria claimed that Gabino and
Paola were last known to be residents of Nevada and that their whereabouts were
unknown. Ana Maria (and Mr. Edenfield) obviously knew the whereabouts of both
of the child’s parents but they did not disclose that to the North Carolina court.

Ana Maria now claims that Gabino knew of the child exchange that
purportedly occurred in Oklahoma City on October 10, 2013, but that the reason
Gabino was not present is because Gabino “wanted to be at work.”!¢ There are
multiple issues with this claim. The first is that it is unsurprisingly false. Gabino
had no idea that Paola would be signing temporary custody over to Ana Maria.
The second issue is that Gabino wanting to work during this child exchange is
suspiciously convenient for Ana Maria. The third issue is that the agreement
between Paola and Ana Maria was notarized on October 9, 2015, the day prior to
the date on which Ana Maria claims the exchange happened. The third issue is that
only Paola’s signature is on the temporary custody agreement between her and Ana
Maria. These issues clearly indicate that Paola and Ana Maria both planned to have
this exchange without Gabino’s knowledge.

To make matters worse, Ana Maria now states that after some time following
the above child exchange, Ana Maria “had discussions™ with Gabino and Paola in
which Ana Maria informed them that she would file for formal custody orders."”

Ana Maria further claims that during the discussion (or discussions), both Gabino

15 14 at 3:20-23.
16 1d. at 7:18-21.
7 14 at 8:1-3.

-6-
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and Paola agreed that neither would contest such a request from Ana Maria.'® Ana
Maria now further claims that communications between herself, Gabino, and Paola
ceased shortly after the proceedings in the North Carolina case, which is after
March 2, 2017.7

This again conflicts with the findings in the NC Order. As stated previously,
Ana Maria represented in the North Carolina case that the whereabouts of both
Gabino and Paola were unknown. In her instant Motion, Ana Maria states she was
having contact with the child’s parents until shortly afier March 2, 2017,
Furthermore, in the North Carolina case, the court was made to believe that Paola
was actually homeless. Ana Maria now states that Paola and Gabino were moving
from motel to motel,?® which not equivalent to being homeless.

All this clearly shows that Ana Maria manipulated the North Carolina court
to fraudulently obtain the NC Order. Ana Maria never disclosed to Gabino her
plans to meet with Paola nor the plan to make the temporary custodial agreement.
Ana Maria is similarly attempting to mislead this Court. This Court is being asked
to take Ana Maria’s word that Gabino decided he “wanted to be at work™ during
the custodial exchange between Paola and Ana Maria, that Gabino agreed to let
Ana Maria and Mr. Edenfield (a man who Gabino never met) formally take custody
of his child, and that immediately after the North Carolina custody order was
entered, (Gabino suddenly decided to stop communicating with his child. Of course,
none of this is true and Ana Maria has not provided a shred of evidence that her
claims are true.

D. The child was present in Nevada from March 2019 through mid-

2020.

18 14,
19 1d. at 8:5-7.
20 1d. at 8:2-5.

-
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Since Ana Maria took the child from Oklahoma, she has been depriving
Gabino of any relationship with his child. She obtained the fraudulent NC Order,
she threatened to report Gabino to immigration if he tried to find her, and she
disappeared with the child. At no point did Ana Maria allow Gabino any contact
with the child and Gabino tried tirelessly to find her. In March 2019, Ana Maria’s
family members informed Gabino of the child’s presence in the state and Gabino
was able to see his child for the first time since October of 2015.

In her Motion, Ana Maria states that she moved to Henderson, NV on or
about April 10, 2019,2! which may be true as to Ana Maria’s own presence.
However, the child was definitely in Nevada as of March of 2019, In fact, Gabino
saw the child in Nevada several times in 2019. Gabino saw the child as follows:

o In March 2019 and April 2019 while the child was in the care of Ana

Maria’s grandmother, Andrea Salas.

e In September 2019, Gabino saw the child at the Wal Mart shopping center

located on Charleston and Nellis.

o In October 2019, Gabino spotted the child at the McDonalds located on

Rancho and Washington.

e In December 2019, Gabino had further direct contact with the child on 3

separate occasions.?

In her Motion, Ana Maria claims that she sent the child to live with Mr.
Edenfield from July 2019 to November 2019 and that the child returned to her care
in November 2019.2 This is important for several reasons. The first reason is that
this claim conflicts with Ana Maria’s Motion to Set Aside filed on November 24,
2021, On lines 9 through 11 of the Procedural History and Statement of Facts, Ana
Maria specifically claimed that, “Since the time that Custody order was entered,

2 1d. at 8:16-18.
22 Exhibit E: Photographs that Gabino took of the child during the Christmas season of 2019.

23 Ana Maria’s Motion at 9:5-7.
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the minor child has resided with Plaintiff and continues to do so through the
present.” Ana Maria cannot have it both ways on this claim. Either she lied to this
Court in her November 24, 2021, pleading or she is lying now. The child cannot
be in two places at once.

The second reason is that Ana Maria claimed Mr. Edenfield and her separated
on June 23, 2018.% Therefore, Ana Maria is asking this Court to believe that after
over a year of being separated from Mr. Edenfield, Ana Maria suddenly decided to
ship the child to him. Even if it were true that Ana Maria sent the child to California
to live with Mr, Edenfield for about 5 months, it is certainly odd that she would
send the child to be alone with a man who is (1) not a blood relative and (2) who
no longer has a relationship with Ana Maria. If true, this again shows that Ana Maria
is not caring for the child, and she is (and has been) leaving the child for extended
periods of time.

As it stands, Ana Maria has not provided any proof that the child ever left the
state of Nevada from March 2019 through the time Ana Maria absconded with the
child in 2020. This is because the child was residing in Nevada that entire time.

In November 2019, Ana Maria left the child with family members so that
Ana Maria could go work as an escort in California. During Ana Maria’s absence,
her family informed Gabino that she had left the child again and they allowed him
to see the child. When Gabino saw the child’s condition (including wearing clothes
too small for her and having head lice) he no longer let Ana Maria’s threats of
deportation keep him from taking action.

Obviously, Ana Maria believed that her Aunt Vanessa and cousin Claudia
would help her continue depriving Gabino of contact with his child. This 1s the
reason Ana Maria “lost trust” in her Aunt Vanessa and her cousin Claudia® after
Gabino rescned the child from Ana Maria in November 2019, It is certainly

A Id. at 8:7-8.
25 1d. at 10-9-11.

9.
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interesting that the people that Ana Maria cannot trust are those who do not agree
with hiding the child from her father.
E. Ana Maria fled to Florida with the Child in an attempt to avoid the
current proceedings in Nevada,

As the Court is aware, on December 15, 2019, Ana Maria arrived at Gabino’s
home accompanied by police to take the child.?® By Ana Maria’s own account, she
subsequently moved with the child to Florida to live with Mr. Edenfield’s mother.?”
Though it is important to note that Ana Maria does not state exactly what day she
left Nevada for Florida. Ana Maria now claims that she moved from Nevada to
Florida for “safety.””® However, Ana Maria fails to explain why she felt she was
unsafe in Nevada. If Gabino had agreed to Ana Maria taking custody, and he had
in fact abandoned his child, there would be absolutely no reason why Ana Maria
would need to move across the country to avoid him. The claim that the move was
made for “safety” betrays Ana Maria’s entire story and shows just how fraudulent
Ana Maria’s narrative 1s.

In her Motion filed on November 24, 2021, Ana Maria claimed that she was
“not aware” of the present action until November 19, 2021. However, the timing
of her departure to Florida is suspect at best. According to Ana Maria, she moved
to Florida sometime between December 15, 2019 and January 31, 2020. In other
words, she claims she conveniently moved from Nevada to Florida between the
time she took the child from Gabino and the time Gabino filed the initial Certificate
of Service.

In her current Motion, Ana Maria claims that she was not residing at 1216
Silver Lake Drive at that time Gabino filed this action, that Gabino knew she was

% Ana Maria has not allowed Gabino to have contact with his child since 2019, presumably
because Gabino took the child when Ana Maria left the child with her relatives in order to go be
with her “clients” in Los Angeles.
2[4, at 10:10-12.
2 1d. at 10:11-12.
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not residing at that address at the time, and that Mr. Edenfield never resided at that
address.” It is important to note the language Ana Marie uses here. She specifically
states she was not residing at 1216 Silver Lake Drive “at the time” and that Mr.
Edenfield “never” resided at the address. This distinction shows that Gabino had
the correct address and that Ana Maria was residing there before she moved to
Florida. While Ana Maria claims she moved just in time to avoid service, that is
complete hogwash. Ana Maria clearly received notice of the instant action and fled
after the fact.
F. Ana Maria left the state of Nevada in late 2020.

Upon information and belief,*® Ana Maria fled the state of Nevada sometime
in mid-2020, not before Gabino served her as she claims. As the Court is aware,
Gabino was not able to obtain a copy of the order from the August 6, 2020 hearing®!
until December 22, 2020.

On January 25, 2021, Gabino filed an Ex Parte Request for a Pick Up Order.
That the request for the emergency pick-up order was based on the fact that Ana
Maria had been refusing to remain in contact with Gabino since December 201932
and was in violation of the Court Order from the August 6, 2020 hearing. The pick
up order was granted on January 25, 2021.

When Gabino discovered that Ana Maria fled to Florida with the child, he
hired a private investigator to locate her and the child. However, Ana Maria

subsequently fled from Florida as well.

®Hd. at 13-17.
3 Acquired through conversations between Gabino and Ana Maria’s family members.
3 Court ordered, in pettinent part, that Gabino shall have sole legal and sole physical custody of

the child.
2 Though even before that, Ana Maria not allowing Gabino to have contact with the child and

she continue threats to call immigration on Gabino.

-11-
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On May 7, 2021, Gabino’s private investigator found Ana Maria had
speeding tickets in Seattle, Washington. Gabino only had the pickup order at the
time, and Washington police refused to enforce it until Gabino localized the order.

On July 2, 2021, Gabino filed for and obtained a Warrant to Take Physical
Custody of the child, which he served on Ana Maria in the state of Washington. It
was only after Gabino surprised Ana Maria with service in Washington on
November 19, 2021, that Ana Maria could no longer pretend she did not know this
case was ongoing.

G, Ana Maria states that there were “irregularities” in the proceedings.

In her Motion, Ana Maria claims that there were irregularities in the
proceedings.

e The Court signed the Order to register the Out of State Order. End of

discussion. This is a nonissue that Ana Maria s trying to turn into an issue.

e Only July 27, 2020, the Court stopped the proceeding immediately upon

discovering that the interpreter was not certified. This is also a nonissue.

o On July 27, 2020, Gabino testified that December 10, 2019 was the first

time he saw the child physically since Augusi 2(119. Gabino never stated
that he had not seen the child at all until December 10, 2019 as Ana Maria
claims,

e On August 6, 2020, Gabino’s testimony was not contradictory. He has

remained consistent in stating that he saw the child on March of 2019.

e QGabino did not claim that he was working the oil fields for the full 36

months. |

e On August 2016, 2020, at 10:33:28, a question is asked about whether

family members had concerns about the child before December of 2019,
Gabino clearly replies yes. Furthermore, just prior to that question,
Gabino testifies that one of Ana Maria’s family members told him that

Ana Maria put the child in time out because she was ill. Therefore, it

12
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makes absolutely no sense for Ana Maria to claim Gabino said “no”
quietly. f

¢ On August 16, 2020, at 10:34:11, Gabino is asked if he had any concerns
about the child before December 2019. Gabino clearly replies yes. This
question is followed by a question as to the reason Gabino did not take
any action prior to December of 2019. While the interpreter does gesture
across her neck, the following questions are whether Gabino was aftaid to
take legal action and why. Gabino testifies that Ana Maria threatened to
call immigration if he took her to court. Of course, Ana Maria left this part
out of her “irregularities” list. |

The “irregularities” mentioned by Ana Maria are not irregularities at all. Ana
Maria has turned to misstating what said during the hearings because what was
actually stated does not support her position.

Ana Maria clearly intends keep lying just as she did to the North Carolina
court. Unfortunately, the victim here continues to be the child. Ana Maria has now
moved het across the country multiple times over the course of her young life. Ana
Maria has deprived the child of contact with her parents. Anyone who does not
support Ana Maria’s actions is seen as a traitor. Ana Maria will certainly continue
to lie and to move the child from place to place as many times as it takes to frustrate
Gabino’s attempts to get his child back. The Nevada courts that have handled this
case 1ssued the correct orders under the circumstances. Ana Maria’s Motion is
nothing more than a patchwork attempt to fabricate a story that will excuse her
attempt to avoid court proceedings. She has not provided any evidence whatsoever
to support her allegations and she has not provided it because no such evidence
exists. As such, her Motion to Reconsider should be denied.

II.

ARGUMENT
A.  The Court Should Deny Ana Maria’s Motion for 60(b) Relief.

13-
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Ana Maria admits that North Carolina does not have exclusive jurisdiction
and she argues that the issue is whether State of Nevada had subject matter
jurisdiction over the issue of child custody. Ana Maria incorrectly asserts that the
State of Nevada did not have subject matter jurisdiction over the issue of child
custody and that it could not modify the NC Order because Nevada was not the
child’s home state at the onset of this case.

NRCP 60 states the following in pertinent part:

(b) Grounds for Relief From a Final Judgment, Order, or
Proceeding, On motion and upon such terms as are just, the court may
relieve a party or a party’s legal representative from a final judgment,
order, or proceeding for the following reasons:

(1) mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable neglect;

(2) newly discovered evidence which by due diligence could not

have been discovered in time to move for a new trial under Rule

39(b);

(3) fraud (whether heretofore denominated intrinsic or extrinsic),

misrepresentation or other misconduct of an adverse party;

(4) the judgment is void;

(5) the judgment has been satisfied, released, or discharged; it is

based on an earlier judgment that has been reversed or vacated; or

applying it prospectively is no longer equitable; or

(6) Any other rcason that justifies relief,
(¢) The motion shall be made within a reasonable time, and for reasons
(1), (2), and (3) not more than 6 months after the proceeding was taken
or the date that written notice of entry of the judgment or order was
served. A motion under this subdivision (b} does not affect the finality
of a judgment or suspend its operation. This rule does not limit the
power of a court to entertain an independent action to relieve a party
from a judgment, order, or proceeding, or to set aside a judgment for
fraud upon the court. Writs of coram nobis, coram vobis, audita querela,
and bills of review and bills in the nature of a bill of review, are
abolished, and the procedure for obtaining any relief from a judgment
shall be by motion as prescribed in these rules or by an independent
action.

14-
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Ana Maria has not demonstrated that the order should be set aside under
NRCP 60(b). As the Court is aware, NRCP 60(b) authorizes the Court to set aside
an order “upon such terms as are just” if the movant can demonstrate that the
judgment is void, if there is mistake, inadvertence, surprise or excusable neglect
and that justice requires the Court to set aside the order. While the Court has broad
discretion in granting or denying a 60(b) motion, justice certainly does not, in this
case, require the Court to set aside all orders.

1. Nevada was the child’s home state at the onset of this case.

Under NRS 125A.085(1), the 6-month requirement includes any temporary
absence from the state. Here, the child was present in Nevada from March 2019,
Ana Maria claims she moved to Nevada on April 10, 2019. It is likely she sent the
child to Nevada first.

While Ana Maria claims that the child was in California with Mr. Edenfield
from July 2019 through November 2019, she has not provided any evidence of
that. Furthermore, it is simply not true that the child was in California given that
Gabino saw the child present in Nevada multiple times between July 2019 and
November 2019.

Assuming arguendo that the child was absent from Nevada during from July
2019 through November 2019, that absence was undoubtedly a temporary absence.
The child returned from California and even Ana Maria has claimed time and time
again that the child resided with her af a/l times. Given that Ana Maria was residing
in Nevada from at least Apnil 10, 2019 (according to her), the child’s residence was
Nevada and she was going to continue residing in Nevada until Ana Maria decided
to abscond with the child in mid-2020. As such, there is no question whatsoever
that the child was a resident of Nevada for at least 6 months immediately before
the commencement of this case.

Ana Maria admits that North Carolina does not have exclusive jurisdiction

and she argues that the issue is whether State of Nevada had subject matter
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jurisdiction over the issue of child custody. Ana Maria incorrectly asserts that the
State of Nevada did not have subject matter jurisdiction over the issue of child
custody and that it could not modity the NC Order because Nevada was not the
child’s home state at the onset of this case.

2. Gabino properly served Ana Maria.

Gabino served Ana Maria properly pursuant to NRS 125A.465(4), which
states:

4. The person seeking registration of a child custody determination
pursuant to subsection 1 shall serve notice, by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, upon each parent or person who has been
awarded custody or visitation identified pursuant to paragraph (c) of
subsection 1.

Here, without any basis whatsoever, Ana Maria claims that the USPS
tracking information shows the article was never mailed and that tracking did not
occur through USPS. This is incorrect. The COS filed on January 31, 2020 shows
that the article was mailed via certified mail. Furthermore, USPS stores tracking
information for at most 2 years. Given that over 2 years have passed since certified
mailing of the COS, searching for tracking history from January 31, 2020, is not
possible. As such, Ana Maria attempting to use current tracking searches is
misleading and unsurprisingly just another attempt to distract from the fact that she
tried to evade service. The facts here show that Ana Maria was residing at 1216
Silver Lake Drive until at least early March of 2020. Ana Maria even acknowledges
that only Mr. Edenfield “never resided” at that address.

Ana Maria also admits that she fled to Florida after she retrieved the child
from Gabino on December 15, 2019, However, Ana Maria has not provided an exact
date on which she left Nevada for Florida. She has not even provided the Court an
approximate month on which she left Nevada. Ana Maria has presented no evidence
that she was never served or that she was not residing at 1216 Silver Laker Dr, Las

Vegas, NV 89108 at the onset of this case. If Ana Maria was not residing there, she
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has not presented any evidence of where she was residing. Ana Maria absolutely
cannot claim that “no attempt™ at a valid service of process was made when there
clearly were many attempts and she actively avoided Gabino until she was found in
the state of Washington due to traffic tickets she had in Washington.

The facts here indicate that Ana Maria absconded with the child after she had
notice of this case. The only reason Ana Maria finally decided to respond in this
Court is because she was tracked down and not given the opportunity to flee again
before being served in Washington.,

Ana Maria absconding with the child does not excuse Ana Maria’s
responsibility to participate in the proceedings. While Ana Maria claims that she
was never served and that no attempts were made to serve her, this Court has
already found the opposite, In fact, in the Order from January 24, 2022, this Court
found that Judge Burton made extensive review of the facts and circumstances and
service. The burden of proof is on Ana Maria and she has not provided a shred of
evidence to support her Motion. If anything, her Motion further shows that she will
say whatever she can conjure up to give herself the opportunity to flec again.

Even if the NC Order was not domesticated (which it was) this Court clearly
has subject matter jurisdiction over child custody because this was the child’s home
state at the onset of the case and Ana Maria received service of process but decided
to flee the state of Nevada.

(Giabino therefore submits that Ana Maria has failed to make a prima facie
case for 60(b) relicf. Based on the foregoing facts, the Court should summarily
deny Ana Maria’s motion in its entirety without argument.

II1.
COUNTERMOTION
A.  This Court should hold Ana Maria in contempt for failure to produce

the child pursuant to the Order from January 24, 2022.

-17
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Pursuant to NRCP 60(c)(2), a Motion for Relief from Judgment or Order does
not affect the judgment’s finality or suspend its operation. Furthermore, the Nevada
Legislature has empowered judges to hold parties in contempt when they
“[d]isobe[y] or resist][] . . . any lawful writ, order, rule or process issued by the
court or judge at chambers.” Nev. Rev. Stat, § 22.010(3). To constitute the basis
for contempt, an order must be clear, unambiguous, and clearly “spell out the
details of compliance.” Cunningham v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 102 Nev. 551,
559-60, 729 P.2d 1328, 1333-34 (1986).

As stated above, the Order issued on January 24, 2022 states, in pertinent
part, as follows:

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Ana file a Notice of Change

of Address and that she produce the child as ordered by the Court.

Ana Maria willfully violated clear and unambiguous orders by failing to produce
the child pursuant to the Order issued on January 24, 2021. Ana Maria understood
the order given that she did comply with the part of the order directing her to file a
Notice of Change of Address. She filed the Notice of Change of Address on March
1, 2022. However, she continues to withhold the child from Gabino in direct and
blatant violation of the Order.

The Court should provide motivation for Ana Maria to comply with its
orders, Each passing day that Ana Maria fails to produce the child is a continuing
violation of the Order, and it is punishable by up to a $500 fine, incarceration and
an award of fees. See NRS 22.100. Gabino therefore requests that the Court direct
Ana Maria to produce the child be a specific date subject to contempt, If Ana Maria
does not produce the child by the date set by the Court, Gabino further requests that
Ana Maria be sanctioned with a $500 fine and one day of incarceration for each
additional day that she fails to produce the child.

B.  The Court Should Award Gabino with Attorney’s Fees and Costs in
the Amount of $5,000.

18-
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Gabino is requesting fees pursuant to EDCR 7.60, which allows the Court to
sanction a party for unreasonably and vexatiously multiplying proceedings and/or
presenting to the court a motion or an opposition to a motion which is obviously
frivolous, unnecessary or unwarranted. Ana Maria’s motion has unreasonably
increased Gabino’s costs by forcing him to file a response. The Court should award
Gabino the sum of $5,000 in attorney’s fees for being forced to defend against a
motion brought without legal grounds and so clearly without merit, Ana Maria has
failed to show a shred of proof that she was not residing at 1216 Silver Lake Dr,
Las Vegas, NV 89108 when multiple notices were delivered there via certified
mail. She has presented no evidence that Nevada was not the child’s home state at
the onset of this case. Furthermore, she has presented no evidence to suggest she
was not residing in Nevada when service was made by publication multiple times
in April and May of 2020.

In support of Gabino’s request for attorney’s fees, the following is an analysis

of the Brunzell factors for the Court’s consideration:

(1) the advocate’s qualities, including ability, iraining, education,
experience, professional standing, and skill,

All the attorneys at Mills & Anderson regularly practice in family law and
regularly participate in CLE to stay current with the most recent changes in the law.
Mills & Anderson collectively has over 50 years of family law practice experience
and all three attorneys at the firm will likely be utilized at various stages in the case.
No disciplinary action of any kind has been taken against any of the firm’s lawyers
during that time.

(2)  the character of the work to be done; and (3) the work actually
performed by the lawyer,

Gabino’s attorneys have prepared all the substantive pleadings in this matter,
researched and cited all appropriate law, with correct analysis and application of the

law to the facts. They have met with Gabino in consultation and will be present at

.19,
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all hearings in this matter. The firm’s actions have been in accordance to the highest
ethical practices and consistent with the Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct.

(4)  the result, whether the attorney was successful and what benefits were
derived.

Gabino anticipates a favorable decision by the Court as his requests are
consistent with and supported by Nevada law. Gabino therefore requests an award
of fees in the amount of $5,000.00.

I1IL.
CONCLUSION

Based upon the above and foregoing, Defendant respectfully requests that
this Court enter the following Orders:

1. An Order of the Court denying Plaintiff’s request to reconsider and set aside
any and all judgement’s, orders, or other decisions in the present matter;

2. An order of the Court holding Plaintiff in contempt for failing to produce the
child;

3. An Order of the Court denying Plaintiff’s request for attorney’s fees and

COsts;

4. An Order awarding Defendant with fees and costs in the amount of $3,000;
5. For any and other such further relief as this Court deems appropriate in the
premises.

DATED this ] E day of March 2022,

MILLS & ANDERSON
=, P

/‘
AYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
evada Bar No. 6745
703 S. 8" Street
Las Vegas NV 89101
Attorney for Defendant
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AFFIDAVIT OF GABINO GUARDADO IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK. )

GABINO GUARDADO, being first duly sworn according to law, deposes
and says: _

1. I have provided all the information, dates and incidents for use in this
opposition and state under oath that the information contained therein and
which I have read, corrected and approved, is true and correct to the best of
my knowledge.

2. Based on my knowledge, belief and information and as though repeated
herein by my affidavit, I incorporate the facts and incidents of the opposition
as though fully reprinted in this affidavit.

WHEREFORE, I respectfully request that this Court grant the relief requested.
FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Gabine Quardads 4

GABINO GUARDADO

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me
this__ V4  day of March 2022,

¥

#ARY PUBLIC in and for Said
County of Clark, State of Nevada

AR EDGAHDO FABIAN PINEDC ALVANIADO
Metary Public-State of Nevade
APPT,NO. 20-3338-01
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EXPA

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6745
MILLS & ANDERSON
703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas Nevada 89101
702-386-0030
Attorney for Defendant
attorneys@millsnv.com
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M, SALAS
TYLER EDENFIELD, CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, DEPT.NO.: X
VS DATE OF HEARING: 04/11/22
GABINO GUARDADO, TIME OF HEARING: 10:00 a.m.
Defendant.

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE

COMES NOW the Defendant, GABINO GUARDADQ, by and through his
attorney, BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ. of the law firm of MILLS & ANDERSON
and pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes and Eighth Judicial District Court
Rules cited hereinbelow respectfully requests that the Court issue an order to show
cause why the Plaintiff, ANA M. SALAS, should not be held in contempt of court
for violations of the Order filed on February 15, 2022, for failing to produce the
child.

Page 1 of §
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This application is made and based on the pleadings and papers on file
herein, the Affidavit of GABINO GUARDADO, and any oral argument at the
time of hearing on this matter.

DATED this | ?J’_day of ey 2022

MILLS & ANDERSON

”ﬁ )7%

"7

W MILLS, ESQ.
evada Bar No. 6745

703 S. 8" Street
Las Vegas Nevada 89101

Attorney for Defendant

Page 2 of 5
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AFFIDAVIT OF GABINO GUARDADO IN SUPPORT OF ORDER TO
SHOW CAUSE

STATE OF NEVADA )
88,
COUNTY OF CLARK )

GABINO GUARDADQO, being first duly sworn according to law, deposes
and says:
1.  The Plaintiff, ANA M. SALAS (hereinafter “Ana Maria”) is the former
sister-in-law of the Defendant, GABINO GUARDADO (hereinafter “Gabino”).
2.  Gabino is the biological father of the child at issue, to wit: YASLINE
ALEJANDRA GUARDADO-SALAS, born on February 9, 2014 (*the child” or
“Yasline™).
3.  Ana Maria is the sister of the child’s biological mother, PAOLA LETICIA
SALAS (“Paola” or “child’s mother™).
4.  The Plaintiff, TYLER EDENFIELD (“Mr. Edenfield”) is Ana Maria’s ex-
husband.
5. OnJanuary 24, 2022, the Court issued the controlling order (“the Order”) in
favor of Gabino. The Order was filed on February 15, 2022.!
6.  Pursuant to the Order, the three Orders that govern are:?

e December 21,2020 — granting Gabino the sole legal and physical custody

of Yasline.
e January 26, 2021 — Order for Return of Child.
o July 2, 2021 — Warrant for Return of Child.

! See Order filed on February 15, 2022,
2 1d. at 3:8-16.

Page 3 of 5
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7. Furthermore, pursuant to the Order, Ana Maria shall produce the child as
ordered by the Court.?

8.  February 28, 2022, Ana Maria’s current counsel filed Substitution of
Attorney.

9.  On March 1, 2022, Ana Maria filed another Motion for Reconsideration,
asserting Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction and Personal Jurisdiction.

10.  As of March 14, 2022, Ana Maria has not produced the child and as stated
above, she has chosen to challenge the validity of the Court’s orders instead.

11. Pursnant to NRCP 60(c)(2), a Motion for Relief from Judgment or Order
does not affect the judgment’s finality or suspend its operation.

12.  Assuch, Maria’s filing of the Motion for Reconsideration on March 1, 2022
does not suspend the operation of the Order. Specifically, it does not excuse Ana
Maria from producing the child.

13. By refusing to produce the child, Ana Maria has violated the Order filed on
February 15, 2022, which states in relevant part that, “Ana Maria shall produce the
child as ordered by the Court.” Furthermore, given that Gabino is the sole legal and
sole physical custodian of the child, Ana Maria has deprived Gabino of custodial
time since the Order was filed.

14, Due to Ana Maria’s noncompliance with the Court’s order, I was
forced to incur additional attorney’s fees that could have been avoided otherwise.

15. Thave provided all the information, dates and incidents for use in this
application and state under oath that the information contained therein and which
I have read, corrected and approved, is true and correct to the best of my

knowledge.

3id. at 4:10-11.

Page 4 of 5
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16. Based on my knowledge, belief and information and as though
repeated herein by my affidavit, I respectfully request that the Court issue an order
to show cause against Defendant for the violations set forth in this affidavit.
WHEREFORE, I respectfully request that this Court grant the relief requested.

o @ =3 & U b W
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FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Rubis Bookdedo f-

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me

this (g,  dayof Mox(h 2022.

GABINO GUARDADO

INOTARZPOBLIC in and for Said
County of Clark, State of Nevada

APPT.NO. 20-3338-01

2 My Appt. Expires 12-15-2024
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Electronically Filed
3M7/2022 12:34 PM
Steven D, Grierson

EXH

BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745
DANIEL W. ANDERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #9955
MILLS & ANDERSON
703 S. 8™ Street

Las Vegas NV §9101
(702) 386-0030
attorneys@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS AND )
TYLER EDENFIELD )
) CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, ) DEPT. NO.: X
)
Vs. ) HEARING DATE: 04/11/22
) HEARING TIME: 10:00 a.m.
GABINO GUARDADO, )
)
Defendant. )
)

DEFENDANT’S APPENDIX TO OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, ET AL.

Defendant, GABINO GUARDADO, by and through his attorney, BYRON
L. MILLS, ESQ. of MILLS & ANDERSON hereby submits and files his Appendix
11/
i
/1
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to the Opposition and Countermotion.

EXHIBIT BATE NO. DESCRIPTION

E 8-10 Photographs that Gabino took of the child during
the Christmas season of 2019.

Submitted by:

MILLS & ANDERSON

(’f;’;’ﬂ ;% 3//7/22’

N L. MILLS, ESQ. DATED
arNo. 6745
703 S. 8th Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant
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0BJ
Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

4411 South Pecos Road
[Las Vegas, Nevada 89121
PH: (702) 474-7007
FAX: (702) 474-7477

KYLE EDENFIELD,

Plaintiff,
V.

GABINO GUARDADQ,

Electronically Filed
3/18/2022 10:24 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEE

State Bar of Nevada No. 9294
ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Maria Salas

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ANA MARIA SALAS AND TYLER Case No:  D-20-602873-F

Pept No: X

Defendant.

COMES NOW the

Show Cause.

AR

VA

OBJECTION TO DEFENDANT’S EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR AN

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE

Plaintiff, Ana Salas, by and through her attorneys of

record, Amanda M. Roberts, Esq., of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group, and

hereby files this Objection to Defendant’s Ex Parte Application for an Order to

Page 1 of 3

467

Case Number: D-20-602873-F




i

NG - S

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Pursuant to EDCR § 5.510 (a), Gabino’s Motion was required to be
accompanied by an Affidavit comply with NRS § 22.030 (2) which must include
“the specific provisions, pages and lines of the existing order(s) alleged to have
been violated, the acts or omissions constituting the alleged violation, any harm
suffered or anticipated, and the need for a contempt ruling, which should be filed
and served as any other motion.” In this matter, Gabino’s Affidavit does not
comply with EDCR § 5.510 (a) because it fails to provide the language from the
Order plus the page and line number reference. As such, pursuant to Awad v.
Wright, 106 Nev. 407, 794 P.2d 713 (1990), the failure to properly comply with the
Court rules means this Court lacks jurisdiction to hear this request.

Based upon the foregoing, Ana requests the Court deny Gabino’s request for
the issuance of an Order to Show Cause.

DATED this |t day of March, 2022.

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

By: @W@ " ’@é‘&@

Amanda M. Roberts, Esq.

State of Nevada Bar No. 9294
4411 South Pecos Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMALIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Ana Salas

Page 2 of 3
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that [ am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,

and on the E day of March, 2022, I served by and through Wiz-Net electronic

service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service

of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing Objection to

Defendant’s Ex Parte Application for an Order to Show Cause, to the following:

Byron Mills, Esq.
Email: modonnell@millsnv.com
Attorney for Defendant

toffel Family Law
Group
Page 3 of 3
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2 [|BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #6745

* ||[MILLS & ANDERSON
41703 S. 8% Street

Las Vegas NV 89101
(702) 386-0030

¢ || attorneys@millsnv.com

1 || Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
8 FAMILY DIVISION
5 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
“ || ANA M. SALAS AND )
it |[TYLER EDENFIELD )
0 )  CASENO.: D-20-602873-F

Plaintiff, )  DEPT.NO. X
13 )
14 || V8. )
)

" | GABINO GUARDADO, )
113 )
7 Defendant. ))
18 CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

The Undersigned, pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2}(D} and EDCR 8.05, does hereby

* || state and declare that on the 17th day of March, 2022, I served a true and correct

“ copy of the following documents:

# 1. Opposition to Application for Temporary Protective Order.

23 . . : , X
Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Reconsideration, et al.

2
“ 3. Defendant’s Exhibits to Plaintiff”s Motion for Reconsideration
4

Ex Parte Application for Order to Show Cause
20

27 || by delivering via electronic service utilizing the Odyssey E-File and Serve system

28
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to the person(s) identified below as follows:

Amanda Roberts, Esq. (efile@lvfamily law.com)

/S/ MARY O’DONNELL

An Employee of Mills & Anderson

471




3117722, 12:00 PM

Message

Mary O'Donnell

From:
Received:
To:

no-reply@efilingmail.tylertech.cloud
Thu 3/17/2022 10:06 AM
Mary O'Donnell

Notification of Service for Case: D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant. for filing Opposition - OPPS (FAM), Envelope Number:

Notification of Service

Case Number; D-20-602873-F

Case Style: Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant.
Envelope Number: 9533883

This is a notification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted

document.

Filing Details

Case Number

D-20-602873-F

Case Style

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
Defendant.

Date/Time Submitted

3/17/2022 10:05 AM PST

Filing Type

Opposition - OPPS {FAM)

Filing Description

Opposition to Application for Temporary Protection Order

Filed By

Jessica Titolo

Service Contacts

Ana Maria Salas:
Amanda Raoberts, Esq. {efile@Ivfamilylaw.com)
Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)

John Lanning, Esq. (ilanning@issolaw.com)

Gabino Guardado:

Byron Mills {(modonnell@millsnv.com)

Document Details

Served Document

Downlo 0

This link is active for 30 days.

Mary O'Donnell

Printed: Thu 3/17/2022 12:00 PM

12
https:}fcloud.amlcusatlomey.com!Mlscellaneous}Print.aspx?ltemType=Email&%xc angeUnigueld=AAMKADVHYZASNDQwWLTVIOGMINDQOMy040GM... 111



3118722, 8:33 AM Message

Mary O'Donnell

From: no-reply@efilingmail.tylertech .cloud
Received: Thu 3/17/2022 10:06 AM
To: Mary O'Donnell
Cc:
Notification of Service for Case: D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Subject: Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant. for filing Opposition ~ OPPS (FAM), Envelope Number;
9533883

Notification of Service

Case Number: D-20-602873-F

Case Style: Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabinoc Guardado, Defendant.
Envelope Number: 9533883

This is a nofification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted
document.

Filing Details

Case Number D-20-602873-F

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
Case Style Defendant.
Date/Time Submitted 3/M17/2022 10:05 AM PST
Filing Type Opposition - OPPS (FAM)

Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Reconsideration, Asserting Lack of
Filing Description Subject Matter Jurisdiction and Personal Jurisdiction and Countermotion

for Motion for Contempt and Attorney's Fees and Costs
Filed By Jessica Titolo

Ana Maria Salas:

Amanda Roberts, Esq. (efile@lvfamilylaw.com)

Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)
Service Contacts John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com}

Gabino Guardado:

Byron Mills {(modonnell@millsnv.com)

Document Details
Served Document Download Document
This link is active for 30 days.

https:!!cloud.amicusaltorney.corm’MIsoelIanaous}Prin‘t.aspx?ItemType=EmaiI&ﬂxlléngeUniqueld=AAMkADVhYzA5NDQwLTVIOGMtNDQOMy(MOGM.. 12




3M8/22,9:31 AM

Message

Mary O'Donnell

From:
Received:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

no-reply @efilingmail .tytertech.cloud
Thu 3/17/2022 12:34 PM
Mary O'Donnell

Notification of Service for Case: D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabing Guardadc, Defendant. for filing Exhibits - EXHS (FAM), Envelope Number:

Notification of Service

Case Number: D-20-602873-F

Case Style: Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant,
Envelope Number: 9535755

This is a notification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted

document.

Filing Details

Case Number

D-20-602873-F

Case Style

Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
Defendant.

Date/Time Submitted

3/17/2022 12:34 PM PST

|Filing Type

Exhibits - EXHS (FAM)

Filing Description

Defendant’s Appendix fo Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for
Reconsideration, ET Al.

Filed By

Jessica Titolo

Service Contacts

Ana Maria Salas:
Amanda Roberts, Esq. (efile@lvfamilylaw.com)
Peter Isso, Esq. {peter@issolaw.com)

John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com)

Gabino Guardado:

Byron Mills {(modonnell@millsnv.com)
Gabino Guardado {sugueryr@yahoc.com)
Ben Murphy (ben@rosenblumlawl.com)

Molly Rosenblum, Esq. (molly@rosenblumlawlv.com)

https:ﬂcloud.amicusaltorney,conuMisceIIaneous.‘PrinLaspx?ItemType=Email&ﬂxzrﬂ'ngeumqueld=AAMkADVI1YzA5NDQwLTVIOGMtN DQOMy040OGM. ..
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3/18/22, 9:32 AM Message

Mary O'Donnell

From: nc-reply @efilingmail.tylertech.cloud
Received: Thu 3/17/2022 10:06 AM

To: Mary O'Donnell

Cc

Notification of Service for Case: D-20-602873-F, Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Subject: Plzintiff,vs, Gabino Guardade, Defendant. for filing Ex Parte Application for Order - EPAO {FAM),
Envelope Number: 9533883

Notification of Service

Case Number: D-20-602873-F

Case Style: Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield,
Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado, Defendant.
Envelope Number: 9533883

This is a notification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below fo retrieve the submitted
document.

Filing Details
Case Number D-20-602873-F
Ana Maria Salas, Tyler Kyle Edenfield, Plaintiff.vs. Gabino Guardado,
Case Style Defendant.
Date/Time Submitted 3/17/2022 10:05 AM PST
Filing Type Ex Parte Application for Order - EPAO {FAM)
Filing Description Ex Parte Application for Order to Show Cause
Filed By Jessica Titolo
Ana Maria Salas:
John Lanning, Esq. (jlanning@issolaw.com}
Peter Isso, Esq. (peter@issolaw.com)
Service Contacts Amanda Roberts, Esq. {efile@lvfamilylaw.com)
Gabino Guardado:
Byron Mills (modonnell@millsnv.com)
Document Details
Served Document Download Document
This link is active for 30 days.
Mary O'Donnell Printed: Fri 3/18/2022 9:32 AM

htlps:lrcloud,amicusaﬂomey.commllscelIaneous.fPrinLaspx?ItemType=Email&ﬂ'lréngeUnIqueld=AAMkADVhYzASNDQwLTVIOGMtNDQOMyDaIOGM‘.‘ 11
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EXPA
BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6745

Electronically Filed
3/18/2022 12:25 PM
Steven D, Grierson

CLERE OF THE CO UEE

MILLS & ANDERSON
703 S. 8™ Sireet
Las Vegas Nevada 89101
702-386-0030
Attorney for Defendant
attorneys@millsnv.com
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ANA M. SALAS
TYLER EDENFIELD, CASE NO.: D-20-602873-F
Plaintiff, DEPT. NO.: X
Ve DATE OF HEARING:
GABINO GUARDADO, TIME OF HEARING:
Defendant,

AMENDED EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO SHOW

COMES NOW the Defendant, GABINO GUARDADQ, by and through his
attorney, BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ. of the law firm of MILLS & ANDERSON
and pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes and Eighth Judicial District Court
Rules cited hereinbelow respectfully requests that the Court issue an order to show
cause why the Plaintiff, ANA M. SALAS, should not be held in contempt of court
violations of the Order filed on February 15, 2022, for failing to produce the child.

CAUSE

Pagd16f5

Case Number: D-20-802873-F
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This application is made and based on the pleadings and papers on file
herein, the Affidavit of GABINO GUARDADO, and any oral argument at the

time of hearing on this matter.

DATED this @ day of M«NJL , 2022

MILAL ANDERSON
[ P

A AL
BYRON L. MILLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6745

703 S. 8% Street

Las Vegas Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant

By:
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AFFIDAVIT OF GABINO GUARDADO IN SUPPORT OF ORDER TO
SHOW CAUSE

STATE OF NEVADA )
: 8S.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

GABINO GUARDADO, being first duly sworn according to law, deposes

and says:
1. The Plaintiff, ANA M. SALAS (hereinafter “Ana Maria”) is the former
sister-in-law of the Defendant, GABINO GUARDADO (hereinafter “Gabino™).
2.  Gabino is the biological father of the child at issue, to wit: YASLINE
ALEJANDRA GUARDADO-SALAS, born on February 9, 2014 (“the child” or
“Yasline).
3. Ana Maria is the sister of the child’s biological mother, PAOLA LETICIA
SALAS (“Paola” or “child’s mother”).
4,  The Plaintiff, TYLER EDENFIELD (“Mr. Edenfield”) is Ana Maria’s ex-
husband.
5. On January 24, 2022, the Court issued the controlling order (“the Order”) in
favor of Gabino. The Order was filed on February 15, 2022.!
6.  Pursuant to the Order, the three Orders that govern are:?

o December 21, 2020 — granting Gabino the sole legal and physical custody

of Yasline.
¢ January 26, 2021 — Order for Return of Child.
e July2, 2021 — Warrant for Return of Child.

! See Order filed on February 15, 2022.
P Id. at 3:8-16. (Page 3, lines 8-16 of the Order filed February 15, 2022).
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